
 

 

  
County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 278502 
Please ask for Mandy Pattinson 
Email: mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 
Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee 
 
Wednesday, 9 October 2019 
2.00 pm 

Oak Room, County Buildings, Stafford 
 
NB. Members are requested to ensure that their Laptops/Tablets are fully charged 
before the meeting 

 
John Tradewell 

Director of Corporate Services 
1 October 2019 

 

 
A G E N D A 

PART ONE 
 

1.  Apologies  
   
2.  Declarations of Interest  
   
3.  Minutes of the last meeting held on 16 September 2019 (Pages 1 - 8) 
   
4.  A Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Approach to Children and 

Young People's Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health 2018-2023 
- Update 

(Pages 9 - 100) 

   
 Report of the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People  
   
5.  District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity (Pages 101 - 104) 
   
 Report of the Scrutiny and Support Manager  
   
6.  Exclusion of the Public  
   
 The Chairman to move:- 

 
That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraphs Part 1 of Schedule 12A Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) indicated below.  

 

   



 

 

 
 

Membership 
 

Charlotte Atkins 
Tina Clements 
Janet Eagland 
Ann Edgeller 
Richard Ford 
Maureen Freeman 
Phil Hewitt 
Barbara Hughes 
Alan Johnson 
Janet Johnson 
Dave Jones 
 

David Leytham 
Johnny McMahon (Chairman) 
Paul Northcott (Vice-Chairman) 
Kath Perry 
Jeremy Pert 
Bernard Peters 
Carolyn Trowbridge 
Ross Ward 
Ian Wilkes 
Victoria Wilson 
 

 
Scrutiny and Support Manager: Nick Pountney Tel: (01785) 276153 
 



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 16 
September 2019 

 
Present: Johnny McMahon (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 
 

Charlotte Atkins 
Janet Eagland 
Ann Edgeller 
Maureen Freeman 
Phil Hewitt 
Janet Johnson 
Dave Jones 
 

Paul Northcott (Vice-Chairman) 
Michael Oates (Sub for R Ford) 
Kath Perry 
Jeremy Pert 
Carolyn Trowbridge 
Ross Ward 
Victoria Wilson 
 

 
 
Apologies: Richard Ford, Barbara Hughes and Alan Johnson 
 
PART ONE 
 
19. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations made. 
 
20. Minutes of the last meeting held on 15 July 2019 
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meetings held on the 15 July 2019 at both 10am 
and 2pm were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
21. Adult Learning Disability 2022 Community Offer 
 
Alan White, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Health Care and Wellbeing, Amy 
Evans, Commissioning Manager, and Taryn Poole, Commissioning Officer presented 
the report on the Adult Learning Disability 2022 Community Offer.  The report covered 
the Adult Learning Disability Services provided directly by Staffordshire County Council 
and the Carers Strategy ‘All Together for Carers’. 
 
Part A of the report covered Staffordshire County Councils directly provided Learning 
Disability Services.  The report included the draft Cabinet report which was to be 
considered at its meeting on 18 September 2019.  Members were informed that the 
purpose of the Adult Learning Disability Community Offer 2022 programme was to 
establish the assessed eligible care and support needs of adults with a learning 
disability and or autism and ensure that there would be appropriate and sustainable 
services across the county to meet them.  
 
The report outlined the services directly provided by the local authority and those 
externally commissioned respite services.  Options for each service had been evaluated 
following engagement with users, carers and staff.  Current and future demand had 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

been considered along with the present market and the quality and availability of current 
services. 
 
It was reported that over 80% of providers in the independent sector were rated 
outstanding or good by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and there had been no 
provider failures in the last 24 months. 
 
The Committee was informed that Greenfields was a residential care home with 8 
residents located in Staffordshire Moorlands.  In 2007 Cabinet decided to reprovide the 
service however, this decision had not been implemented.  Care Act Assessments have 
indicated that the needs of the current residents could best be met in Supported Living. 
 
Horninglow Bungalows were supported living, accommodating 15 tenants located in 
East Staffordshire and was rated Good by the CQC.  Again, the Care Act Assessments 
had indicated that the needs of the current residents could best be met in Supported 
Living.  Residents and carers had expressed strong support for the service to continue.  
It was proposed that the commissioning of the care part of the supported living should 
be provided by the independent sector, to replace the care currently directly provided by 
the Council. 
 
The Select Committee considered and commentated on the 18th September Cabinet 
recommendations which were listed in the report as: 

a) Approves commissioning of a Supported Living service (care and 
accommodation), from the independent market, to replace the residential service 
currently provided by the Council at Greenfields House in Staffordshire 
Moorlands. 

b) Approves the commissioning of a Supported Living service (care only), from the 
independent market, to replace the care currently directly provided by the Council 
at Horninglow Bungalows in East Staffordshire. 

c) Approves consultation with staff (and recognised Trade Unions) on the proposed 
changes for Greenfields House and Horninglow Bungalow. 

d) Approves the revised Service Charter for the Complex Needs Day Services, 
including rebranding to “Staffordshire County Council Specialist Day 
Opportunities.  

e) Delegates the authority to implement any future changes to staffing and 
accommodation for the Staffordshire County Council Specialist Day Opportunities 
to the Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Wellbeing, in consultation with the 
Director for Health and Care. 

f) Approves an extension to the contracts for two block-booked residential 
replacement care services at Woodland View and Silverbirch with the current 
provider until July 2020. 

g) Requests that proposals for the remaining directly provided learning disability 
services and the long-term future of block-booked residential replacement care 
services be presented to Cabinet in October 2019. 

 
A Member asked how services would be commissioned and how providers would be 
monitored.  In response, it was informed that services would remain CQC regulated and 
contracts would be monitored via; visits by regulators at regular intervals, relatives and 
carers remained a strong part of the contract monitoring process and Healthwatch was 
contracted to monitor and inspect. 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

 
The risks associated with the Horninglow approach was discussed.  The risks and their 
mitigations were set out in the Community Impact Assessment which was attached to 
the report.  The Committee were also given assurance that there was a process for 
dealing with the potential for private companies failing or going into administration at 
very short notice.  
 
The Committee questioned the request for delegated authority as in recommendation e) 
and wanted reassurance that any strategic or substantial decisions made would be 
consulted on before decisions made.  This rewording was agreed to. 
 
It was confirmed that the current contract for block-booked residential replacement care 
services at Woodland View and Silverbirch would expire on 31 March 2020. 
 
The Committee wanted reassurances that during the development of the Strategy, all 
options were looked at and innovative solutions researched.  It was confirmed that this 
had been the case and that the Whole Life Disability Strategy had been the unifying 
document with the Adult Learning Disability Community Offer 2022 Programme adding 
the detail to the previous proposals. 
 
Part B of the report outlined the Carers Strategy which included the engagement 
feedback and included a copy of the draft carers strategy which would be considered by 
Cabinet on 16 October 2019.   The Strategy set out seven priorities which had been 
based on national research, the NHS 10 year plan and learning from earlier 
consultations with carers: 

 Improving information, advice and guidance 

 Identifying carers 

 Staying healthy 

 A life outside of caring 

 Assessment and support 

 Crisis Management 

 Recognition and value. 
 
Consultation with key stakeholders, including carers had taken place, the result of which 
had led to the Strategy being redrafted, noting that the core information and priorities 
had remained the same. It was estimated that there were approximately 98,000 carers 
in Staffordshire, including young carers, equivalent to 10% of the population.  The 
Strategy was therefore an important document both to the quality of peoples lives and to 
the finances of the local authority. 
 
A Member reported that carers had found the process of assessment and funding for 
Respite Services long, difficult and inflexible.  It was reported that the home based 
respite service were due to be retendered to provide a more flexible and responsive 
service.  A triage service assessed urgency on point of contact. 
 
Following a question on how carers were identified, it was reported that information 
came from GP’s, Schools, Universities, Family members and Assessment teams.  It was 
acknowledged that young carers who were caring for people with emotional or 
psychological difficulties were harder to identify and yet may struggle more. 
 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

A Member felt that the policy was very detailed, and the principles were correct but 
asked how it was to be monitored and was the Carers Partnership Board part of the 
monitoring process.  In response, as part of monitoring of the contract, feedback was 
and would continue to be used to inform service development and Officers were 
planning to revitalise the existing Carers Partnership Board, in addition to developing a 
citizen’s board which would also feed into the monitoring process. 
 
It was felt that this was an opportunity to use the hubs to share information on the 
importance of Power of Attorney etc. particularly via sources other than the internet. 
 
RESOLVED:  That subject to the rewording or recommendation (e) to reflect the need 
for substantive changes to come back to Members for consideration, the draft Cabinet 
recommendations as outlined in the report and listed above be endorsed and the 
engagement process noted.  
 
22. CCGs Annual Assessments 2019 
 
Marcus Warnes, Accountable Officer, Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) attended the meeting to present the report and answer questions. 
  
NHS England had a statutory duty to conduct an annual performance assessment of 
every CCG. The assessment, using the Improvement and Assessment Framework 
(IAF), is a judgement, reached by considering the CCG’s performance in each of the 
indicator areas over the full year balanced against the financial management and 
qualitative assessment of the leadership of the CCG. 
 

The CCGs are assessed against 58 indicators in four categories defined as Better 
Health, Better Care, Sustainability and Leadership across the Integrated Care System.  
Each CCG then receives an overall assessment that places their performance in one of 
four categories: outstanding, good, requires improvement, or inadequate. 
 
Using the IAF, NHS England also assesses how effectively CCGs work with others 
(including the local Health and Wellbeing Boards) to improve quality and outcomes for 
patients as well as considering how they have contributed to the performance of their 
local systems as individual organisations. 
 
In the 2018/2019 annual assessment, five of the six CCGs in Staffordshire and Stoke-
on-Trent have been given an overall rating of Inadequate with only East Staffordshire 
CCG rated as good. 
 

The key area of concern for the CCGs rated as inadequate, related to the continued 
financial challenges they have faced during 2018/19. Although NHS England noted that 
Stafford and Surrounds CCG and Cannock Chase CCG met their deficit control total this 
year, there has been a significant deterioration in the financial position for North 
Staffordshire CCG and Stoke-on-Trent CCG and the underlying deficit across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent had exceeded £100million.  All CCG’s had struggled to 
meet the Quality Innovation Productivity and Prevention (QUIPP) savings.  
 
The CCG’s had asked NHS England why Stafford and Surrounds and Cannock Chase 
CCG’s had been rated inadequate, but a detailed response had not yet been received. 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

 
A Member asked if the £300,000 grant for suicide prevention had been received and 
what it would be used for.  A response would be requested and sent to the member for 
information. 
 
Following a question on financial waste in the system and what was being done to 
reduce the figures, it was reported that too many people were being admitted into 
hospital, with 52% of people dying in hospital even if their wish was to die elsewhere.  
North Staffordshire was also spending £26m on Muscular skeletal operations when 
evidence suggested that half of the procedures were of no benefit to the patient.  Pricing 
charges and how partners are choosing when to offer procedures to patients and their 
benefit was being monitored as there was often limited medical value. 
 
There was a discussion around balancing the budgets, particularly regarding urgent 
care and hospital reconfiguration.  Timescales for hitting budget targets had slipped and 
was now 2023.  Everything was being reviewed including waste, efficiencies and 
expectations. 
 
Prevention was the responsibility of Local Authorities and it was acknowledged that over 
recent years there had been some difficult decisions to make.  The NHS aspect of the 
prevention agenda was focusing on mental health and early detection of dementia.  
Members felt that preventative work was essential, and the possible sharing of 
resources was needed to move forward.   
 
A Member asked how progress on the improvement action plans would be monitored.  It 
was felt that a regular six monthly update report would be useful. 
 
A question was asked on delayed discharges and where the blockages were.  The 
Committee was informed that there were more delays in the South of the County.  A 
report on the extent of the problem and what was being done to address the issue was 
requested. 
 
It was felt that without real advances in clinical leadership it would impossible to save 
money. 
 
RESOLVED:   

a) That a six month financial exception report be presented to the Committee. 
b) Information on the £300,000 grant for suicide prevention be sort and sent to the 

Committee for information. 
c) A report on the extent of the delayed discharge problem, particularly in the South 

of the County and what was being done to address the issue was requested. 
 
23. 62 Day Target on Cancer Services 
 
Marcus Warnes, Accountable Officer, Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) attended the meeting to present the report and answer questions. 
 
The 62 day standard refers to the total pathway length, the number of days for patients 
beginning their first definitive treatment within two months of suspected cancer.  The 
Committee was informed that nationally, trusts were struggling to meet the 62 day 

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

standard.  All the Hospitals commissioned by Staffordshire CCG’s, with the exception of 
Dudley, were failing to meet the target. 
 
There were a number of common issues amongst the Trusts including, Diagnostic 
pathways and a mismatch between demand and capacity; Pension Tax changes which 
were reducing the willingness of consultants to work additional sessions; and workforce 
shortages, similar to those in the rest of the county. 
 
A number of strategies were being employed to reduce waiting times such as using the 
private sector.   
 
Following a question on who was monitoring the waiting lists to ensure patients were not 
being missed, the Committee was informed that as part of the contract monitoring, 
waiting lists were reviewed monthly.   
 
A Member raised the question of workforce, and how recruitment issues were raised at 
every Committee meeting.  What was the national strategy for improving this situation.  
The Committee was informed that locally One in Ten NHS posts were vacant which 
included GPs and this was projected to rise in future years.  It was agreed that the 
working model for GP’s hadn’t been changed since 1948 and to make positions 
sustainable, different ways of working and changing the way contracts were offered was 
essential to increase interest.   
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 
24. Preparations for Leaving the EU with No Deal 
 
Marcus Warnes, Accountable Officer, Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) attended the meeting to present the report and answer questions. 
 
It was reported that a team called the Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and 
Response (EPRR) team had been established to lead the CCG’s contribution to NHS 
preparedness for leaving the EU without a deal. 
 
Overall the following key areas were identified as being the most relevant to the NHS:  

1. Supply of medicines and vaccines;  
2. Supply of medical devices and clinical consumables;  
3. Supply of non-clinical consumables, goods and services (such as IT and 

telephones),  
4. Workforce;  
5. Reciprocal healthcare;  
6. Research and clinical trials; 
7. Data sharing, processing and access; 
8. Return of EU nationals to the UK in significant numbers; 
9. Shortages of health and social care staff; 
10. Fuel shortages 
11. Adverse impact on health due to food poverty. 

 
The two main significant risk areas were Medical supplies and Workforce.  In mitigation, 
legislation had now been passed to enable pharmacists to supply clinically suitable 

Page 6



 

- 7 - 
 

alternative products; and all local NHS providers had conducted workforce assessments 
and have put in place contingency plans to mitigate risk of mass departure of EU 
national staff.  The risk associated with EU nationals working for health and social care 
providers such as domiciliary care and care home was highlighted. 
 
A Member asked what the local strategy was for the supply of nuclear isotopes.  The 
Accountable Officer confirmed that a response would be sort and forwarded to the 
member. 
 
It was reported that some of the discussions held nationally were confidential particularly 
around fuel however, at a local level, assurances were provided that locally Trusts 
would manage. 
 
RESOLVED: 

a) That the report be received. 
b) That a response to the question on the local strategy for the supply of nuclear 

isotopes be sort form the Accountable Officer. 
 
25. District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity 
 
The item was deferred to the next meeting. 
 
26. Work Programme 
 
The Scrutiny and Support Manager presented the work programme.  Members were 
reminded that there was an additional meeting scheduled for 9th October 2019 at 2pm to 
consider the Children and Mental Health Strategy.   
 
RESOLVED: That the work programme be approved. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 7





 

 

Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee - Wednesday 09 October 
2019 

 

A Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Approach to Children and 
Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health 2018 – 
2023 - Update 
 
Recommendations 
 
I recommend that: 
 
a. The Select Committee acknowledges the progress made regarding the 

transformation of Children & Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental 
Health services as a result of the pan-Staffordshire strategy. 

 
b. Members of the Committee continue to act as champions to raise awareness of 

positive emotional wellbeing and mental health. 
 
c. The Select Committee endorse the joint commission of a new Emotional Health 

and Wellbeing Service for children and young people across Staffordshire. 
 
Report of Cllr Mark Sutton, Cabinet Member for Children and Young People 
 

Summary 
 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
1. The Select Committee is being asked to review the progress made by the 

partnership in the implementation of the strategy. 
 

2. The Select Committee is being asked to review Appendix D (service specification) 
prior to requesting endorsement from Cabinet on Wednesday 18th December. 

 
3. The select committee members are being asked to champion the approach the 

partnership is seeking to embed.  
 

Report 
 
Background  
 
Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing Strategy 
2018-2023. 

 
4. In early 2019 Pan-Staffordshire Strategy (Appendix A) was approved by 

Staffordshire County Council, Stoke-on-Trent City Council and the six Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) within Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
5. The strategy sought to enable children and young people to live independently, 

achieving their aspirations, make a positive contribution to their community and 
when needed access the right support needed to ensure that they maintained 
positive emotional wellbeing.  

 
6. The strategy recognised the critical role of children and young people in 

influencing the support that they receive.  
 

7. Existing governance groups were reviewed and aligned to the newly developed 
strategy.  This provided renewed focus for the Future in Mind Boards, in both 
North and South Staffordshire.  These boards previously reported into the CAMHS 
Joint Commissioning Board which has been superseded by the CAMHS 
Transformation Board of the Sustainability & Transformation Partnership (STP).   

 
8. In the last 6 months both Future in Mind Boards have focussed on the following 

strands of the strategy:  high level outcomes, participation, risk and crisis, 
workforce development and community approach. 

 
9. The CAMHS Transformation Board was established recognising the need for a 

whole-system and partnership approach to transformation.  Working at pace this 
Board has already set out its intentions via a Project Initiation Document and 
Project Plan.  The plan consists of three priorities and already a range of partners 
have taken ownership of leading the workstreams: 

 
a. Priority 1 – Delivery of the strategy: A key activity here is a review of      

community CAMHS to be undertaken within 18 months. 
 

b. Priority 2 – improved pathways and whole-system approach.  Two actions 
within this workstream are to ensure service user and carer participation is 
prioritised within all services and that a consistent model for referral and triage 
is agreed across 2 single points of access (North & South Staffordshire) within 
the                                            next 12 months. 

 
c. Priority 3 – better access for those children and young people who                                            

require specialist intervention. One action within this workstream is the 
delivery of a Looked After Children (LAC) mental health pilot.  See 2.3 below for 
further details. 

 
Local Developments 
 
Mental Health Trailblazer 

 
10. In 2017, the Government published its Green paper for transforming children and 

young people’s mental health, detailing its proposal for expanding access to 
mental health care for children and young people.  Its proposals focused on 
providing additional support through schools and colleges, reducing waiting times 
for treatment.  CCGs were then asked to bid for funding to become a Trailblazer 
site. 

 

Page 10



 

 

11. Within Staffordshire there was a successful bid in Wave 1 for North Staffordshire 
and Stoke-on-Trent.  SCC analysed data to identify schools for inclusion in the 
programme using data such as deprivation indices, number of Free School Meals, 
number of LAC and others.  

 
12. Four Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) have been established; two teams 

within Stoke-on-Trent and two teams within North Staffordshire.  Education Mental 
Health Practitioners (EMHPs) form a large proportion of the Trailblazer workforce 
and will provide designated schools with early intervention mental wellbeing 
support.   

 
13. EMHPs spend one year training at university and working part-time in their 

schools.  In the second and final year they will be working full-time within their 
allocated communities.  Their remit is to support low level mental wellbeing needs 
via evidence-based assessments with individual pupils and groups, see Appendix 
B. 

 
14. In North Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent the EHMPs commenced their training at 

the start of 2019 and became partly operational within their schools from May 
2019.  There are 31 schools; a mixture of primary, secondary schools, colleges 
and alternative providers; participating in Trailblazer in North Staffordshire and the 
Moorlands, see Appendix C.  The staffing structure for each Mental Health 
Support team is outlined below. 

 
 

 
 
 

15. The requirements for this additional funding includes robust performance 
monitoring.  It is understood that the performance monitoring takes a health, 
intervention focus in the main.  However, Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust and North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust are also keen to 

Page 11



 

 

determine how they can report on the ‘softer’ outcomes associated with 
Trailblazer, for example building capacity and resource within schools to support 
students to be emotionally aware. 

 
16. More recently, East Staffordshire have been successful in Wave 2 of the 

Trailblazer Programme.  There are two MHSTs for East Staffordshire.  The 
staffing structure is as outlined in Paragraph 14 above.  30 schools have been 
identified to participate in the Trailblazer Programme; confirmation of the schools’ 
agreement to engage in the programme is currently being collated. 

 
17. Further information regarding Trailblazer can be found within Appendix B & C. 

 
Emotional Health & Wellbeing Service (1 April 2020 – 31 March 2024) 

 
18. Existing arrangements to support the emotional health & wellbeing of children & 

young people within Staffordshire comprises of two different services; 
 

a. Four Tier 2 contracts 
b. A bespoke contract to deliver a service for LAC and Care Leavers.   

 
19. The sum of the annual contract values for the four Tier 2 services, commissioned 

by SCC, is £301,016. 
 

20. The CCGs also have arrangements in place with the majority of the same Tier 2 
service providers and joint contract management arrangements are in place with 
SCC. 

 
21. Joint funding arrangements regarding the service for LAC and Care Leavers are in 

place between SCC and the CCGs to the sum of £584,259. 
 

a. Total annual funding (SCC):  £397,791 
b. Total annual funding (CCGs):  £196,468 

 
22. SCC contracts expire on the 31st March 2020.  In order to comply with Public 

Contracts Regulations 2015 SCC are required to go out to tender for the 
redesigned service which will commence on the 1st April 2020.  The funding 
outlined in Paragraphs 19 and 21 along with CCG funding currently assigned to 
Tier 2 services has been pooled to enable a new service to be jointly 
commissioned. 

 
23. We have entered in to competitive dialogue to secure the transformational 

approach we need to deliver the strategy. There were three stages to the dialogue 
process, following each stage the service specification (Appendix D) was revised 
to reflect the learning gained from the process and to further define the 
requirements.     

 
24. The new service model is outlined below.  Please refer to Appendix E for details of 

the consultation process used to inform both the strategy and the new service 
model. 

 

Page 12



 

 

 
 

25. In recognition of the critical role that children and young people play in influencing 
the services that they receive their contribution has been invaluable through the 
process we have embarked upon. Over 165 children and young people (see 
Appendix E for further details) were consulted in early 2019 to ascertain what 
functional elements a future emotional health and wellbeing service should have.  
The model outlined in the infographic in Paragraph 24 is a direct result of the 
feedback and reflects their request for choice. Children and young people wanted 
a digital option for example but did not want this to replace all face-to-face options 
for the service. They asked for simple service access along with an overarching 
ethos of listening and advising rather than medicalising. 

 
26. In order for the new service to commence on the 1st April 2020 the contract needs 

to be awarded to the successful bidder by the 2nd January 2020.  This allows time 
for a wide range of significant activities to take place during the mobilisation period 
between contract award (January) and contract commencement (April).  

 
27. Commissioners and providers of current services are working closely together on 

exit planning.  An important element of this is ensuring that children & young 
people receive the support they need before an ethical case closure to any 
therapeutic intervention. 

Page 13



 

 

Looked-after children mental health assessment pilot. 
 

28. In early 2019 SCC were informed by the Department for Education (DfE) that they 
had been successful is gaining LAC mental health assessment pilot status, along 
with nine other Local Authorities.  Since June 2019 we have engaged fully with the 
DfE and their chosen consortium members; the Anna Freud Centre and SQW 
Group Ltd to begin the planning and implementation phases of the pilot process.   

 
29. SCC are expected to implement a pilot that helps the DfE understand how to 

improve mental health and emotional wellbeing assessments that looked-after 
children receive when they enter care, as part of their health assessment.  The 
SCC pilot will focus on carrying out improved assessments that: 

 
a. Are good quality, enabling accurate identification of need; 
b. Occur at the right time; 
c. Are needs focused and person centred. 

 
30. The DfE is providing £65,000 for the period from 1st April 2019 to 30th September 

2020 for the delivery of LAC mental health assessments to between 30 – 35 
children.  This sum is to cover staff and operational costs incurred in the delivery 
of the pilot and to fund the necessary licence agreements for the pre-determined 
mental health assessment tools. 

 
31. SCC have now identified a Virtual Mental Health Lead (VMHL), Project Manager 

and two Experts by Experience (EbE) (care leavers who can provide support to 
children going through the pilot process) in order to facilitate the roll-out of 
assessments.  A clear implementation plan and interlinked LAC Mental Health 
Implementation Group are in place and direct work with children has now begun. 

 
32. Children coming into SCC Care Court and Planning Teams, between the ages of 

5 -11 years will be eligible for the pilot if they are being cared for by SCC foster 
carers.  Work to assess the emotional and mental health of these children will 
occur via a range of assessment methods involving carers, education 
professionals, LAC nurses and primarily their social worker.  This process will link 
directly to the child’s Personal Education Plan (PEP) and will eventually result in 
the formulation of a mental health and wellbeing passport that the child can take 
ownership of. 

 
33. The VMHL is delivering staff training to all relevant professionals on a monthly 

basis in order to ensure that everyone involved is conversant with the process and 
their part in it.   

 
34. The EbE role that has been identified by the consortium as a necessary element 

of the pilot will be provided by two staff members of the SCC Voice Project.  Both 
are care leavers and have direct experience that will enable them to fulfil this role.   

 
35. Learning taken from SCC and other Local Authorities will help the DfE but also 

SCC to understand how and if this assessment process can work in the long term, 
and on a much wider scale.   

 

Page 14



 

 

Conclusion 
 

36. This report outlines the progress made by partners in transforming children and 
young people’s emotional wellbeing and mental health services. Whilst it 
acknowledges that there have been additional national developments such as 
Mental Health Trailblazer and the LAC Mental Health assessments pilots these 
are in keeping with the ambitions of the strategy, we set out to deliver and have 
therefore supported its implementation.  

 
37. There is an acknowledgement that responding to the national developments to 

secure this ongoing commitment has resulted in delays to some aspects of the 
strategy, but it is recognised that this supports a more ambitious approach which 
will improve emotional wellbeing at a faster pace than expected within 
Staffordshire.  

 
38. The Emotional Wellbeing Service has been developed and embeds the vision and 

principles from the strategy and starts to realise the implementation of a new way 
of working. This approach will deliver a more equitable service across the county 
which will improve the accessibility and types of support available for children and 
young people in Staffordshire.  

 
39. Moving forward the CAMHS Transformation Board of the STP will be the vehicle 

to ensure that the joint vision within the strategy is delivered. This group is 
committed to several key activities outlined in the strategy to accelerate the 
change required to deliver the transformation required.  

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Appendix A - Starting Well, Living Well, Supporting Well: A Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire Approach to Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional 
Wellbeing 2018-2023 Strategy 

 
Appendix B - Trailblazer Information; EHMP’s curriculum of learning, types of 
difficulties children and young people can get support with, intervention medium, four-
week referral to treatment (North Staffs and Stoke on Trent only). 

 
Appendix C - Trailblazer confirmed schools in the North Staffordshire, Staffordshire 
Moorlands and East Staffordshire. 

 
Appendix D - Service specification for the provision of Improving the Emotional 
Health and Wellbeing of Children and Young People in Staffordshire. 

 
Appendix E - Consultation Information 

 

Contact Details 
 

Report Commissioner:  Sarah Newton, Commissioning Officer 
     Karen Coker, Senior Commissioning Manager 
Telephone No.:   07815 827235 / 07581 025413  
E-Mail Address:   sarah.newton@staffordshire.gov.uk 

Page 15

mailto:sarah.newton@staffordshire.gov.uk


 

 

     karen.coker@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Page 16

mailto:karen.coker@staffordshire.gov.uk


 
 

 
 

1 
 

      
 

  

 

Cannock Chase Clinical Commissioning Group 

East Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula Clinical Commissioning Group 

Stafford and Surrounds Clinical Commissioning Group 

Stoke-on-Trent Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

                                                

         

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 
 

 
 

2 
 

The Vision     

We want children and young people and their families and carers in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
to achieve their optimum potential as individuals and play an active role in their communities. This 
means enjoying good emotional wellbeing and positive mental health.  

We recognise that to deliver this vision it is not the responsibility of one organisation alone. Children, 
young people, parents, carers, family members, professionals, schools and colleges, services and 
local communities all have a part to play in transforming the way in which we support children and 
young people to achieve positive mental health and to reach their potential. 

We want children and young people to receive help at the earliest opportunity and to get the help they 
need as quickly as possible. The ambition is to enable them to: 

 Be confident and resilient to be able to achieve their goals and ambitions; 

 Make a positive contribution to society and the communities in which they live; 

 Access the right support when they need it, having an informed choice in the way in which they 
are supported; 

 Be involved in deciding how services meet their needs and are delivered. 

Priorities in Working Together 

We have made a commitment to work together across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent to strive to 
achieve the shared vision. 

The Pledge – A commitment to deliver POSITIVE change in supporting children and young 
people to Thrive - across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent partners will: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

E 

V 

T 

I 

Target 

Improve 

Value 

Engage 
Engage with communities and in the place people live to build capacity and 

resilience to help children and young people achieve their potential 

Value the fundamental importance of the family in supporting the development of 

good physical and mental health for their children 

Target effective and high quality help and support when it is needed for those most 

vulnerable children and young people which delivers sustainable improvements in 

their mental health 

Improve access to information, advice, training and support for children and young 

people, their families, professionals and the communities they live in to better 

equip them to manage their mental health 

I Identify 
Identify emerging issues for children and young people at the earliest possible 

stage, intervening promptly to prevent needs from escalating 

S Seek Seek to positively engage the voice of children and young people and those who 

support them to plan and deliver services more effectively 

Overcome Overcome challenges and be open to new ways of working which embrace 

innovative, creative and digital solutions in delivering positive outcomes for 

children, young people and their families 

O 

P Promote Promote positive mental health and emotional wellbeing and build 

resilience in stakeholders and communities 

Page 18



 
 

 
 

3 
 

 

Section 1:  The Ambition and Context 

1.1 Introduction  
 

The mental health and wellbeing of all children and young people across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent is a priority for us all.  Children and young people’s emotional wellbeing impacts on every part of 
their lives, their education, the relationships they have with their friends and family and the choices 
they make. Children and young people with good emotional health are better able to learn, participate 
and achieve their potential. It is also recognised that positive mental health is an important factor in 
enjoying good physical health. 

We know that good mental health allows children and young people to develop the resilience to cope 
with whatever life deals them and helps them to grow into well-adjusted healthy adults.  Providing 
children and young people and their families with the right type of support for their mental health at the 
earliest possible opportunity can help to avoid many of the damaging social and health problems they 
may face later in life.  

Most children and young people do well and are thriving however we know there will be times when 
they need some extra help and support. To improve services and the mental health of children and 
young people, a whole-system review is needed to ensure provision is fit for the future. There needs to 
be a re-focus away from medicalisation and mental ill health to prevention, early intervention and 
support for the mental wellness of children and young people, their families and their communities. 
 
Mental health is often influenced by many factors associated with the wider environment in which 
children and young people live. Some groups of children are more likely to experience poorer mental 
health than others. It is vital that these children and their families are supported to tackle the root 
causes of their issues. We know that effective early intervention can help prevent the development of 
poor health and longer term, enduring mental health conditions in adult life. 

Better outcomes for children and young people will be achieved through fostering collaborative 
relationships with partners and local communities. We also accept that transforming the offer to 
children and young people will mean working differently, making sure that investment is being used to 
best effect in achieving the right outcomes for communities as a whole. 

The local approach to children and young people’s emotional well-being and mental health outlined in 
this Strategy has been designed, considered and consulted on with all stakeholders. This includes 
children and young people, their parents and carers, over 400 professionals across the whole 
workforce, Commissioners and Senior Officers within Staffordshire County Council, Stoke-On-Trent 
City Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG’s), the wider children’s partnership 
including over 60 Providers and NHS England.  

1.2 Why do we need a Strategy? 

1.2.1 The National Policy Context 
 
There is a focus at a national level on the need to transform emotional wellbeing and mental health 
services for children and young people. There are a number of national strategies, policy documents 
and guidance which have informed the development of this Strategy and are outlined below: 
 

 Future In Mind – Promoting, protecting and improving children and young people’s mental 
health and wellbeing (May 2015) 
 

 The NHS Five Year Forward View Report (2014) 
 

 The Green Paper – Transformation Children and Young People’s Mental Health Provision 
(2017) outlines changes the government wants to make, which will affect schools and colleges 
and mental health services, including mental health lead in every school and college by 2025. 
 

Page 19

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728892/government-response-to-consultation-on-transforming-children-and-young-peoples-mental-health.pdf


 
 

 
 

4 
 

It proposes: 

 Mental health support teams (trained staff linked to groups of schools and colleges) working 
with schools and colleges 

 Shorter waiting times to access Children and Young People’s mental health services – testing 
ways to reduce waiting time to 4 weeks 

 A new national partnership to improve provision for 16-25 year olds 

The Strategy will focus on: 
 

 tackling stigma and improving attitudes to mental illness; 

 establishing integrated and clear pathways to support in the communities where the children 
and young people live; 

 promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention; 

 improving access to services – a system without tiers; 

 care for the most vulnerable; 

 accountability and transparency; 

 developing the workforce. 

1.2.2 The Local Policy Context 
 
This Strategy supports the delivery of a number of objectives set out in related local strategic 
documents which have been informed by engagement with key stakeholders and communities.  

The Strategy takes account of the findings and recommendations in the Children’s Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (April 2017) and the more recent Children and Young People’s Emotional 
Wellbeing Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (May 2018). We also recognise the need to take full 
account of what local communities are telling us their priorities are. 

Current Commissioning Arrangements  
 
Across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent  there are strong collaborative commissioning arrangements 
in place between the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and Local Authorities to support the 
commissioning of services for children and young people in relation to meeting their mental health and 
wellbeing needs. 
 
There are also wider links across statutory agencies to the commissioning of services in relation to 
Public Health, early help, early years and family support, education, domestic abuse and youth 
offending. Where practical, a collaborative commissioning approach has been adopted to reduce 
duplication, make best use of resources and to aid market development. 
 
Section 2: Transforming Services  

2.1 Strategic Aims  
 
We want to ensure that: 
 

 All those who support children and young people have the confidence to promote positive 
emotional health and wellbeing and have the right knowledge and skills to provide information, 
advice and support where necessary, recognising that  promoting good mental health is 
everyone’s business; 

 Children, young people, their families and communities are able to support themselves and 
each other to maintain good physical and mental health; 

 Children and young people are receiving early help and support to manage their emotional 
health needs, reducing the need for referrals to specialist services; 

 A skilled workforce is in place to support children and young people and their families across  
all levels of need; 

Page 20



 
 

 
 

5 
 

 Parents, carers and families have a better understanding of what is normal development in 
relation to their child’s/young person’s behaviours and are able to recognise and know how to 
support the early signs of emotional stress; 

 Effective support is available to parents and families who are experiencing difficulties where 
the risks from parental behaviours are likely to have an impact on the child/young person’s 
mental health. 

 
2.2 Future Commissioning Priorities  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This involves: 

 Working with Public Health to focus on prevention, promotion and building capacity 
(Thriving) within local communities to instil confidence and resilience to achieve positive 
outcomes in relation to their emotional wellbeing. In Staffordshire this aligns to the strategic 
priority of ‘People Helping People’. In Stoke-on-Trent a strategic priority is to ‘support residents 
to fulfil their potential’.   

 Prioritising early intervention and support (Getting Help and Getting More Help) for those 
in most need, ensuring that collective resources are put to best use and delivering positive 
outcomes for the most vulnerable children and young people. 

 For those children and young people for whom there are more enduring issues around their 
mental health there will be a need for a level of support to help them to stay safe and well. 
These are some of the most vulnerable, disadvantaged children and young people. We will 
ensure that there are targeted and specialist services which provide risk support (Getting 
Risk Support) and management strategies to meet complex needs, including those with 
learning disabilities, autism or both. 

Section 3: Delivering the Vision  

3.1 The Principles - We will: 
 

 Ensure that children and young people’s mental health and emotional wellbeing is recognised 
as a priority within strategic plans and in partners’ organisational structures; 

 Have collaborative commissioning arrangements in place, supported by aligned and pooled  
budgets where appropriate, making best use of collective resources; 

 Ensure that all commissioning decisions are informed by a robust assessment of need; 

 Be transparent about what is invested in local services and the outcomes delivered; 

 Participate fully in developing and implementing the national Minimum Dataset across all levels 
and ensure that arrangements are fully embedded in all contractual arrangements with regard 
to services for children and young people with mental health and emotional wellbeing needs; 

 Recognise and act on opportunities to influence local and national policy to the benefit of 
children and young people and their families. 

 

We recognise the current services that are commissioned to meet the mental health and emotional 
wellbeing needs of children and young people are not as cohesive as they could be and provision is 
variable across the County and City.  There is less support available to intervene early to meet low 
to moderate needs and to prevent these escalating. This inevitably puts pressure on the more 
specialist services in meeting higher or critical needs.  
 
We know that the commissioning of services that are responsive to the needs of children and young 
people and their families, at the right level and at the right time will deliver the best outcomes. 
 
The POSITIVE approach to change will be based upon the principles developed in the Thrive model. 
This is built upon the foundations of families functioning well, having positive wellbeing and 
supporting the wider community as opposed to managing the impact of poor mental health on the 
individual, their families, their communities and society as a whole.  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 21

https://www.annafreud.org/media/3214/thrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf
https://www.annafreud.org/media/3214/thrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf


 
 

 
 

6 
 

3.2      Priorities for strategic change  
 
In delivering transformation plans and priorities the focus will be on the following: 
 

 Strive to raise awareness of the importance of good mental health; 

 Work together to build strength and resilience and reduce exposure to risks of poor physical 
and mental health in whichever way possible; 

 Invest in services which support children and young people at the very earliest stage to prevent 
their needs escalating and to reduce the social health and economic costs associated with 
poor health and wellbeing; 

 Identify those who are exposed to being at higher risk of mental health problems, working to 
support them and their families in an integrated, holistic way to keep them safe and minimise 
risks. 
  

These below themes have been identified and mapped against the principles of the Thrive Model, 
which will enable the relevant transformation requirements to be identified and embedded in the 
delivery plan and potentially influence future commissioning intentions. 

Key Emerging POSITIVE Change Priorities: 
 
Thriving 

 Improving Access to Services; 

 Training and Development – professionals/families/carers; 

 Engagement with schools/colleges. 

Getting Help and Getting More Help 

 Digital Offer; 

 Locality Based Services (Place Based Approach/Cooperative Working); 

 Transition to adulthood; 

 Early Intervention; 

 Parental Mental Health. 

Risk Support 
 

 Self-Harm; 

 Suicide Prevention; 

 Eating Disorder; 

 Crisis Intervention; 

 Looked After Children/Care Leavers; 

 Child Sexual Exploitation; 

 Safeguarding children and young people (i.e., missing children). 

Other Generic Priorities 

 Developing the Workforce; 

 Involving CYP service design and priority setting; 

 Building Resilience among CYP, their families, carers and communities.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22

https://www.annafreud.org/media/3214/thrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf


 
 

 
 

7 
 

3.3 Shared Responsibility for improved outcomes  
 
 
 

 
 
 
3.4 What will happen next? 
 
The plan to implement and monitor the impact of this Strategy will be through the Local 

Transformation Plan.  

Section 4: Measuring the impact of success  
 
4.1 How will we know if we are making a difference? 
 
These will be the benchmarks of success in bringing about POSITIVE change: 
 

 Children and young people will be able to recognise their own mental health needs and will 
know how to manage them; 

 Families will be able to support themselves to achieve improved mental and emotional health 
and  will know how  to get help if they need it; 

 Children, young people and their families will be supported by a range of interventions, 
including from their communities, peers and professionals; 

 Schools and colleges will be clear and confident in the role they play in supporting positive 
mental health. They will be able to recognise and support children and young people with their 
needs and will know how to access help and support for those with higher needs; 

 Universal staff will be able to help children and young people and their families thrive and will be 
able to recognise when help is needed and will be part of the support plan; 

 Commissioned services will offer the best professional, evidence based expertise to children 
and young people and their families to support them to achieve the best outcomes; 

CYP 

Local 
Authorities 

Education 
Psychology 

Local 
Voluntary 
Services 

School Nurses 

School 
Mental 
Health 
Leads 

CCG 

CYP Mental 
Health 

Services 

Public Health  

Youth Justice 

Educational 
Establishments 

Communities 

Tier 4 
Provision 

Police 

Acute Service 
Providers 

Primary Care 
Provision 

Faith Groups 

Page 23

http://www.staffordsurroundsccg.nhs.uk/news-events/publications/miscellaneous/our-services/551-local-transformation-plan-for-children-and-young-people-s-mental-health-2017-18
http://www.staffordsurroundsccg.nhs.uk/news-events/publications/miscellaneous/our-services/551-local-transformation-plan-for-children-and-young-people-s-mental-health-2017-18


 
 

 
 

8 
 

 Everyone working with children, young people and their families will have the right skills, 
capabilities and knowledge to support them. 

 

High Level Outcome How will we know if this has been achieved? 

All Children and Young People (CYP) 
have improved emotional health and 
wellbeing and lead healthier lifestyles.  
 
CYP exercise their choice, control, 
and feel empowered to make healthier 
and/or safer choices in relation to their 
emotional wellbeing. 
 

More CYP will be supported to achieve positive outcomes in 
relation to their emotional wellbeing; 
 
There will be an improvement in the level and models of 
self-help and mutual/peer support; 
 
Better understanding of personal rights and options. 

 

CYP will be supported to develop the 
resilience and capacity to manage 
their emotional stresses effectively, 
utilising the most appropriate support 
available at the time they need it, 
including maximizing local provision in 
their community. 

 

An improvement in the capacity of CYP to access self-help 
following period of intervention; 
 
Increased numbers of people accessing early intervention 
support including: self-help information, advice and access 
to universal services. 

 

Parents/carers will have increased 
confidence and knowledge to better 
manage their children’s needs, where 
issues of mental health and emotional 
wellbeing impact on their functioning. 

 

Improved outcomes for parents/carers and an increased 
confidence within the whole family to manage their mental 
health issues;  
 
CYP will be better supported in safe, stable family/carer 
environments where their needs are being met. 

Professionals will have improved 
knowledge and skills to better 
understand and support CYP to 
positively manage the impact of poor 
mental health and promote optimum 
health and development of all CYP. 

 

Improved support will be available through co-working and 
collaboration between primary care, health and social care 
services to meet the totality of individual and family needs; 
 
Improved skills and confidence to support CYP experiencing 
mental health distress; 
 
Professionals engaged in supporting CYP and their 
families/carers will be aware of the local pathways and 
services and will be confident in referring individuals 
requiring additional support to the most appropriate service 
to meet their needs; 
 
Increased awareness and understanding among partners 
and stakeholders of mental health issues, the impact of 
stigma and the need to encourage positive attitudes around 
mental health. 

 
The wider community has an 
improved awareness and 
understanding of mental health issues 
which ultimately contributes to a 
reduction in health inequalities. 
 
Communities will feel supported to 
make the best use of their skills, time 
and other assets to increase self-
esteem, confidence and resilience 
among vulnerable CYP to enable 
them to feel part of and make a 
positive contribution to their 

Increased awareness/knowledge in communities of 
emotional and mental health problems, risk and protective 
factors, self-help and coping strategies; 
 
Reduced stigma and discrimination in regard to poor mental 
health; 
 
Improved access to a wide range of opportunities and 
locally responsive services to support CYP to achieve 
positive outcomes in relation to their health and wellbeing.   

Page 24



 
 

 
 

9 
 

community. 
 
CYP and their families/carers that 
need support with their emotional 
wellbeing needs will be well 
connected with their communities and 
feel less lonely and socially isolated. 

 
CYP will be supported to live safely 
and independently and optimise 
recovery. 
 
Where there is a need for additional 
support CYP will be supported to 
access the right kind of support at the 
right time in the right place. 

 

An increase in the number of CYP accessing appropriate 
support including information, advice and signposting; 
 
 
Improved access to early intervention services, that enable 
CYP to continue to function in their daily lives and help 
prevent escalation of need; 
 
Clear, integrated service pathways supporting CYP, their 
families/carers and professionals to better navigate access 
to services to best meet their needs; 
 
Reduction in the number of CYP needing crisis interventions 
or admissions to acute health and social care services; 
 
Reduction in the number of CYP entering secondary mental 
health care; 
 
A reduction in suicide rates and suicide attempts 
 
An improvement in CYPs transition experience from CYP 
services to adult mental health services; 
 
CYP will be appropriately supported to manage their 
recovery and where relevant their long term mental health 
conditions; 
 
Improved knowledge of professionals and communities of 
local service provision.  
 
CYP will feel satisfied with service delivery and the 
outcomes they have achieved 

 
CYP and their families/carers will be 
actively involved in shaping the 
design, access and performance of 
mental health services, making a 
positive contribution to sustainable 
service transformation and 
improvement planning.  

CYP will feel satisfied with service delivery and the 
outcomes they have achieved; Where service improvement 
is required CYP will play a fundamental role in informing 
and  influencing transformation and developing new ways of 
working; 
 
Involvement will lead to increased social and 
communication skills, increased confidence and self-esteem 
and improved connectivity with their communities. 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 
 

 
 

10 
 

4.2 Leadership and Governance  

There are strong leadership and governance arrangements in place to ensure delivery of the Pledge. 
The leadership and governance model will provide critical challenge and hold each other to account 
on delivering the priorities.  

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.3 Accountability, Transparency and Assurance 

 

Who will hold partners and stakeholders to account to 
deliver the Pledge? 

How will this happen? 

Leadership and Governance Pan-Staffordshire Joint 
Commissioning Board.  
 
Health and Wellbeing Boards 
 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP) – 
Mental Health Workstream 
 
Staffordshire and Stoke 
Safeguarding Children’s 
Boards 

Responsible for strategic 
decisions on transformation 
and commissioning of mental 
health services and overseeing 
the delivery of the CAMHS 
(Child and Adolescent Mental 
Health Services) Local 
Transformation Plan. 
 
Greater alignment to the STP 
governance with reporting 
mechanisms through the 
Mental Health Workstream  

CAMHS Pan 

Staffordshire 

Strategic 

Commissioning 

Board 

Northern 

Staffordshire 

Joint 

Implementation 

Group 

Stoke on Trent 

Health & 

Wellbeing 

Board 

Staffordshire 

Families 

Strategic 

Partnership 

Board 

Southern 

Staffordshire 

Joint 

Implementation 

Group 

Stoke on Trent 

Children and 

Young 
People’s 

Strategic 
Partnership 

Board 

CCG’s Joint 

Planning 

Committee 
Staffordshire 

Health & 

Wellbeing 

Board 

Sustainability & 

Transformation 

Plan Mental 

Health 

Workstream 

Page 26

https://www.nhs.uk/using-the-nhs/nhs-services/mental-health-services/child-and-adolescent-mental-health-services-camhs/
https://www.nhs.uk/using-the-nhs/nhs-services/mental-health-services/child-and-adolescent-mental-health-services-camhs/


 
 

 
 

11 
 

Communities Elected Members and Select 
Committee 
Consultative Forums 
 

Place Based Approach 
arrangements 
Elected Member feedback 
surveys/engagement events 

The voice of children and 
young people 

Young People’s Voice Steering 
Group 
Children’s Voice Project 
Staffordshire’s CAMHS 
Participation Project and 
Stoke-on-Trent Youth Council 

Challenge through a range of 
engagement and participation 
structures 

Regional Assurance and 
collaboration 

Future In Mind Steering Group 
(Regional Network) 
 

Regional Collaborative 
meetings 
Regional Assurance and Peer 
Reviews 

National Assurance and Peer 
Challenge 

NHS England 
 

Regional collaborative and 
peer challenge 
Assurance processes for the 
Local Transformation Plan 

 

Section 5: Service Insight  

5.1 The Local Landscape  
 
Understanding the emotional wellbeing and mental health needs of children and young people is 
important if their wellbeing and life chances are to be improved. 
 
Recent needs analysis has determined that across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent, the prevalence 
of poor emotional wellbeing and mental health is higher in vulnerable groups such as those living with 
a parent with mental illness, those living in family environments where there are issues of domestic 
abuse, mental ill health and substance misuse, those who are looked after children, young offenders 
and children with special education needs or learning disabilities. Financial pressures such as low 
income, debt and worklessness can have a detrimental impact on the wellbeing of families and 
communities, particularly with regard to their mental health. 
 
Whilst it is well understood that not all children who experience these vulnerabilities will go on to 
develop mental health issues, we are certain that more can be done to reduce the level of risk and 
build the resilience of children and young people from an early age and in their adolescent years to 
cope with such challenges.   
 
We understand that a child's relationship with their parents (or carers) has a major impact on their 
social and emotional development and a parents' ability to provide a nurturing relationship will depend 
on their own emotional and social wellbeing.  
 
If these challenges are to be addressed there is a need to ensure that partners and stakeholders are 
working in a much more holistic, family focused way in providing the information, advice and support 
needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
 

 
 

12 
 

5.2 Current Service Provision  
 
5.2.1 How current services are commissioned 
 
In Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent a traditional commissioning model is used, providing services 
across a number of tiers. The current investment planning reflects this model. The current model is 
outlined below: 
 

 
 
5.3 Current Investment (Commissioned Children’s Mental Health Services only) 
 
The table below shows the expenditure across the Partnership in 2017/18 and is aligned to the 
commissioning model mentioned above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tier 4 Services  

Includes inpatient 

 provision and crisis support  

for critical mental health 

 needs.  

In patient provision commissioned by  

NHS England 

Tier 3 Services  

includes community specialist provision such as Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health services (CAMHS). Includes support  
for those who require more specialist clinical intervention due 

to the complexity of need. Thresholds and elgibility criteria 
will apply  

Tier 2 Services Targeted  Support  

provision generally available to specific groups of children and young people. 
Normally an eligibility criteria applied. Intervention is structured. Includes 

commissioned emotional health and wellbeing services. 

Tier 1 Services (Universal), 

generally available to all children, young people . Includes schools , GPs, school nurses and health 
visitors 

Baseline Expenditure 
2017/18 

£25,547,734 

Tier 2/3 -  £18,801,069 

Tier 4 -  £6,746,665 

Specialist Commissioning   

(Tier 4) 

£6,746,665 (26%) 

Stoke £2,764,056 

North Staffs £1,967,705 

South Staffs £2,014,904 

Stoke on Trent 

Joint Commissioned 
services - £576,688 

(including CAMHs 
social workers )  

 
CCG Expenditure 

Total £16,913,023 

Stoke - £3,415,000 

North Staffs - £2,039,000 

South Staffs - £11,459,023 

 

 

Staffordshire County 
Council 

£1,311,358 

Tier 2  £402,542 

Tier 3 £908,816 

(including CAMHS 
Social Work Team) 

Page 28



 
 

 
 

13 
 

5.4 What other support is available? 
 
There are a range of other services which contribute to meeting the emotional health and wellbeing 
needs of children and young people. This includes the following but is not limited to: 
 

 Universal Provision – Information, advice and guidance; 

 School Nursing/Health Visitor services; 

 Mental Health Awareness Training; 

 Children Centres/Family Support services; 

 Multi-Agency Centres in educational establishments. 

 Third sector provision of mental health services  
 
5.5 Transforming Services - Key Achievements So Far  
 
There are well established collaborative commissioning arrangements in place across Staffordshire 
and Stoke-on-Trent between Local Authority and health partners. This gives us the positive foundation 
for further transforming services. Key achievements are detailed in the Local Transformation Plan and 
include progress in the following areas: 
 

 Developing the workforce to better meet the needs of children and young people; 

 Commissioning of community eating disorder services across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent; 

 Crisis support services; 

 Improved technology infrastructures; 

 Collaborative arrangements in place through the regional networks and with NHS England; 

 Robust participation arrangements inform improved service delivery. 
 
Section 6: The Local Population Needs 
 
6.1 National Data - Estimated Level of Need in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
 
There is a population of 225,000 children and young people across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. 
The Future in Mind (2014) paper confirmed that 40% of young people experience at least one mental 
disorder by 16 years old. This equates to a high percentage of the population of young people.  
  
National research indicates the following estimates in the number of children and young people likely 
to require an intervention across each of the Tiers for Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. 
 

Level of need by CAMHS tiers for children aged under 18, 2016 
 

 
Kurtz (2006) 

Joint Commissioning Panel for Mental 
Health, December 2015 

Proportion Estimated number Proportion Estimated number 

Staffordshire (0-17 population = 168,800) 

Tier 1 16% 27,000 10% 16,880 
Tier 2 7% 12,600 7% 11,810 

Tier 3 2% 3,330 3% 5,060 

Tier 4 0.1% 140 0.47% 790 

Stoke-on-Trent (0-17 population = 56,700) 

Tier 1 16% 9,000 10% 5,670 
Tier 2 7% 4,200 7% 3,970 

Tier 3 2% 1,110 3% 1,700 

Tier 4 0.1% 50 0.47% 270 

 

Source: Public Health England, Joint Commissioning Panel for Mental Health, December 2015 and 2016 mid-year population estimates, 
Office for National Statistics, Crown copyright 

 

Page 29

http://www.staffordsurroundsccg.nhs.uk/news-events/publications/miscellaneous/our-services/551-local-transformation-plan-for-children-and-young-people-s-mental-health-2017-18
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf


 
 

 
 

14 
 

 
6.2 Local Insight - What we understand about the needs of children and young people 

Research suggests around half of adults with long-term mental health problems will have experienced 
their first symptoms before the age of 14 and three-quarters by their mid-20s. 

Some of the key prevalence factors which influence poor mental health are in relation to parental and 
family environments such as worklessness and financial pressures such as debt and poverty, parental 
mental illness and domestic abuse.  School factors such as bullying (including cyber bullying) and 
peer pressure are also common.  Many children will have more than one risk factor which means that 
their risk of having poor emotional wellbeing is increased. It is recognised that many of these factors 
are not dissimilar to the root causes of many of the health and wellbeing issues that children face. 
With this in mind we will strive to work with partners to encourage whole system solutions.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Children and young people aged under 19 receiving CAMHS treatment by CCG 

 

 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18  

Cannock Chase 572 566 1,360 

East Staffordshire 406 499 1,175 

North Staffordshire 806 1,167 1,585 

South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula 865 981 1,625 

Stafford and Surrounds 517 599 1,225 

Staffordshire CCGs 3,166 3,812 6,970 

Stoke-on-Trent 1,263 1,758 2,295 

Total 4,429 5,570 9,265 

 

 

Source: Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Local Transformation Plan for Children and Young People’s Mental Health: Developing our local 
offer to secure improvements in children and young people’s mental health outcomes, November 2017 

 
 

Page 30



 
 

 
 

15 
 

6.3 Key Messages from local needs analysis 
 
 
 

 

Section 7: Engaging Stakeholders 

It is important to ensure that the Strategy truly reflects the views, wishes and aspirations of all 
partners. We believe that this is the right way to determine the future priorities, where changes are 
required, where resources will be invested and what will deliver the best outcomes for children, young 
people and families. 
 
A number of engagement events  have been facilitated during the development stages to help to 
determine what is working well, what needs to change and what needs to happen next to make a 
POSITIVE change. 
 
7.1 What children and young people have told us. 
 
The views and opinions of children and young people were sought through a range of methods to 
share what they saw as the main issues and priorities with the current provision. The overall 
messages that have come from discussions include the following:  
 

The prevalence of poor social and 
emotional development at early years is 

thought to be around 10-30%, with 
significant variations between localities 

Around one in four children aged 11-12 
have an emotional wellbeing issue. For 
5-16 year olds, 1 in 10 have a diagnosed 

mental health condition 

In 2016/17 over 900 children and young 
people in Staffordshire and Stoke were 
admitted to hospital due to self harm 

The prevalence of mental health disorders in 
young men aged 16-24 is 10%. This is much 

higher at 28% in young women 

Around 10-15% of mothers have mild to 
moderate depression during pregnancy; 

3% have severe depression 

Based on  the 'Feeling the Difference' 
survey data, around 8% of young people 

aged 16-24 in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent felt anxious. 

Page 31



 
 

 
 

16 
 

 
Comments from young people at a range of engagement events 
 
We know that mental health is important to children and young people. During 2017, almost 6,650 
young people aged 11-18 in Staffordshire (equating to 8% of this age group) took part in the UK Youth 
Parliament (UKYP)’s annual Make Your Mark public survey.  The 2017 results found that Staffordshire 
children identified mental health as the second most critical issue they would like to see the UKYP 
campaign further on; this compares with it ranking fourth across England and sixth in Stoke-on-Trent.  

In the Needs Analysis Survey completed during the Spring of 2018, children and young people 
identified several barriers that exist in relation to services. They displayed a limited knowledge of 
mental health services which were available to them and where to go to access help. They feel there 
is a stigma attached to having poor mental health and generally would not always feel comfortable 
approaching a professional for support.  They advised that they would like to see more education 
around mental and emotional wellbeing and better information on what services are available to help 
them. 
 
The effective development of preventative approaches to children and young people’s emotional 
health and wellbeing will require a continued commitment to the voice of children and young people. 
Engagement, with rising levels of participation should see children and young people informing the 
direction that preventative services take.  An increased awareness of pertinent issues faced by 
children and young people, including the rise in digital technologies and social media, would ensure 
that any commissioned services reflect need, are accessible and follow a Place/Asset Based 
Approach.  
 
Children and young people can act as brokers (translating language, policy and insight) whilst bringing 
innovation and vision. Increasing levels of participation should ensure that the experiences of children 
and young people remain at the centre of service design, allowing us to ensure continuous 
improvement and should follow Arnstein’s Ladder of Participation as outlined below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
 

 
 

17 
 

7.2 What schools/colleges/educational communities have told us 
 
Between May and July 2018, a wide range of educational partners across Staffordshire and Stoke on 
Trent were engaged in several workshop forums through the national Mental Health in Schools Link 

Programme with the aim of sharing expertise and developing a joint vision for children and young 
peoples’ mental health and emotional wellbeing in each locality. 
 
Detailed information has been gathered to help to understand some of the challenges and ideas on 
how these could be addressed through this Strategy. The feedback from this engagement identified 
the following: 
 

 Adopt a whole school approach 

 Engage and connect with wider communities 

 Prioritise professional learning for school staff which will equip them to manage issues of poor 
mental health which impacts on behaviours 

 
7.3 What Parents and Carers have told us  
 
In the spring 2018 Stoke on Trent City Council commissioned the Centre for Health and Development 
(CHAD) to carry out consultation with children and their parents/carers who have accessed mental 
health services to find out their opinions on the provision available. 
 
The consultation was designed to understand the experiences and assets of how children keep 
themselves emotionally well. Parents/carers were asked about their own experiences of services 
available to their children and themselves. This is what they shared: 
 

 Better access to information with clear links via key websites to a directory of all services; 

 Improved access to information about what services are available 

 Better collaboration between services; 

 Emotional wellbeing support should be embedded within the culture of schools, with 
sustainable resources in place to support  

 Informal support networks are very important and should be encouraged; 

 Family support would be useful for those parents whose children are accessing services 
themselves. 

 Children use a variety of recreational strategies to keep themselves emotionally well. It is 
important that shared learning is encouraged around what works; 

 
7.4 What Providers have told us 
 
In May 2018 a Market Engagement and Shaping Event was held in Staffordshire, attended by over 60 
local, national and regional providers of children’s emotional wellbeing and mental health services. 
Providers and partners were asked about the challenges that they face and asked for their input on 
transforming the commissioning landscape. They shared the following views: 

Market Challenges Transforming the Commissioning Landscape 

School and family links are important but are 
often not part of  solution planning 

Involve providers in market shaping 

Access and navigation of services is often 
complex and disjointed 

Prioritise prevention and early intervention. 
Aim not to create dependency 

There is limited knowledge of what services are 
available  

Introduce clear and integrated pathways. Have a 
whole system approach but recognise localities 
and diverse communities 

Investment in services is inequitable – no 
balance between prevention and crisis 
intervention 

Provider better support for schools and their 
communities, equipping with skills to manage 
emerging issues and knowledge of where to 
refer when more help is needed 

Families are not always resilient to provide Provide flexible models of support – be where 

Page 33



 
 

 
 

18 
 

support due to their own pressures. Support 
systems should be built around family networks 

children are and build on peer support. 
Recognise service user choice 

Demand for services for low to moderate needs 
is at an all-time high. This puts pressure on 
waiting times and also on higher level services 
as needs escalate 

Consider co-location and integrated working – 
no wrong front door. 

Contracts are often too restrictive and do not 
encourage providers to test out more flexible 
approaches. 

Maximise the opportunities around more flexible 
model of support such as through the use of 
technology and digital platforms 

The level of need is rising, particularly those with 
more complex needs such as Looked After 
Children and their parents/carers 

Value the role of the parent, family and wider 
community is supporting the child/young 
person’s needs 

 

7.5 What Partners have told us 
 
During June and July 2018 two stakeholder events were held in Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent to 
help to inform the Strategy. 35 stakeholders in Staffordshire and 33 in Stoke on Trent. Stakeholders 
were asked about priorities for transforming services and how to ensure that the whole support system 
around the family’s mental health is effective. The key emerging themes included: 
 
Improved Information, Advice and Support  
 

 Everyone needs to be better informed of what is available. 

 An increased, shared, professional understanding of the subject matter and the roles that 
different professionals play in supporting children and young people effectively.  
 

Transforming Services 
 

 Consider co-location, integration of services and multi-agency models of support; 

 Recovery focussed approach rather than building dependency; 

 Commission based on outcomes rather than outputs; 

 Consider what works now and build on these positive foundations; 

 Simplify referral pathways and assessment processes. Clear pathways and timely, accessible 
services; 

 Move away from a medicalised approach; 

 Developing the workforce – invest in the right way to improve skills and confidence that 
enables staff to competently support children and young people engaging in positive risk taking 
behaviour.  

 Make intelligent use of technology; 

 Instil a balance between brief intervention and more structured packages of support, which is 
needs led rather than system led; 

 Encourage peer support where appropriate. 
 
Whole System/Family Support 
  

 Involve family and carers at the earliest stage; 

 Parental mental health is equally important. A child not coping may be due to the parents 
struggling; 

 Parents need more tools e.g. positive parenting and family support; 

 Consider a more joined up approach with adult mental health services around parental mental 
health. Understand the influences and impacts on a child/young person’s mental health. 

 
Communities Supporting Each Other 
 

 Community capacity building is fundamental to promoting positive emotional and physical 
health and provide support when needed as part of social value role; 

Page 34



 
 

 
 

19 
 

 Maximise the use of wider community initiatives – use an asset based approach of keeping 
people well and resilient, promoting and embedding positive emotional health and community 
integration. 
 

Role of the school/college communities 
 

 Better knowledge and training for professionals. Schools need to know who to approach and 
what is available; 

 Schools should have emotional health and wellbeing policies as standard and emotional 
wellbeing should be part of the curriculum; 

 Consider multi-use of school buildings as a community resource and hub for on-site support. 
This will bring wider benefits. 

 
It is acknowledged that most service practitioners and professional partners are confident in identifying 
when a child or young person has emotional wellbeing needs and in dealing with low levels of 
emotional wellbeing. They are knowledgeable about how to get more specialist support for children 
and young people with more complex needs. Educational partners have shared that they would like to 
be more confident in knowing how to access or signpost children and families to locally available 
community solutions or networks of support. Some of the key issues raised were as follows: 
 

 Enough capacity in specialist services to meet the needs of the most vulnerable children and 
young people; 

 Accessible and flexible services, offered locally at a range of venues and times; 

 Better communication, training and improved knowledge and partnership working;  

 Improved access to support and appropriate resources, particularly for those with low to 
moderate needs;  

 The importance of nurturing and developing positive relationships with the child and the family 
environment. 
 

7.6      What Leaders have told us  
 
Close work with Elected Members has taken place to engage their views as informed representatives 
of local communities. 
 
In Staffordshire, engagement with the All Party Members Group (APMG), which has shown a keen 
interest in considering how to achieve innovation in practice in supporting children and young people 
with mental health and emotional wellbeing issues, has been invaluable. The Group has supported the 
engagement programme through facilitating a series of workshops, which has included presentations 
and debate with school and college professionals, commissioners, service providers and children and 
young people themselves. 
 
This shared learning has identified the following priorities for change: 

 

 Training and awareness at all levels for teachers, governors, parents as well as children, at all 
ages throughout their time at schools and colleges; 

 A need to develop and strengthen a sense of community and Citizenship; 

 Community networks for sharing ideas and approaches through the Place/Asset Based 
Approach; 

 Focus on early years; 

 Access to information; developing and positive messaging;  

 Training and awareness; 

 Tackling root causes through whole system approach; 

 Impact of social media on children and young people. 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 

 
 

20 
 

The below infographic highlights the findings from these engagement sessions: 

 

 

The change required in addressing these priorities is not to be underestimated. The engagement with 
children and young people, their families and service providers in shaping and sharing the vision will 
continue to support the change and drive improvement. The commitment to change is recognised 
throughout this Strategy and marks the start of the next five years in transforming the offer to children, 
young people and their families. 

Page 36



APPENDIX B – TRAILBLAZER 

 

EMHP’s Curriculum of Learning at Northampton University (1 year course) 

includes: 

 Module 1: Children & Young People’s Mental Health Settings: Context and 

Values  

 Module 2: Assessment & Engagement  

 Module 3: Evidence based interventions for common mental health problems 

with children and young people (Theory and Skills)  

 Module 4: Working, assessing and engaging in education settings 

 Module 5: Common Problems and Processes in education settings 

 Module 6: Interventions for emerging mental health difficulties in education 

settings 

 

Types of difficulties that children and young people can get support with. 

 Low level emotional difficulties- Anxiety/ low mood 

 Attentional difficulties 

 Affect dysregulation 

 Self harm 

 Substance misuse 

 Sleep 

 Common adverse experiences 

 Bullying, exam stress, use and impact of social media 

 

Intervention Medium 

 Consultation 

 Group work 

 Children and young people, parenting 

 Individual work 

 Health promotion 

 Signposting 

 Peer mentoring 

 Guided self help 

 

Four- week Referral to Treatment Wait (being piloted in North Staffordshire and 

Stoke ONLY). 

 This will be across the geography not just limited to those schools who have 

been identified within the Trailblazer. 

 Aimed at testing if this can be achieved. 

Page 37



 Extra resources as part of the Trailblazer, but these are minimal. 

Approximately 12 extra staff in CAMHS. 

 Necessity to review CAMHS current referral processes. 

 This will be supported by the implementation of digital access to services to 

complement existing access arrangements. 

 Importance of defining what treatment is- it must be meaningful. 

 

Page 38

http://www.mentalbeing.co.uk/


APPENDIX C – TRAILBLAZER SCHOOLS 
 
Schools involved in Trailblazer in North Staffordshire: 

 The Kidsgrove Primary School,  

 Churchfields Primary School,  

 Thursfield Primary School,  

 Crackley Bank Primary School,  

 Chesterton Primary School,  

 St Saviours Academy,   

 St John the Evangelist Catholic Primary,   

 The Kidsgrove Secondary School,  

 Chesterton Community Sports College,   

 Dove Bank Primary School,  

 The Kings C of E School,  

 St Thomas C of E Primary School,   

 Reginald Mitchell Primary School,  

 Springhead Community Primary School,  

 CEDARS Pupil Referral Unit. 
 
Schools involved in Trailblazer in Staffordshire Moorlands: 

 Kingsfield First School,  

 Knypersley First School,  

 Moor First School,  

 Squirrel Hayes First School,  

 Oxhey First School,  

 James Bateman Junior High School,  

 Biddulph High School,  

 Woodhouse Academy,  

 Leek High Specialist Technology School,  

 Westwood College,  

 Churnet View Middle School,  

 Leek First School,  

 Blackshaw Moor CE (CV) First School,  

 Beresford Memorial CE (CV) First School,  

 All Saints CE (CV) First School,  

 Horton Lodge Community Special School and Key Learning Centre. 
 
Schools involved in Trailblazer in East Staffordshire: 

 Victoria Community School,  

 Riverview Primary School,  

 Grange Infant School,  

 Shobnall Primary School,  

 Edge Hill Junior School,  

 Blessed Robert Sutton Catholic Voluntary Academy,  

 Paulet High School,  

 The Violet Way Academy,  

 Lansdowne: A De Ferrers Trust Academy,  

 Eton Park Junior,  

Page 39



 Anglesey Primary Academy,  

 Scientia Academy,  

 Tower View Primary School,  

 Holy Trinity CofE (C) Primary School,  

 Burton PRU,  

 Christ Church Primary School,  

 Abbot Beyne School,  

 Windsor Park CofE Middle School,  

 Picknalls First School,  

 Oldfields Hall Middle School,  

 St Mary's CofE (A) First School,  

 Thomas Alleyne's High School,  

 St Joseph's Catholic Primary School,  

 Tynsel Parkes Primary Academy,  

 The Fountains High School,  

 The Fountains Primary School. 
 

Page 40



   

  

1  
  

Staffordshire County Council’s Children, Children & Families Health & Wellbeing 

Commissioning Portfolio 

Service Specification for the provision of Improving the Emotional 
Health and Wellbeing of Children and Young People in 

Staffordshire. 

 
THIS DOCUMENT FORMS PART OF THE CONTRACT FOR THE PROVISION OF THE 

SERVICE  
 

 

Service: 
Improving the Emotional Health and 
Wellbeing of Children and Young People in 
Staffordshire  

Commissioner Lead: 
Sarah Newton, Families & Communities 
Commissioning Officer  

Commissioner Contact No: 07815827235 

Commissioner Contact 

Email: 
sarah.newton@staffordshire.gov.uk   

Procurement Lead: Lisa Dobric, Category Manager 

Procurement Contact No: 01785 278192 

Procurement Contact 

Email: 
lisa.dobric@staffordshire.gov.uk  

 

 

Contract Commencement Date: 01/04/2020 

Contract End Date: 31/03/2024 (with the option to extend for a further 1 year 
until the 31/03/2025) 

 
{This document will form part of the final Contract for the provision of Service 

and will be Schedule B} 
 

  

Page 41

mailto:sarah.newton@staffordshire.gov.uk
mailto:lisa.dobric@staffordshire.gov.uk


   

  

2  
  

CONTENTS 
 

SERIAL 
NUMBER 

TOPIC PAGE  
 

0.0 GLOSSARY  
 

4 

0.1 DEFINITIONS TABLE 
 

5 

1.0 
     1.1 
     1.2 
      

BACKGROUND 
     National Context 
     Local Context 
      

9 
9 
10 
 

2.0 CURRENT SERVICE CONFIGURATION  
 

12 

3.0 THE VISION 13 
 

4.0 
     4.1 
     4.2 
     4.3 
     4.4 
 

SERVICE SCOPE 
     Service Principles 
     Eligibility 
     Aims 
     Objectives 
      

13 
14 
15 
16 
16 

5.0 
     5.1 
     5.2 
     5.3 
          5.3.1 
          5.3.2 
     5.4 
          5.4.1 
          5.4.2 
          5.4.3 
     5.5 
     5.6 
     5.7 
     5.8 
     5.9 
     5.10 
     5.11 
            5.11.1 
            5.11.2 
            5.11.3 
     5.12 
     5.13 
 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION  
     The THRIVE Framework 
     Preventative 
     Access Arrangements 
          Place Based Approach   
          Presenting Conditions 
     Referral Arrangements 
          Response Times and Prioritisation  
          Inappropriate referrals 
          Re-referrals 
     Initial Assessment 
     Support Planning 
     Intervention 
     Direct, Indirect and Structured Interventions 
     Number of interventions 
     Did Not Attend Arrangements 
     Transition and Exit Planning Arrangements 
          Transition Plans 
          Planned Exit 
          Unplanned Exit 
     Service User Voice / Participation 
     Innovation and the Digital Offer 

17 
17 
17 
18 
18 
19 
19 
21 
22 
22 
22 
23 
23 
23 
24 
24 
24 
24 
24 
24 
25 
25 
 

6.0 
     6.1 
     6.2 
          6.2.1 
          6.2.2  
          6.2.3 
          6.2.4  
          6.2.5 
     6.3 
     6.4 
          6.4.1 
     6.5 

OPERATIONAL SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 
     Service Availability 
     Personnel Requirements 
          Recruitment 
          Structure 
          Competencies, Qualifications and Professional   
          Registration 
          Management and Professional Support 
     Collaborative Working  
     Service Mobilisation 
          Phased Approach Plan 
     Safeguarding 

25 
25 
26 
26 
26 
26 
 

27 
27 
27 
28 
29 

Page 42



   

  

3  
  

     6.6 
      
     6.7 
          6.7.1 
     6.8 
          6.8.1 
     6.9 
          6.9.1 
          
          6.9.2 
          6.9.3 
          6.9.4 
          6.9.5      
      

     Record Keeping, Data Collection and Information   
     Sharing 
     Performance 
          Contract Review Meetings 
     Complaints, Compliments and Customer Feedback 
          Complaints regarding the Council 
     Other Relevant Services 
          Children and Young People’s Health and Wellbeing  
          Programme (0-19 years) 
          Chat Health        
          Universal Provision and Preventative Services 
          Acute/Crisis and Intervention Services 
          Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) 
 

30 
 

31 
31 
31 
32 
32 
32 
 

32 
33 
33 
33 

7.0 
     7.1 

VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
          Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 

33 
34 

8.0 INSPECTIONS 
 

34 

9.0 
    9.1 

RISK STRATIFICATION 
          Exit Planning 

34 
34 

10.0 
 

SOCIAL VALUE 35 

11.0 
 

COMMERCIAL OFFER 35 

12.0 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 35 

 
A.1 
A.2 
A.3 
A.4 
A.5 
 
A.6 

APPENDIX 
      Place Based Approach 
      South Staffordshire Needs Analysis for Trailblazer 
      North Staffordshire Needs Analysis for Trailblazer 
      Staffordshire County Council Residential Placement Information 
      Commissioned Services across Staffordshire for Adult’s Emotional 
      Health, Social Inclusion and Recovery Contracts   
      Premises Information                   

 
43 
44 
49 
52 
55 
 

57 

 

Page 43



   

  

4  
  

0.0 GLOSSARY 
 

Care Leaver          CL  
 
Care Quality Commission       CQC 
 
Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services     CAMHS 
 
Children and Young People/Child and Young Person    CYP 
 
Clinical Commissioning Groups       CCGs 
 
Cognitive Behavioural Therapy      CBT 
 
Competitive Dialogue        CD 
 
Disclosure Barring Service        DBS 
 
Early Help Assessment        EHA 
 
Education and Health Care Plan      EHCP 
 
Emotional Health and Well Being      EHWB 
 
English as a Second Language      ESL 
 
General Data Protection Regulation       GDPR 
 
General Practitioner        GP 
 
Key Performance Indicators       KPI 
 
Information, Advice and Guidance       IAG 
 
Initial Assessment         IA 
 
Initial Consultation         IC 
 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment       JSNA 
 
Looked After Children         LAC 
 
Local Transformation Plan       LTP 
 
Mental Health Service Data Set       MHSDS 
 
National Health Service       NHS 
 
National Institute of Health & Care Excellence     NICE 
 
Phased Approach Plan       PAP  
 
Place Based Approach        PBA 
 
Special Educational Needs or Disability                                                              SEND 
 
Staffordshire Safeguarding Children Board     SSCB 

Page 44



   

  

5  
  

0.1 DEFINITIONS TABLE 

 
 

Term/Abbreviation 
 

 
Definition 

Annual Report The Provider is required to produce and supply an 
Annual Report to the Council.  The content and 
format of the Annual Report will be discussed 
between the Authorised Officer and Contract 
Manager.  The final decision regarding the content 
and format of the Annual Report will be decided by 
the Authorised Officer, acting reasonably.  The 
Annual Report must be submitted to the Authorised 
Officer by the 31

st
 May each year and will be 

discussed at the next scheduled quarterly Contract 
Review meeting or an additional meeting 
specifically scheduled for this purpose. 

Brief Intervention(s) 
 

Involves making the most of an opportunity to raise 
awareness, share knowledge and get a CYP 
thinking about making changes to improve their 
health and behaviours.  Can also be used to 
identify a real or potential problem and then 
increase motivation and understanding on how to 
deal with it.  Brief Interventions would not exceed 
two (2) direct or structured contacts. 

CCGs  Cannock Chase Clinical Commissioning Group 

 East Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group  

 North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

 South East Staffordshire and Seisdon 
Peninsula Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Stafford and Surrounds Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

CYP Refers to CYP aged between five (5) and eighteen 
(18) years, three hundred and sixty-four (364) days 
of age and CLs and/or individuals with special 
education needs or disabilities (SEND) until the age 
of twenty (24) years and three hundred and sixty-
four (364) days. 
 

Corporate Parent Means the role of the Council as described in 
Section 1 (Corporate Parenting Principles) of the 
Children & Social Work Act 2017 (as amended or 
re-enacted from time to time).  

De-escalation Means CYP being supported from Direct or 
Structured Interventions to Indirect, IAG or the 
Digital Offer within this Service. 

Digital Offer  
 

 

 

 

  

Refers to the digital platform, which is available on 
any web-enabled, internet connected device 
(including laptop, smart phone, tablet) and that 
enables CYP to access self-directed support.   
The Digital Offer must incorporate the following:   

 Mental health or emotional wellbeing 
applications (consider referring or signposting 
to pre-existing, reputable applications). 

Page 45



   

  

6  
  

 Online peer support forums. 

 Online training and tools. 

 Online therapy options that must be NICE 
compliant in their approach and delivered by 
well-trained clinicians or therapists. 

 An interactive website that offers IAG for CYP, 
their Families and professionals. 

 Online questionnaires. 

 Social media to develop peer support initiatives, 
advertise the Service and cascade information 
(to possibly include Instagram, YouTube and 
Facebook). 

 Use of Skype / Facetime and other similar 
video messaging options to deliver support to 
CYP, Families and professionals. 

Direct, Indirect and Structured Intervention(s) Interventions are either Direct, typically involving a 
meeting with the CYP in question, or Indirect, 
involving work with a Family or professionals to 
encourage them to be more effective in helping the 
CYP.  Structured Interventions are where there is 
an agreed plan, and this is linked to clinical input 
and a basis for treatment / support. 
Direct, Indirect or Structured interventions would 
not be expected to exceed six (6) separate 
interventions. 

Early Help Requires the Provider to identify emerging 
problems and potential unmet needs of CYP and to 
work in partnership with CYP and/or their Families 
in order for: 

 CYP/Families to help themselves,  

 build on their strengths to resolve the issue(s), 
and  

 to become more resilient to prevent the issue(s) 
from reoccurring. 

Early Intervention Means identifying and providing effective early 
support to CYP who are at risk of poor outcomes. 

Escalation  Means CYP being supported from: 

 Indirect, IAG or the Digital Offer to Direct or 
Structured Interventions within this Service. 

 This Service to other services such as CAMHS, 
Safeguarding etc. 

Evidence Base(d) Means any practice/interventions/support that are 
based on / informed by objective evidence, rather 
than intuition or other unproven methods. 

Family / Families 
 

Refers to a person or group of people that are 
related by birth, affinity or co-residence to the child 
or young person requiring emotional health and 
wellbeing support. (For example, parents or carers)   
 

Goal Based Outcome(s) (GBOs) Means a way of evaluating progress towards a goal 
in clinical work with CYP and their Families.  GBOs 
compare how far a CYP feels they have moved 
towards reaching a goal that they have set for 
themselves at the beginning of an intervention. 
GBOs used by the Provider for this Service must be 
discussed and agreed with the Authorised Officer. 

Page 46



   

  

7  
  

Initial Consultation(s) 
 
 
 

The initial contact made following receipt of referral.  
Consultation should ideally involve the CYP or 
someone significant who can articulate the needs 
and experiences of the CYP.  Can be via phone, 
online conversation or face to face. 

Initial Assessment(s) 
 
 
 

An initial assessment is to build up an accurate 
picture of needs. Different professionals and 
agencies should be involved in the assessment and 
decisions around care should be jointly agreed. 

Local Transformation Plan (LTP) A joint plan developed in partnership by CCGs with 
commissioners and providers across health, social 
care, education, youth justice and the voluntary 
sector to design and provide the best possible 
children & young people’s mental health services 
locally. 

Paired Outcome(s) A pair of scores repeating the same questionnaire 
with the same person at the beginning and the end 
of an intervention - in order to track change across 
the intervention. 

Pan-Staffordshire Emotional Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy 

A joint strategy across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent; developed by the Council, Stoke-on-Trent 
City Council and the CCGs; aimed at ensuring 
children & young people achieve good emotional 
wellbeing and positive mental health. 

Pathway(s)  
 
 

The process of assessing, triaging and directing 
contact to ensure that CYP are directed to the most 
appropriate service available to them at the time of 
contact. 

Performance Report A report to be produced by the Provider and 
submitted to the Authorised Officer each quarter, as 
follows: 
 

Quarter: *Reporting deadline 
(*or nearest Working Day 

to the reporting deadline): 

1 (1
st
 April to 30

th
 June) 14

th
 July 

2 (1
st
 July to 30

th
 

September) 
14

th
 October 

3 (1
st
 October to 31

st
 

December) 
14

th
 January 

4 (1
st
 January to 31

st
 

March) 
14

th
 April 

 
The format and content of the Performance Report 
is to be decided by the Authorised Officer, acting 
reasonably, but will include the Provider reporting 
Service performance against the Performance 
Management Framework of this Service 
Specification. 

Premises A building or venue occupied by a business. Co-
location or shared premises could be considered 
where appropriate to usage.  Premises do not need 
to be static or fixed throughout the Contract Period.  

Prevention / Preventative Methods or activities that seek to reduce or deter 
specific or predictable problems, protect the current 
state of well-being, or promote desired outcomes or 
behaviours. 

Page 47



   

  

8  
  

Risk Assessment(s) 
 
 

A Risk Assessment should identify key factors that 
indicate a pattern or that risk is increasing. It should 
also identify a CYP strengths to off-set or reduce 
risk. Risk is dynamic and can be affected by 
circumstances that can change over the briefest of 
time-frames. 

Social Value A process whereby organisations meet their 
contractual commitment to provide goods, services, 
works and utilities in a way that achieves value for 
money on a whole life basis in terms of generating 
benefits not only to the organisation, but also to 
society, the environment and the local economy by 
contributing to the long-term wellbeing and 
resilience of individuals, communities and society in 
general.  

Staffordshire Staffordshire only refers to the eight districts 
detailed in section 1.2 of this Specification.  It does 
not include Stoke on Trent. 

Sustainability and Transformation Partnership Partnerships developed to run services in a more 
coordinated way, to agree system-wide priorities, 
and to plan collectively how to improve residents’ 
day-to-day health. 

Trailblazer(s) New mental health support in schools & colleagues 
funded by NHS England.  Details regarding 
Trailblazer within Staffordshire can be found in 
Appendix A.2 and A.3. 

Transition(s) 
 
 

The transfer of ‘care’ from one professional to 
another (this could be within a Clinical, Educational 
or Health and Social Care setting).  It can refer to 
the nature of the support required or indeed the age 
of the CYP.   

Universal Provision Services, information, support, that are available to 
all CYP i.e. not targeted at some groups of CYP. 

Vulnerable A child or young person who is exposed to the risk 
of emotional instability. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



   

  

9  
  

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 National Context 
 
The Government’s aspiration for improving the EHWB of CYP was outlined in the Department of Health’s 
report entitled ‘Future in Mind’, which was released in 2015.  
 
The key themes emerging from the report which are fundamental to creating a system that effectively 
supports the EHWB of CYP are: 
 

 Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention. 

 Improving access to effective support. 

 Care of the most vulnerable. 

 Accountability and transparency. 

 Developing the workforce. 
 
The full report can be accessed using the following hyperlink: 
https://assets.publishing.Service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/C
hildrens_Mental_Health.pdf 
 
In January 2019, the NHS published their Long-Term Plan.  It is a plan that was drawn up by frontline staff, 
patient groups and national experts with an ambitious but realistic vision for the NHS over the next ten (10) 
years. The plan specifically references the need for a strong start in life for children and young people, 
recognising EHWB as an important element. 
 
The document also included information detailing the characteristics of children and young people suffering 
from poor EHWB. These characteristics must be recognised, considered and incorporated into the Service 
model in Staffordshire. Highlighted within the Long-Term Plan is further detail explaining how EHWB support 
and services will be developed and funded to benefit children and young people.  
 
The full report can be accessed using the following hyperlink: 
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-
people-in-england/2017/2017 
 
In conjunction with the aforementioned documents, there are numerous additional national policies and 
publications related to the subject of this Service Specification.  These include: 
 

 No Health Without Mental Health (DH, 2011). 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_da
ta/file/138253/dh_124058.pdf 

 

 Children and Families Act (DfE, 2014). 
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/get-act-children-and-fami-acf.pdf 

 

 Crisis Care Concordat (DH & signatories, 2014). 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-health-crisis-care-agreement 

 Five Year Forward View (NHSE, 2014). 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf 

 

 Delivering With and Delivering Well (NHSE, 2014). 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/delvr-with-delvrng-well.pdf 

 

 Promoting the Health and Wellbeing of Looked-After Children (DfE and DH March 2015). 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/promoting-the-health-and-wellbeing-of-looked-
after-children--2 

 

Page 49

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/138253/dh_124058.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/138253/dh_124058.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/get-act-children-and-fami-acf.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-health-crisis-care-agreement
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/delvr-with-delvrng-well.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/promoting-the-health-and-wellbeing-of-looked-after-children--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/promoting-the-health-and-wellbeing-of-looked-after-children--2


   

  

10  
  

 Promoting CYP’s EHWB (A Whole School and College Approach) (Public Health England, March 
2015). 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/promoting-children-and-young-peoples-
emotional-health-and-wellbeing 

 

 NSPCC Achieving Emotional Wellbeing for Looked After Children (June 2015). 
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/research-resources/2015/achieving-emotional-wellbeing-
looked-after-children-whole-system-approach/ 

 

 Mental Health and Behavior in Schools (DfE, 2015).  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-health-and-behaviour-in-schools--2 

 

 Counselling in Schools, A Blueprint for the Future (DfE, 2015). 
             https://dera.ioe.ac.uk/25515/ 

 SEND Code of Practice: 0 to 25 years. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-code-of-practice-0-to-25 

 
1.2 Local Context 
 
Staffordshire has a diverse population with differing needs; it has large rural areas as well as highly 
populated urban areas. Although it is classed as one of the least-deprived, upper-tier local authorities in 
England (ranking 116th out of 152 authorities in terms of level of overall deprivation), there are pockets of 
deprivation and disadvantage within the county. The map below illustrates patterns of deprivation using the 
most recent Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) data.  

 

Page 50

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/promoting-children-and-young-peoples-emotional-health-and-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/promoting-children-and-young-peoples-emotional-health-and-wellbeing
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/research-resources/2015/achieving-emotional-wellbeing-looked-after-children-whole-system-approach/
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/research-resources/2015/achieving-emotional-wellbeing-looked-after-children-whole-system-approach/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-health-and-behaviour-in-schools--2
https://dera.ioe.ac.uk/25515/


   

  

11  
  

 

Staffordshire covers a large geographical area and it is divided into eight (8) districts: Cannock Chase, East 
Staffordshire, Lichfield, Newcastle-under-Lyme, South Staffordshire, Stafford, Staffordshire Moorlands and 
Tamworth.  
 
Relevant data from the 2017 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
is outlined below: 
 

 Staffordshire had a population of 862,600 people.  

 Approximately 168,800 people were children and young people aged zero (0) to eighteen (18) years 
of age, representing 19.5% of the total population.  

 Within this element of the population, the Council fulfils Corporate Parent responsibilities for 1,122 
Looked After Children (LAC) and 504 Care Leavers (CL). On the 29

th
 of May 2019, 119 of 

Staffordshire’s LAC were residing in residential care placements across the United Kingdom.  27 
CYP within the figure have special educational needs and disability (SEND).  For a further detailed 
breakdown of the cohort of children and young people placed within residential settings, please refer 
to Appendix A.4. 

 Overall, the JSNA findings present a positive picture of Staffordshire children and young people 
enjoying positive EHWB. In determining the priorities, it is recognised that some children and young 
people are more vulnerable and susceptible to poor mental health than others.  

 There are estimated to be around 10,400 children and young people in Staffordshire aged five (5) to 
sixteen (16) years old with a recognised mental health disorder. It was viewed that this figure 
accounted for some of the 12% of Staffordshire children and young people who had reported low-life 
satisfaction, which is comparable to the national average of 14%.  

 

Page 51



   

  

12  
  

The full report can be accessed using the following hyperlink: 
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-
Assessment-April-2017.pdf 
 
A JSNA based on emotional wellbeing needs of children and young people in Staffordshire was conducted in 
May 2018. It highlighted some salient points and further strengthened the need to improve relevant services 
for children and young people. Commissioners’ priorities can be found in section 8 of the document where 
key points and emerging priorities can be found. The full report can be accessed using the following 
hyperlink: 
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-JSNA-
July-2018-FINAL.pdf 
 
In May 2019, a Public Health Epidemiologist completed two pieces of work to support the Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in making Staffordshire’s bids to become a Trailblazer site in the second and 
third wave of the programme.  Needs analysis was carried out to cover North Staffordshire and South 
Staffordshire.  Please refer to Appendix A.2 and A.3 for these documents.  
  
Various stakeholders have a key role in transforming the way in which the Council and CCGs support 
children and young people to ensure positive EHWB outcomes. The Council and CCGs aspirations for 
children and young people are to receive the right level of support at the earliest opportunity, allowing them 
to build their confidence, resilience and reach their individual goals. children and young people should be 
empowered to: 
 

 Make a positive contribution to society and the communities in which they live. 

 Understand the support mechanisms available and take responsibility for accessing the appropriate 
services as and when required. 

 Actively participate in the design and implementation of services to meet their requirements.  

 
2.0 CURRENT SERVICE CONFIGURATION 
 
EHWB services for children and young people in Staffordshire are currently commissioned to offer a LAC 
and CL service alongside a range of Tier Two (2) services.   Arrangements are in place for these services; 
either with the Council or with the CCGs, until the 31

st
 March 2020.  

 
The first contract delivers services for LAC and CLs. It is currently delivered by the Sustain Plus service 
within Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. It provides a bespoke offer that addresses physical 
health needs alongside EHWB. The service includes training provided by the Sustain Plus service to 
parents/foster carers with the intention of educating and facilitating maintenance of good emotional health for 
LAC.  
 
The second set of contracts, Tier Two (2), deliver services to provide targeted emotional wellbeing support 
for Staffordshire children and young people aged five (5) to eighteen (18). These contracts are currently 
delivered by voluntary & community sector (VCS) providers throughout Staffordshire. These providers deliver 
a diverse range of interventions within a host of settings, delivering group therapy and peer support 
programmes alongside the more clinical model of one-to-one therapies. The current offer is not 
standardised, providing an inconsistent service across Staffordshire.   
 
Current Tier Two (2) activity is commissioned based on numbers of referrals. Different service models mean 
it is not possible to consistently and accurately identify the number of children and young people receiving 
intervention across Staffordshire.  This is because children and young people have different needs and 
require different levels of intervention, particularly in relation to the number of support sessions. The below 
figures will give some indication to the historical uptake of these services. 
 

New Referrals for Tier Two (2) Services 
 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

The Council 1,672 1,370   
3,852 North Staffordshire CCG 150 258 

Page 52

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf


   

  

13  
  

South Staffordshire CCGs (Cannock Chase, Stafford 
and Surrounds, East Staffordshire, South East 
Staffordshire & Seisdon Peninsula (SES & SP) CCG) 

 263 

Statistics from the LTP, 2018, refer to section 3 for further information. 
 
Beyond the current contract configurations there are wider links to the commissioning of services in relation 
to Public Health, Early Help, Early Years, Education and Youth Justice. As per the opening paragraph in this 
section, it is imperative that a collaborative commissioning approach is maintained to provide value for 
money, efficiencies and effectiveness.  For further information relating to existing commissioned services 
across Staffordshire for Adult Emotional Health, Social Inclusion and Recovery Contracts, please refer to 
Appendix A.5. 

 
3.0 THE VISION 
 
There is a national focus, as outlined in section 1.1 of this Specification, of the need to transform EHWB 
services for CYP. Locally the Council and CCGs are working collaboratively to devise a joint approach to 
address children and young people’s EHWB in Staffordshire. The Pan-Staffordshire Emotional Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 2018 – 2023, which outlines this vision, can be accessed through the icon below: 
 

pan Staffordshire 

Strategy, Starting Well, Living Well, Supporting Well..docx
      

 
 
The LTP for CYP’s Mental Health can be accessed by using the following hyperlink: 
https://www.staffordsurroundsccg.nhs.uk/our-services2/children/local-transformation-plan-for-children-and-
young-people-s-mental-health 
 
It is recognised that this Service commissioned by the Council and CCGs needs to tackle the ‘root causes’ of 
EHWB issues, follow an Early Intervention model and be more accessible and consistent to meet the needs 
of all CYP. This ambition shall be realised, in part, through a community-based approach that will require the 
Provider to work efficiently and effectively in partnership with all stakeholders.  The Service shall develop an 
understanding of the issues faced by children and young people in Staffordshire with regard to their 
emotional health and wellbeing. In doing so, the Service will ensure economy of effort, equity and 
consistency and improve clarity throughout the whole system. 
 
This Service will improve the outcomes for CYP with mild to moderate EHWB problems. The Service is 
required to respond to CYPs’ needs at the earliest possible opportunity using short, Evidence Based 
interventions along with information, advice, guidance (IAG), signposting and a robust self-help offer through 
a Digital Offer. The Service must also enhance the offer for those CYP who need more specialist support 
than is currently provided by schools, primary care, local authorities and more general services for children 
and young people in communities, as well as those that do not meet current specialist Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Service (CAMHS) thresholds. In the longer term, this Service will reduce the likelihood of 
children and young people developing a more serious mental health condition by providing timely and 
appropriate support when it is needed most. 
 

 
4.0 SERVICE SCOPE 
 
By tailoring this Service to meet the individual needs of CYP, specifically CYP who are Vulnerable and at risk 
(including the LAC, CL and CYP with an EHCP), with a wider offer to Staffordshire’s CYP, the intention is to 
provide a comprehensive Service that enables CYP to access help within their communities.  The Service 
needs to consist of a broad range offer that is inclusive of LAC/CL, CYP with an EHCP and others with 
additional vulnerabilities.  There then will need to be a differentiated Service offer and level of support based 

Page 53

https://www.staffordsurroundsccg.nhs.uk/our-services2/children/local-transformation-plan-for-children-and-young-people-s-mental-health
https://www.staffordsurroundsccg.nhs.uk/our-services2/children/local-transformation-plan-for-children-and-young-people-s-mental-health


   

  

14  
  

on risk and risk management.  The level of support a CYP is assessed to require will determine the time 
frames for response, the modality, timeliness and length of intervention (refer to section 5.4 and 5.5 of the 
Service Specification for further information). 
 
4.1 Service Principles  
 
The Provider is required to adhere to the following principles: 

 
An emphasis on Prevention and Early Intervention. The Service should make appropriate use of 
Universal Provision and information, advice and guidance (IAG). The Service shall also include a Digital 
Offer that is accessible and CYP focused. This approach is supported within the NHS England ‘Five Year 
Forward View’ published in October 2014 which outlined the importance of opportunistic Prevention in 
EHWB services and that every contact counts. The full report can be accessed using the following hyperlink:  
https://www.england.nhs.uk/five-year-forward-view/ 

 
Effective use of Evidence Based practice. The Service shall deliver interventions that are based on 
examples of good practice and a strong Evidence Base, including those advocated through the National 
Institute of Health & Care Excellence (NICE).  

 
Community focus with an emphasis on evidencing Social Value. The Service shall clearly demonstrate 
a Place Based Approach (PBA) (refer to section 5.3.1 of the Service Specification) to Services, creating 
seamless, professional relationships within and alongside communities. This will provide CYP with a flexible 
support system that ultimately drives the Prevention of and support for addressing of EHWB issues.  The 
Service shall also demonstrate a clear understanding of community and statutory services that offer different 
types and levels of support in this specialised area. Finally, the Service shall raise wider awareness and 
reduce the negative perception of poor EHWB. 

 
Empowerment of CYP. The Service shall support Staffordshire’s CYP with the aspiration of improving their 
EHWB and building the individual’s resilience and confidence.  In line with the Anna Freud THRIVE 
Framework (refer to section 5.1 of the Service Specification) there shall be collaboration and shared decision 
making between CYP and their Families in identifying and addressing their EHWB needs.  All CYP shall 
develop the knowledge to be able to make the right choices to access services appropriate to their need, at a 
time and in a way that they are comfortable with. Furthermore, CYP shall be encouraged to actively 
participate in the design, delivery and evaluation of the Service. 

 
Innovation. Innovation and creativity in meeting outcomes is strongly encouraged.  The Service shall 
provide a proactive and flexible approach to EHWB, including a Digital Offer. Alongside this, innovative 
Direct Interventions will be available in a range of formats including: peer support, group therapy and one-to-
one therapeutic input. Also, embedding participation and engagement structures across services to capture 
the voice of CYP will inform practice and drive innovation.   

 
Participation. Comprehensive and positive engagement with CYP, their Families and relevant stakeholders 
will guide the development and evaluation of appropriate Services. Meaningful, consistent participation 
should come from a wide range of sources and should take many forms. 

 
Workforce Development. The Personnel shall be appropriately trained and suitably experienced, providing 
a real choice of interventions which are supported by the appropriate level of resources, ensuring delivery 
meets the highest standard and all aspects are open to both internal and external scrutiny. Ultimately, each 
CYP shall be given the right level of support to achieve realistic and meaningful outcomes to meet their 
individual needs. 
 
Targeted and focused approach to reduce health inequalities. The Service shall be tailored to meet 
individual needs, specifically CYP who are Vulnerable and at risk (including the LAC, CL and CYP with an 
EHCP cohort). It shall contribute to the alignment of community resources and efforts, ensuring that local 
policies, programmes and interventions support EHWB, tackle stigma and address health inequalities. 
 

Page 54

https://www.england.nhs.uk/five-year-forward-view/


   

  

15  
  

The infographic below visually demonstrates the elements of the Service and offers some insight into the 
proportional representation of each individual element. It also refers to inextricably linked services and 
stakeholders. 
 

 
 
 
 
4.2 Eligibility 
 
Eligibility to access the Service is as follows: 
 

 All CYP residing in Staffordshire, aged between five (5) and eighteen (18) years plus three hundred 
and sixty-four (364) days, whose Families have given their consent for support.  Eligibility will 
increase to twenty-four (24) years and three hundred and sixty-four days (364) for CLs and/or CYP 
with SEND. 

 LAC and CLs only, for which the Council is the Corporate Parent, will be eligible to access the 
Service if they reside within thirty (30) miles of Staffordshire’s border. Those CYP would need to 
travel into Staffordshire for Direct Interventions, Structured Interventions or utilise other methods for 
online/skype interactions to take place.   

 The Digital Offer (refer to Section 5.13 of the Service Specification) is available to children and 
young people, aged between eleven (11) and eighteen (18) years plus three hundred and sixty-four 
(364) days and residing in Staffordshire, in accordance with relevant NICE guidance.  Where LAC or 

Page 55



   

  

16  
  

CLs live outside of Staffordshire, but within the United Kingdom, they will still retain access to the 
Digital Offer.  CLs and/or CYP with SEND will be eligible to use the Digital Offer up to the age of 
twenty-four (24) years and three-hundred and sixty-four (364) days. 

 An Initial Assessment (refer to section 5.5 of the Service Specification) will determine those CYP that 
meet the criteria for Direct Interventions and Structured Interventions. 

 
4.3 Aims 
 
The key aims of this Service are: 
 

 Wholeheartedly believe in the concept and our collective ambition; displaying the necessary 
professionalism, drive and commitment to promote positive EHWB in Staffordshire’s CYP and treat 
everyone with respect. 

 Possess a high-level of suitable knowledge, experience and skills to deliver the full array of support 
needed. 

 Recognise that the promotion and provision of EHWB amongst CYP will require strong professional 
relationships with multiple stakeholders. 

 The recruitment, organisation, management and development of skilled Personnel is embedded 
within the core values of the organisation to support CYP and their families across all levels of need, 
displaying professionalism, compassion and respect in an environment that is free of stigma or 
judgement. 

 Ensure the active participation of CYP and their families will be at the heart of all service 
development, delivery and evaluation. 

 Establish the platform whereby CYP, their Families and the communities in which they reside can 
support themselves and each other to maintain good EHWB. 

 Ensure CYP are receiving early help and support to manage their EHWB needs, reducing the need 
for referrals to specialist services. This is intended to assist Staffordshire’s CYP in their long-term 
recovery, built on the foundations of the principles of ‘Five Ways to Wellbeing’; the full report can be 
accessed using the following hyperlink: 
https://www.mind.org.uk/workplace/mental-health-at-work/taking-care-of-yourself/five-ways-to-
wellbeing/ 

 Provide Families with the ability to better understand normal behavioural development in CYP, 
allowing them to recognise and act appropriately to support a CYP displaying early signs of 
emotional distress. 

 To make sure clear Pathways are available and movement between Services is efficient and simple 
to understand and navigate.  

 
4.4 Objectives 
 
The key objectives of this Service are: 
 

 The successful adoption of the THRIVE Framework over the Contract Period (refer to section 5.1 of 
the Service Specification). 

 The effective promotion of the Preventative agenda (refer to section 5.2 of the Service Specification).  

 Ensuring Prevention and Early Help practices are embedded within the Service model through a 
progressive, comprehensive approach, allowing CYP access to the most appropriate level of support 
in a timely manner.  

 Ensure that effective leadership is demonstrated across the orgnanisation with the appropriate 
governance and management structures in place to assure accountability and responsibility for 
Service delivery. 

 Effective facilitation and engagement with a wide range of stakeholders from all sectors can be 
evidenced to build relationships and deliver an integrated approach to the EHWB of Staffordshire’s 
CYP (at an operational and strategic level). 

 A targeted and tailored Service that focuses on reducing health inequalities.    

 A committed and co-ordinated delivery of a PBA (refer to section 5.3.1 of the Service Specification) 
to Services, with community focus and Social Value at the core. 

Page 56

https://www.mind.org.uk/workplace/mental-health-at-work/taking-care-of-yourself/five-ways-to-wellbeing/
https://www.mind.org.uk/workplace/mental-health-at-work/taking-care-of-yourself/five-ways-to-wellbeing/


   

  

17  
  

 Identification of those CYP who are at higher risk of EHWB problems, working to support them and 
their Families in an integrated, holistic way to keep them safe and minimise risks.   

 Ensuring that relevant data is accurately recorded on the Mental Health Services Data Set 
(MHSDS); enabling access information and outcome metric information to be representative of the 
work being conducted with Staffordshire’s CYP (refer to Section 6.6 of the Service Specification). 

 
5.0 SERVICE DESCRIPTION 
 
The Provider is required to deliver an inclusive Service for CYP as outlined below: 
 
5.1 The THRIVE Framework 
 
The Tavistock and Portman NHS Foundation Trust and the Anna Freud Centre presented a new perspective 
on visualising and delivering CYP mental health services through their publishing of the THRIVE Framework 
in November 2014. The Council and CCGs have recognised the need for this Service to evolve from a tiered 
approach to that of the THRIVE Framework over the Contract Period. The Provider must adopt this approach 
in their Service model.   
 

 
 
This Service will align with the ‘Getting Advice’ and ‘Getting Help’ quartiles of the THRIVE Framework. 
 
Getting Advice: Within this element of the THRIVE Framework would be CYP and Families adjusting to life 
circumstances, with mild or temporary difficulties, where the best intervention is within the community with 
the possible addition of self-support. It may also include those with chronic, fluctuating or ongoing severe 
difficulties, where CYP choose to manage their own health and/or are on the road to recovery. 
 
Getting Help: This element of the THRIVE Framework comprises those CYP and Families who would benefit 
from focused, Evidence Based treatment, with clear aims, and criteria for assessing whether aims have been 
achieved. This would include CYP with difficulties that fall within the remit of NICE guidance but also where it 
is less clear which NICE guidance would guide practice. 
 
Further information relating to the THRIVE Framework can be accessed using the following hyperlink: 
https://www.annafreud.org/media/3214/thrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf 
 
5.2 Preventative 
 
The emergence of need for a Preventative approach to EHWB is something that is reflected in both national 
and local policy and strategy. The Service must work collaboratively to offer a range of Services, with a 
flexibility in modality, access arrangements and to adhere to the following: 

 

Page 57

https://www.annafreud.org/media/3214/thrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf


   

  

18  
  

 Build emotional resilience and a ‘Healthy Start’ (No Health without Mental Health, 2011). 

 Plan, engage in and promote Transition points across the life course of a CYP, providing a joint and 
holistic approach to support CYP and Families.  

 Seamless Pathways and a speedy, organised response to referrals that ensure that CYP get timely, 
appropriate support. 

 Flexibility in Services are required. The utilisation of the Digital Offer is one example of this. 

 Shared training opportunities and regular updating of resources to support Personnel development, 
capacity and the building of skills. 

 Reducing stigma and raising awareness of EHWB issues within communities, Families, peer groups 
and education settings. 

 Making every contact count, offering robust signposting or IAG will also drive the preventative 
approach. 

 
5.3 Access Arrangements 
 
5.3.1 Place Based Approach (PBA) 
 
PBA is a different way of thinking and working. It is not an activity, a meeting or a department.  It is a 
collection of appropriate partners and individuals who share a common purpose and principles, agreeing to 
work together within a specific locality which creates the PBA. 
 
A PBA to Service delivery, partnership working, and community cohesion will ensure that CYP are able to 
easily access responsive EHWB Services within their local area. The aim of a PBA is to make best use of 
public sector and community assets to:  
 

 Reduce demand on higher tier services.  

 Improve outcomes for CYP and their Families by providing support as early as possible. 

 Build resilience and encourage independence within communities. 

 Provide high quality statutory services when required. 

 To ensure that all CYP seeking help because of an EHWB risk or issue, receive the appropriate 
level of help and support. 

 
Further information around the needs and priorities that have been identified at District/Borough level can be 
found via the data packs accessible via the hyperlink below: 
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-
Packs.aspx#.XSSdXExFxyP 
 
Local, district level partnership strategies can be accessed via the hyperlink below:  
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/health/News/Local-Working-In-Staffordshire-Place-Based-Approach.aspx 
 

Page 58

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-Packs.aspx#.XSSdXExFxyP
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-Packs.aspx#.XSSdXExFxyP
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/health/News/Local-Working-In-Staffordshire-Place-Based-Approach.aspx


   

  

19  
  

The PBA diagram illustrates a basic PBA model that has emerged through partnership dialogue in 
Staffordshire. Further information can be found in Appendix A.1 

 
 
 
 
 
5.3.2 Presenting Conditions 
 
The Provider shall use Evidence Based therapeutic intervention approaches and provide self-help through a 
Digital Offer to identify and support several presenting conditions. These include (but are not limited to): 
 

 Self-esteem/assertiveness. 

 Anxiety and depression. 

 Attachment and bonding. 

 Bereavement/loss. 

 Friendships/relationships. 

 Parental separation. 

 Bullying/trauma. 

 Problem solving. 

 Anger management. 

 Fears and worries. 

 Behavioural management. 

 Cyber bullying. 

 Eating disorder. 

 Isolation. 

 Self-harm. 
 
5.4 Referral Arrangements 
 
A ‘whole system approach’ to Services will ensure effective relationships are developed to deliver care 
Pathways. Collaborative partnership working will enable the Escalation and De-escalation of support that is 

Page 59



   

  

20  
  

reflective of the needs of the CYP.  The Provider must ensure open referral routes in to the Service.  It is 
recognised though that within the Service model the Provider may utilise their triage and IA process to 
ascertain how a CYP’s needs can be most effectively met.  Consideration will need to be made to the 
elements of the Service, as per the infographic in section 4.1 of the Specification.  A method for identifying 
CYP with vulnerability and risk (including LAC, CLs or CYP with an EHCP) should be in place.  Risk 
management plans are to be developed if appropriate and should involve Families and all key partner and 
stakeholder organisations involved in holding the risk (particularly Health and Social Care).  Communication 
with Families and pertinent professionals (especially where LAC and CLs are concerned) will need to be 
timely and informative to ensure that decision making at all stages is robust and well-articulated to informs 
any wider support in place for a CYP.   

Triage and IA of CYP with complex needs, particularly those CYP that have been identified at the point of 
referral as at risk or Vulnerable (including LAC, CL or with and EHCP) will need to be carried out by 
appropriately skilled Personnel. A diverse, wide-ranging triage and IA Personnel team with expertise or 
knowledge from Health, Social Care, Education and Youth Work sectors for example, will be required.  
Please see the diagram below for further information of the referral Pathway. 
 

 

There will be a phased approach to the mobilisation of this Service (refer to section 6.4.1 of the Service 
Specification). With an innovative Digital Offer it should be possible to offer an ‘open’ referral process, for 
those CYP of appropriate age, who opt to access support online. Contract management and reporting during 
the Contract Period will allow the Council, CCGs and the Provider to explore the uptake of this element of 
the Service and any future development needs.    
 
The more specialist, face-to-face element of the Service will need to have a consistent and unambiguous 
referral process throughout Staffordshire. For example, one standardised referral form, one referral process.  
A standardised operating procedure will be utilised to ensure any referral, triage and IA processes are 
consistent but also across any different elements of the Service.  These operating procedures should link 
effectively with CAMHS, reducing any likelihood of CYP oscillating between Services or ‘falling through 
gaps’. 
 
This Service Specification refers to the following terms ‘referral, triage, Initial Consultation, Initial 
Assessment’.  It is recognised however that this terminology has medical connotation.  The Provider has 
flexibility to use alternative terms during Service delivery.   
 
The Provider will be required to prioritise, and caseload manage the file transfer of any children and young 
people who are currently waiting for / receiving support from an existing Tier Two (2) service or the existing 

Page 60



   

  

21  
  

Sustain Plus service. Current children and young people referral and support figures, dated Sept 2019 are 
detailed within the table below (to be populated with September 2019 data).  
 

Provider Area Referrals (On hold / 
waiting for 
IC/IA/support) 

Referrals (receiving 
support) 

YESS  
1:1 Counselling 

East Staffs 69 61 

YESS  
1:1 Counselling 

Cannock Chase,  72 79 

YESS 
1:1 Counselling 

Tamworth and Lichfield 14 3315 (figure based on 
Q1 19/20 stats) 

Younger Minds 
1:1 Counselling 

North Staffs NUL and 
Moorlands 

56 116 

Younger Minds 
1:1 Counselling 

Stafford 98 47 

Kaleidoscope 
CBT 

South Staffs 20 37 

Sustain Plus (LAC) 
A range of therapeutic 
support. 

Across Staffordshire, 
county-wide service for 
LAC and CL’s 

Through Exit Planning 
this figure is expected to 
be 0 by March 2020. 

193 (number expected 
to significantly reduce 
following impending file 
audit.) 

 
Referral figures for the services outlined above totalled 2581 in 2018/19.  This number can be broken down 
to 2337 for the Tier Two (2) services and 244 for Sustain Plus.  These figures represent both CCG and the 
Council’s contracts.  
 
Positive, close-working relationships with relevant stakeholders will enable the Provider to meet the 
requirements of CYP in a timely way. Shared assessment and outcome recording with CAMHS would also 
be of benefit when looking to support a CYP whose needs cannot be met within this Service due to their 
complexity. 
 
The Provider shall gain the following information at the point of referral (but not limited to): 
 

 The full name, address, date of birth, gender and ethnicity of the CYP. 

 GP and surgery name and address.  

 NHS number. 

 The name and details of any professionals offering support to the CYP or parent/carer.  

 An overview of current difficulties, reasons for the referral, risk factors. 

 Early Help Assessment (EHA) open/closed, and any child protection / vulnerable adult matters.  

 Confirmation that the referrer has seen and gained consent from the CYP or Family for the referral to 
take place where Services are requested. 

 Further consent needs to be sought for General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) compliance and 
to ascertain permission for ‘opt out’ where information is shared with an external source (MHSDS is 
an example of this). This can be accessed by using the hyperlink below: 
https://www.intra.staffordshire.gov.uk/governance/igu/Getting-ready-for-GDPR/GDPR-
Consent/Consent.aspx 

 
5.4.1 Response Times and Prioritisation  
 
CYP with needs relating to vulnerability and risk (including LAC, CLs and those with an EHCP) will require 
some priority within the Service. An effective system for identifying any CYP within this cohort, should then 
ensure that they are able to access timely Services that are appropriate to age, capability and need. The 
level of support a CYP is assessed to require will determine the time frames for response, the modality, 
timeliness and length of intervention.  It is expected that a Risk Assessment and management process will 
inform any prioritisation and will be developed in conjunction with Families, and key agencies who share 

Page 61

https://www.intra.staffordshire.gov.uk/governance/igu/Getting-ready-for-GDPR/GDPR-Consent/Consent.aspx
https://www.intra.staffordshire.gov.uk/governance/igu/Getting-ready-for-GDPR/GDPR-Consent/Consent.aspx


   

  

22  
  

responsibility for ‘holding’ any risk associated with a CYP and reacting to changing need.  The Provider will 
be expected to discuss complex cases with the Authorised Officer via quarterly Contract Review meetings.  
 
Response times will be kept to a minimum and where ‘waiting lists’ are necessary, the Provider shall build in 
a robust monitoring process, incorporating a system to maintain links with the CYP, their Families and 
relevant stakeholders; and make use of the Digital Offer to support CYP.  Regular contact with the CYP and 
their Families is required to ensure that needs have not changed and to review whether an alternative offer 
of support may be more appropriate.  The Provider must adhere to the following timeframes: 
 

Activity: Response times: 

From response to referral to the Service  
The response from the Provider should include 
information on: 
- what will happen next and the timeframe 
- the Digital Offer 
- local / national crisis support 

Within five (5) Working Days 

From referral to Initial Consultation Within ten (10) Working Days 

From Initial Consultation to Initial Assessment 
(where appropriate) 

Within ten (10) Working Days 

From Initial Assessment to accessing appropriate 
support within the Service 

Within twenty (20) Working Days 

 
 
5.4.2 Inappropriate referrals 
 
Upon the receipt of a referral, following a triage and Initial Consultation and or Initial Assessment process, if 
it is deemed that the CYP’s needs cannot be suitably met through the provision of the Service then the 
Provider will be responsible for ensuring referral or signposting to alternative services. Where a CYP is 
thought to require CAMHS input the Provider will manage the CYP’s case as it Transitions.  Effective 
partnership relationships will be utilised to ensure timely, appropriate referrals occur and are effectively 
managed.   
 
Where a referral is deemed inappropriate, the Provider shall inform the referrer of the rationale for the 
decision. 
 
5.4.3 Re-referrals 
 
A re-referral is defined by the following circumstances: 
 

 CYP is re-referred to the Service within twelve (12) weeks of their case being closed. 

 CYP is being referred due to a different ‘presenting condition’. 

 Consent was originally withdrawn and has now been given. 
 
Re-referrals should be recorded separately so that differentiation can be made with successful referrals, 
ongoing cases, closed cases or inappropriate referrals. 
 
5.5 Initial Assessment 
 
Information should be gathered at the Initial Consultation stage, and prior to, an Initial Assessment taking 
place. It is recognised that sources of information will vary depending on the age of the CYP, the reason for 
the referral and the stakeholders that may be involved. The Provider shall co-ordinate the Initial Assessment 
process as part of a seamless offer. Systems around referral, Initial Consultation, Initial Assessment, 
delivery, outcome measuring, and evaluation will need to be consistent across Staffordshire and part of a 
standardised operating procedure.    
 
There are a range of different assessment tools and processes that can be used to inform and support the 
process. The Provider shall identify any tools / processes they intend to utilise for assessment purposes, 

Page 62



   

  

23  
  

identify the strengths and benefits of them, discuss and agree these with the Authorised Officer during the 
mobilisation period for this Service.  
 
The assessment process for access to the Digital Offer will ensure that CYP are of an agreed and 
appropriate age. CYP should have the initial option to remain anonymous. Clear Safeguarding and 
Escalation processes shall be in place to support a CYP if there are any immediate Safeguarding concerns 
(refer to section 6.5 of the Service Specification). 
 
5.6 Support Planning 
 
Each CYP shall have access to a clear support plan if they are in receipt of Services that will require multiple 
contacts/interventions.  Where LAC, CLs and CYP with an EHCP are concerned there will be a requirement 
for effective communication with pertinent case holding professionals. The case holding professional should 
be clearly identified within the support plan.  Plans must: 
 

 Take account of the CYP’s Goal Based Outcomes. 

 Be guided by the CYP’s physical and emotional capabilities, mental capacity and age. 

 Take regard of the health and safety of the CYP and others. 

 Take a whole family approach where appropriate. 
 
5.7 Intervention 
 
Support shall be tailored to the individual CYP’s needs, which should be effectively met through the: 
 

 Delivery of a broad spectrum of community-based and self-help interventions. 

 Effective use of community networks, VCS provision and peer support. 

 Delivery of innovative approaches to achieve outcomes as well as Evidence Based practice.  

 Effective and timely Escalation and De-escalation to meet an individual CYP’s need. 

 Clear assessment of need, vulnerability and risk that informs referral Pathways and support for CYP 
accessing the Service. 

 
5.8 Direct, Indirect and Structured Interventions 
 
The Service shall provide a range of Direct, Indirect and Structured Interventions as well as a wider, 
Preventative offer. The table below is a guide only but provides an indication of the type of support activity 
that could be deemed appropriate.   The Digital Offer may also include some of the activity outlined below. 
 

 
Activity 

 
Description Example  

Home visiting  
 

A member of Personnel delivering the Service 
within a CYP’s home. 
 

Parenting support. 

Evidence Based  
Therapeutic Interventions    

Dependent upon an Initial Assessment, 
interventions could take various forms. The 
frequency and intensity of interventions is 
expected to vary according to need. These 
interventions could be delivered on a one-to-
one or group work basis.  
 

Counselling 
skills/techniques. 
Low intensity CBT.  
Solution focused brief 
therapy. 
Positive approaches to 
problem solving. 

Peer Support Peer support is a system of giving and 
receiving help founded on the key principles of 
respect, shared responsibility and agreement 
of what is helpful. Peer support is provided by 
people considered an equal. 

Support for CYP offered 
by peers or those with 
similar experiences. 

Page 63



   

  

24  
  

Signposting and referring 
to other agencies 

Providing CYP and their Families with 
information on other relevant agencies.  
 
Referral to specialist services, for example 
substance misuse, school nursing, CAMHS. 
 

Referral to Universal 
Provision, groups and 
associations.   
 

IAG This is a broad term describing the support 
needed by CYP and their Families to assist 
them in making informed decisions. An 
interactive, Digital Offer is intended to offer 
accessible IAG. 
 

Provision of leaflets, 
contact details, 
introduction to Universal 
Provision and 
associations. 
Signposting to services. 
 

 
5.9 Number of interventions 
 
The number of interventions will be determined first and foremost by the CYP’s vulnerability and risk, 
following the Initial Assessment process.  However, it is envisaged that the majority CYP will not require 
more than six (6) separate interventions.  
 
5.10 Did Not Attend Arrangements 
 

Failure to attend appointments by CYP or Families shall not be viewed as a lack of motivation and 

automatically act as a trigger for case closure. Any CYP subject to a Child Protection Plan, that can be 

recognised as a LAC, CL or CYP with an EHCP who fails to attend appointments shall require a follow-up by 

the Service Provider within three (3) Working Days. Links should be established with any referring 

professionals as well as attempts made to contact the CYP directly. Non-attendance at appointments will 

require access arrangements to be reviewed by the Provider. 

5.11 Transition and Exit Planning Arrangements 
 
5.11.1 Transition Plans 
 
The Service must ensure that any known Transition points in a CYP’s support or life are planned for well in 
advance. As a minimum, the Provider must ensure that CYP moving on from the Direct, Indirect or 
Structured Interventions elements of the Service have: 
 

 At least one (1) contact with both their current support worker and a counterpart from the onward, 
signposted service prior to Transition.  Recognition is required that more than one (1) contact may 
be necessary to support LAC/CLs in Service Transition. 

 IAG, if no further interventions or treatment are planned, so that the CYP, and where appropriate 
their Families, know what to do if the CYP requires future support from the Service. 

 
5.11.2 Planned Exit 
 
The Provider shall ensure that CYP leaving the Service have an agreed and documented exit plan. 
Interventions should come to an end in a planned way that is in line with the individual outcomes (where 
appropriate GBOs) of the CYP.  
 
5.11.3 Unplanned Exit 
 
In the instance of unplanned exits from the Service, the Provider shall use reasonable endeavours to 
evidence what outcomes have been achieved for CYP, ascertain the reasons for the exit and ensure that the 
CYP has been provided with relevant IAG. 
 
 

Page 64



   

  

25  
  

5.12 Service User Voice / Participation 
 
The Provider must embed the views of Service Users in Service design, delivery and evaluation.  
 
5.13 Innovation and Digital Offer 
 
The Provider will be required to offer from the Commencement Date a self-help Digital Offer that will 
enhance the Service model. The Digital Offer should be age/capacity appropriate and must consider how it 
may meet the needs of CYP with SEND or English as a Second Language (ESL). Where LAC or CLs live 
outside of Staffordshire, they will still retain access to the Digital Offer.  The Provider is responsible for 
ensuring that the Digital Offer is compliant with all relevant guidance, including; the Data Protection Act 
(2018) and NICE Guidance.  
 
There are some key drivers behind the desire for a Digital Offer, including: 
 

 Exploring how digital technology can support CYP to build resilience, manage their own demands 
and achieve better outcomes. 

 Finding and implementing new technologies in a health, social care and educational settings. 

 Empowering CYP; they will readily engage and utilise the Services they feel are appropriate for 
them. 

 User data shall inform how the Council, the CCGs and the Provider improve Service delivery, 
manage demand and achieve optimum value with limited resource.  

 To inform needs analysis and future commissioning intentions. 

 Ensuring that the technology in place for delivering the Service includes effective, integrated 
mechanisms to support and underpin practice in a clinically meaningful way. 

 
6.0 OPERATIONAL SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 
 
6.1 Service Availability 
 
Through consultation, CYP and their Families have communicated that they would welcome the Service 
offering flexibility of availability. The Digital Offer shall be accessible to CYP, twenty-four (24) hours per day, 
seven (7) days per week, throughout the Contract Period. It is recognised that Direct, Indirect or Structured 
Interventions will not be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, but that the Service shall incorporate 
flexibility to provide professional and direct engagement with CYP outside of school hours, ensuring 
minimum disruption to education.  
 
As this Service Specification has developed, so too has the children and young people’s mental health 
workstream as part of the Sustainability Transformation Partnership (STP).  A clear priority within this 
transformation, supported by the Staffordshire and Stoke LTP, is to achieve single points of access for 
referrals for children and young people requiring EHWB and mental health services.  The delivery of this 
priority is at different stages in the respective Trusts (North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust 
and Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust).  In North Staffordshire there is a single point of access via 
a hub.  It is expected that the Service will utilise and contribute to the provision within hub in the north in 
order to triage referrals for the EHWB Service.  The perceived benefits of this include improved pathways at 
point of referral, consistency in response and best use of resources across the CAMHS system.  Nicola 
Griffiths, Associate Director within North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust will be the most 
appropriate person to contact on this matter.   
 
Nicola Griffiths: Tel - 01782 441696  
Email - Nicola.Griffiths@combined.nhs.uk 
 
In South Staffordshire, there is an ambition to move towards a single point of access, however presently this 
is not the operating model in place.  It is expected that the Provider of this Service will become actively 
involved in the STP transformation work that is currently underway, therefore remaining conversant with any 
future developments. 
 

Page 65



   

  

26  
  

As a minimum requirement, the Provider shall operate from two (2) Premises from the Commencement Date 
(refer to Appendix A.6 for further information). The Service shall provide capacity to deliver consistency 
across Staffordshire by the end of the phased approach (refer to section 6.4.1). The utilisation of a broad 
range of venues within communities is something that is actively encouraged. The Council and CCGs 
foresee this Service being one that offers support to CYP and their Families in surroundings where they feel 
comfortable, safe and affords the right level of privacy. Examples of possible alternative venues include (but 
are not limited to): CYP’s home environment, education establishments, community facilities and GP 
surgeries. There will be occasions when the Service will be required to review access arrangements for a 
CYP. A flexible and innovative model of delivery shall ensure that CYP’s needs are met effectively and in line 
with their desired outcomes. It is this flexibility in any support planning arrangements that will ensure that 
CYP gain maximum value from every contact and every intervention. As detailed in the paragraph above, the 
flexibility afforded to CYP through a robust, Digital Offer shall have the benefit of providing access to support 
for CYP, irrespective of location. 
 
6.2 Personnel requirements 
 
6.2.1 Recruitment 
 
The Provider shall implement a formal system of Personnel selection. This system shall include a job 
application form which requires the applicant to disclose full details to ensure their suitability to provide 
services to CYP and their Families. At least two (2) references shall be requested from each potential 
employee, along with an enhanced Disclosure Barring Service (DBS) check. Additionally, references and 
enhanced DBS checks shall be carried out for all volunteers working within the Service (even if not in direct 
contact with CYP and their Families). 
 
The Provider shall comply with the following standards: 
 

 Safer Recruitment Standards with new Personnel. 

 Record keeping in line with Data Protection Legislation and Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
Essential Standards (where applicable, refer to section 6.6 of the Service Specification). 

 Appropriate Personnel training & development, updates and supervision to enable Personnel to fulfil 
their duties. It is expected that where appropriately aligned to a clinical intervention, supervision shall 
be delivered through formal clinical arrangements in line with NICE Guidelines. 

 Ensure that there is compliance with the recommendations of the Duty of Candour outlined by the 
General Medical Council, this can be access via the hyperlink below: 
https://www.gmc-uk.org/ethical-guidance/ethical-guidance-for-doctors/candour---openness-
and-honesty-when-things-go-wrong/the-professional-duty-of-candour 
 
 

6.2.2 Structure 
 
The Provider shall be responsible for designing a Personnel structure that will enable flexible and responsive 
Service provision during the Contract Period. Each member of paid Personnel shall be employed under a 
formal Contract of Employment and have a detailed job description. 
 
 
6.2.3 Competencies, Qualifications and Professional Registration 
 
The Provider shall be responsible for keeping up-to-date records of Personnel accreditation and membership 
to recognised professional bodies. All Personnel and volunteers shall have the required accreditation and 
registration/memberships in place to perform in their roles. As a minimum, this is to include a level one 
Safeguarding qualification. 
 
Counsellors and Psychotherapists must be accredited with the British Association for Counselling and 
Psychotherapy. Health, Psychologist or Social Work professionals must be registered with the Health and 
Social Care Professionals Council. Clinical Personnel shall need to be skilled and competent to understand 
the impact of complex trauma on CYP and trained in delivering attachment-related interventions. Specific 

Page 66

https://www.gmc-uk.org/ethical-guidance/ethical-guidance-for-doctors/candour---openness-and-honesty-when-things-go-wrong/the-professional-duty-of-candour
https://www.gmc-uk.org/ethical-guidance/ethical-guidance-for-doctors/candour---openness-and-honesty-when-things-go-wrong/the-professional-duty-of-candour


   

  

27  
  

qualifications and registration requirements are required to deliver specialist therapy options such as 
Cognitive Behavioural Therapy. Where alternative and innovative forms of intervention are utilised, the 
Provider shall ensure that they are conversant with the level of experience, expertise and formal 
qualifications required to deliver such methods. 
 
6.2.4 Management and Professional Support 
 
The Provider shall employ and deploy a suitably qualified Personnel to lead and be accountable for the 
following positions: 
 

 Day-to-day administration and management of the Service. 

 Promotion and progression improvement of the Service. 

 Carry out Initial Consultations, Initial Assessments and Risk Assessments in relation to the Service 
and CYP. 

 Recruiting and training of all Personnel and volunteers. 

 Providing regular, meaningful Personnel and volunteer supervision. 

 Providers delivering psychological and/or psychosocial interventions must have local arrangements 
in place for the provision of regular clinical supervision in accordance with relevant NICE guidelines. 

 Responsibility for the management and response to complaints. 

 Evaluation, monitoring and reporting on the performance and quality of the Service. 
 
6.3 Collaborative Working  
 
Working cohesively and collaboratively shall enable both the PBA and the THRIVE Framework to be 
implemented effectively. A child centred approach to support, intervention and Pathways will require 
collaboration to cut across the Provider model and the Services available. 
 
Throughout this Specification there is reference to building effective, professional and symbiotic relationships 
with other stakeholders. The Provider shall be expected to provide a management, leadership and co-
ordinating role in this area. The Provider shall work effectively with a range of stakeholders to ensure that 
services are not duplicated and that Pathways between services are open and effective: 
 

 The Council. Staffordshire First Response, Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hubs, Families First, Locality 
Teams and Leads, Education, Health Support Service for LAC and CLs in Staffordshire, Building 
Resilient Families and Communities Services and Public Health provision. 
 

 Health. CCGs, Primary Care, Hospital Trusts, NHS Trusts, Child Adolescent and Adult Mental 
Health Services, Community Paediatricians, Health Improvement Services, Drug and Alcohol 
Support Services, Adult Community Mental Health Services, Health Visitors and School Nurses, 
Inpatient or Highly Specialist Services, Emergency Departments and Sexual Health Services. 
 

 Other Partners. Education Providers (Primary, Secondary, Further Education and Training 
Providers), Entrust, Police, Criminal Justice Agencies including Youth Offending, District Council 
Provision. There are also voluntary and community sector partners plus social enterprises and 
community groups. 

 
The Provider shall ensure appropriate representation is secured at both local and county strategic groups as 
determined with the Council and the CCGs. 
 
6.4 Service Mobilisation 
 
To meet the Commencement Date, collaborative working with current EHWB providers (refer to section 2 of 
the Service Specification) shall be necessary to agree and achieve a seamless Transition. Further 
consideration will be required to prioritise, and caseload manage the file transfer of any CYP who are 
currently waiting for/receiving support within an incumbent Tier Two (2) service and the Sustain Plus service.   
Key milestones shall form part of the mobilisation plan in the lead up to the new service along with clear 
strategic and operational planning.   

Page 67



   

  

28  
  

 
6.4.1 Phased Approach Plan 
 
There shall be a Phased Approach Plan (PAP) to Service delivery from the Commencement Date. It is 
recognised that it will take time to implement the change and innovation that is required. As a minimum the 
PAP must consist of: 
 
The Mobilisation Phase. From Contract Award to the Commencement Date: 
   

 Key stakeholders and partnership relationships will be established. 

 Re-design and finalise any referral, triage and IA forms/processes.  These should consider Pathways 
for CYP within and outside of the Service. 

 Development of a communication strategy with the Authorised Officer.  

 Use of local knowledge of Staffordshire to inform the roll-out of the Service model. 

 Introduction of a Digital Offer from the Commencement Date. 

 Therapeutic intervention options will be developed and outlined along with a system for prioritising 
CYP with complex, risk-based needs (including LAC/CLs).  Systems and therapy modalities will be 
developed in readiness for the Commencement Date, ensuring a Service for CYP moving across 
from incumbent providers and any CYP waiting for support. 

 Two (2) Premises will be established offering geographical coverage in opposing locations within 
Staffordshire, the location of the two (2) Premises are subject to agreement by both Parties (refer to 
Appendix A.6). 

 Work with current providers will take place to ensure Transition of any relevant case files and data 
migration. 

 Induction on an operational and strategic level will take place to ensure that the Provider has had 
opportunity to meet with key partners and stakeholders in advance of the Commencement Date. 

 Finalise TUPE arrangements (where relevant) and ensure that any Personnel receive an effective 
induction and have their training & development needs identified. 

 
Period 1. Zero (0) to six (6) months from the Commencement Date:  
 

 Delivery of a wider range of creative, Direct, Indirect and Structured Interventions. 

 Establish CYPs and Families participation arrangements to inform the development of the Service. 

 Marketing and communication around the launch of the Service will be delivered via the 
communication strategy.  

 Relationships between key stakeholders and Partners will continue to develop and inform practice. 

 Representation at strategic and operational boards will be agreed with the Authorised Officer. 

 Quarterly Contract Review meetings will commence.  All elements of the Service will be subject to 
monitoring and quarterly Contract Review meetings with required attendance from both the Provider 
and any Sub-contractor(s).  

 Mechanism for measuring Social Value will be in place and will be reported on as part of the 
Performance Report along with any development of a commercial offer. 
 

Period 2. Six (6) to twelve (12) months from the Commencement Date:  
 

 The development of function and Services delivered to CYP, Families and professionals from the 
two (2) existing Premises will increase. 

 An increase in coverage across Staffordshire will require a minimum of two (2) further Premises, in 
opposing locations within Staffordshire, the location of the two (2) further Premises are subject to 
agreement from both Parties (refer to Appendix A.6). 

 Active participation and evaluation of the new Service from CYP informing future Service 
development proposals. 

 Quarterly Contract Review meetings will continue.  All elements of the Service will be subject to 
monitoring and quarterly Contract Review meetings with required attendance from both the Provider 
and any Sub-contractor(s).  

 Production of an Annual Report. 

Page 68



   

  

29  
  

 
Period 3. Twelve (12) to eighteen (18) months from the Commencement Date:  
 

 Regular Services for CYP are fully operational, incorporating the eight (8) districts (refer to Appendix 
A.6). 

 A collaborative review of the Digital Offer will take place between the Authorised Officer and the 
Provider to ascertain usage and functionality. 

 A wide range of therapeutic interventions will be on offer for those who require it, providing flexibility 
in modality. 

 Development and growth in participation work will continue with evidence that input has influenced 
Service improvements. Evidence of peer support and group support structures. 

 Quarterly Contract Review meetings will continue.  All elements of the Service will be subject to 
monitoring and quarterly Contract Review meetings with required attendance from both the Provider 
and any Sub-contractor(s). 

 
 
6.5 Safeguarding 
 
The Provider shall:  

• Deliver Safeguarding services and best practice in line with local inter-agency and internal 
Safeguarding policies, procedures and standards as determined by the Staffordshire 
Safeguarding Children’s Board (SSCB) (http://www.staffsscb.org.uk/Home.aspx). Keep 
abreast of current and emerging Safeguarding board priorities such as neglect.   

• Have a thorough knowledge and understanding of child protection and Safeguarding 
responsibilities pertaining to children, young people and vulnerable adults, and for this to be 
appropriately reflected within written policies and procedures.   

• Ensure the Provider’s Safeguarding Lead has completed SSCB Level 2 Safeguarding training 
every three (3) years.   

• Ensure all other Personnel have completed SSCB Level 1 Safeguarding training which is kept 
up to date in line with SSCB guidelines.  

• Have a written recruitment and selection policy and procedure which is fully compliant with 
‘Safer Recruitment’ principles and recommendations, and reflects an embedded commitment 
to Safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults.  

• Have a written policy in relation to the employment of ex-offenders including the assessment 
of positive Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) disclosures.   

• Seek to ensure that at least one member of any interview panel has successfully undertaken 
safer recruitment training.   

• Ensure it only recruits and deploys Personnel that have been subject to an enhanced DBS 
check and can demonstrate this has been completed by the Provider and ensure  

Page 69



   

  

Author: Sarah Newton, 22/08/2019 

future compliance with any requirements introduced by the DBS.  

• Maintain a current record of all Personnel and volunteers DBS information including the issue 
date, number and counter signatory body.  

• Report in a timely manner any Safeguarding concerns to Staffordshire’s First Response Team.  

• Maintain a current record of all Personnel’s training and development.  

• Respect confidentiality of users unless there is a Safeguarding concern.  

• Complete risk assessments for the Service and promote safe practices during delivery.  

• Complete relevant accident and injury records where necessary.  

• Ensure a lone working policy where applicable is implemented to ensure the welfare of 
Personnel.  

• Contribute to multi-agency decision-making, assessments, planning and interventions relating 
to children in need, children at risk of harm and LAC and CLs.   

• Where appropriate, and a CYP is known to the Service the Provider will attend child protection 
case conferences, and / or meetings to contribute to Individual Management Reviews (IMRs) 
and Serious Case Reviews (SCRs) in a timely manner.  

 
6.6 Record Keeping, Data Collection and Information Technology  
 
All providers who offer services to children and young people must record information to the MHSDS, which 
contains record-level data about the care of children, young people and adults who are in contact with mental 
health, learning disabilities or autism spectrum disorder services. It is a data set which has been approved by 
the Information Standards Board for Health and Social Care as an information standard for the NHS in 
England.  In 2019, there will be the introduction of a new metric and the Service must report on this as well as 
access. The national children and young people’s outcome measure was confirmed by NHS England recently.  
Thus far it has been communicated as being consistent with existing CYP Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies outcomes measurement.  Reliable improvement (and reliable change) is the basis for 
measurement. The new metric is: 
 
“Of all CYP, aged 0-18, discharged after treatment, how many show reliable improvement in presenting 
problem following treatment?”.  
 
 MHSDS information can be found in more detail by using the following hyperlink: 
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/data-collections-and-data-sets/data-sets/mental-health-services-
data-set 
 
The Provider shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with Information Governance requirements 
appropriate to that specified by the Council. Data Protection Legislation must be adhered to by the Provider.  
 
The Provider is required to: 
 

 Deliver an efficient and effective information governance system and Service that complies with 
statutory and legal requirements. 

 Provide support and infrastructure to ensure effective Information Governance across the 
organisation. 

 Comply with Data Protection Legislation. 

 Assist the Council and CCGs, when required, with their requirements to achieve transparency. The 
Provider shall also assist with requests for information made under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000 (as amended or enacted from time to time). 

 Identify specific information which is regarded as Confidential Information or Commercially Sensitive 
and may therefore be exempt from disclosure.  

 Ensure long term storage, retention and retrieval of data is adequate to support operational needs. 

 Have appropriate technical and organisational measures in place to safeguard manual and electronic 
information from accidental loss, damage and/or destruction.  

 Have security incident management processes in place to deal with potential or actual security 
breaches. 

 Ensure back up, recovery and contingency arrangements are in place to guarantee continuity of 
Service delivery. 

 
In line with the above detail and following good practice guidance, the Provider shall have agreed information 
sharing protocols with partner agencies, including other healthcare providers, Children’s Social Care and the 

Page 70

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/data-collections-and-data-sets/data-sets/mental-health-services-data-set
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/data-collections-and-data-sets/data-sets/mental-health-services-data-set


   

  

31 
 

Police to enable effective holistic services to be provided to CYP and their Families. The Provider shall ensure 
that all Personnel have access to information sharing guidance, including sharing information to safeguard or 
protect CYP, to improve co-ordination and to communicate between services.  
 
The Provider must have robust data and intelligence gathering systems to facilitate sharing and ensure routine 
data reporting and analysis to support the delivery, review and performance management of Services, 
including KPI reporting.   
 
6.7      Performance 
 
The Provider will be responsible for:  
 

 Delivering Services outlined within this Service Specification and meeting the targets for the KPI’s 
detailed within the Performance Management Framework (refer to section 12 of this Service 
Specification).  

 Reviewing the CYP’s Service offer to ensure that they are receiving appropriate types and duration 
of support.  

 Only keeping electronic records of individual CYP case information in order to support performance 
reporting. 

 Completing the quarterly Performance Report and returning this to the Authorised Officer as 
specified.  

 Participating in quarterly Contract Review meetings.  These meetings are likely to take place on 
Council premises.  More frequent meetings may be required during the first twelve (12) months of 
the Contract Period. 

 Production and submission of an Annual Report to the Authorised Officer. 
 
The Council will undertake periodic audits of the Service.  These audits may include, but not be limited to, a 
review of: 

 The Provider’s compliance with this Agreement.  

 The strategic relevance of the Service. 

 The demand for the Service. 

 Service performance. 

 The effectiveness of the Service in achieving the Service Outcomes. 

 Quality of the Service. 

 Best Value of the Service. 

 Service User feedback. 

 Stakeholder feedback. 
 

The Provider shall cooperate with the Authorised Officer when undertaking periodic assessments. The 
Provider shall cooperate with the Authorised Officer in arrangements for implementing, delivering, monitoring 
and adapting quality, performance and outcomes frameworks in relation to the Service. The Authorised 
Officer reserves the right to visit the Provider as part of the Council’s quality and performance monitoring role. 
 
6.7.1 Contract Review Meetings 
 
The Authorised Officer will arrange quarterly Contract Review meetings which require the attendance of the 
Provider and any Sub-contractor(s). 
 
Where targets for Key Performance Indicators are not met by the Provider, the Authorised Officer and 
Contract Manager will work together to understand the reasons for the underperformance.  During the 
eighteen (18) months of the PAP (refer to 6.4.1 in the Service Specification) the Authorised Officer will take 
into consideration performance in relation to the phased approach to the development of the Service, where 
appropriate.  If performance does not improve to the satisfaction of the Authorised Officer over two (2) 
subsequent quarterly Performance Reports, a Default Notice will be served by the Authorised Officer to the 
Provider. 
 
6.8      Complaints, Compliments and Customer Feedback 
 
The Council is committed to ensuring that commissioned services deliver the best possible service. The 
Provider must ensure that every complaint is investigated, and action taken where necessary. This will include 
putting things right if something has gone wrong.  

Page 71



   

  

32 
 

 
The Provider must:  
 

 Record all complaints and feedback. 

 Have a complaints procedure and complaints form. 

 Ensure that CYP and Families are aware of the procedure and form.  

 Ensure that complaints are acknowledged within five (5) Working Days of receipt. 

 Give a response within fifteen (15) Working Days of receipt. 

 If the complainant is still unhappy, they should be referred to the Council so that the complaint can be 
handled under the Council’s customer feedback process.  

 Copies of the complaints record shall be retained and be made available to the Council if requested. 
These shall also be made available as part of performance reporting and monitoring arrangements. 

 
6.8.1   Complaints regarding the Council    
 
If the Provider has a complaint about a member of staff or service from/provided by the Council a 
Compliments, Comments and Complaints online form should be completed via the Councils’ website. The 
procedure for dealing with the complaint by the Council is outlined below: 
 

 An acknowledgement will be sent within two (2) Working Days if a full response is not immediately 
possible. 

 A full response to email complaints will be sent within fifteen (15) Working Days, and other emails 
within seven (7) Working Days. 
 

When the Council replies, the response will detail: 
 

 Who is dealing with the issue. 

 The name and contact number for queries. 

 What is being done. 

 What will happen and by when. 

 In circumstances where it is unable to provide a full reply within these timescales, the Provider will be 
notified why and when you can expect a full response. 
 

Further information can be found using the following hyperlink: 
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/consultationandfeedback/complimentscommentscomplaints/hom
e.aspx 
 
6.9 Other Relevant Services 
 
6.9.1 Children and young people’s Health and Wellbeing Programme (0-19 years) 
 
The new Health and Wellbeing Programme aimed at zero (0) to nineteen (19) year olds launched on the 1

st
 

April 2018. This integrates health visiting and school nursing services. The programme seeks to deliver 
improved health and wellbeing outcomes to children, young people and families. It offers families universal 
reviews and checks alongside additional professional support. The programme has two (2) hubs across the 
County, one (1) in the East, one (1) in the West. These are single points of access for parents, children, young 
people and professionals that will provide timely access and appropriate advice, support, guidance and 
signposting when needed.  
 
One specific aspect of this new service is school nursing provision. Within middle and high school education 
settings across Staffordshire, children and young people are being offered access to booked appointments, 
drop in clinics or group support to review their health and wellbeing. This offer is one that is based on 
postcode and locality so will ensure that those not in mainstream education settings get equal access to 
services. All school nurses have specialised training to deal with low level EHWB issues and have robust 
referral links with local CAMHS. 
 
6.9.2 Chat Health (delivered by Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust as part of the 0-19 
Health and Wellbeing Programme)  
                   
This is a text and application service that is available for eleven (11) to nineteen (19) year olds across 
Staffordshire. All text messages are responded to by school nurses.  Confidential advice and support is 

Page 72

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/consultationandfeedback/complimentscommentscomplaints/home.aspx
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/consultationandfeedback/complimentscommentscomplaints/home.aspx


   

  

33 
 

offered within normal working hours (Monday – Friday from 9am – 5pm) and any messages received after this 
time are answered by staff at the start of the next Working Day.  
 
The text number for children and young people to use is: 07520 615723.  
 
The phone number of the central hub, that can be used by families or relevant stakeholders for advice is: 
03301240362. 
 
 
6.9.3 Universal Provision and Preventative Services 
 
A range of services are provided through Primary Care arrangements and Universal Provision to support the 
physical wellbeing of children, young people and their families.  The wellbeing service outlined via the 
following hyperlink is one example of this.   
https://northstaffswellbeing.co.uk/how-do-i-get-help/#selfhelp 
 
The Provider shall liaise with agencies including (but not limited to): The Citizens Advice Bureau, Housing 
Support Agencies, Children’s Centres, community-based organisations which provide a wide range of leisure, 
recreational and sports activities, GPs, dentists, opticians, schools and educational establishments, sexual 
health services where this is in the best interests of the children and young people. 
 
6.9.4 Acute/Crisis and Intervention Services 
 
Acute/crisis intervention services provided at Tier 4 are essentially deemed to be tertiary services such as day 
units, highly specialised outpatient teams and inpatient units for older children and young people who are 
severely mentally ill or at risk of crisis. The Provider shall have a sound understanding of the structures 
around Tier 4 provisioning and how they can access services should the needs of an eligible CYP Escalate to 
the point where such crisis intervention provision is required. 
 
6.9.5 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS)  
 
CAMHS in the North and South of Staffordshire offer specialist mental health services to CYP (up to eighteen 
(18) years) and their Families.  Two (2) different Healthcare Trusts deliver CAMHS across Staffordshire, with 
subtle differences between them.  Please use the hyperlinks below to gain access to further information on 
each.  
 
North Staffordshire: North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare Trust 
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=61CECU6Mmy0 

South Staffordshire: Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=CT6_miwW_1A 

7.0 VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
 
There are some key groups within Staffordshire who face significant difficulties that can prevent them from 
reaching their full potential. Some children and young people’s needs are greater than others as they are 
multiple or complex, increasing their risk of suffering poor EHWB.  
 
The prevalence of poor EHWB is higher in vulnerable children and young people such as those living with a 
parent with mental illness, those living in toxic family environments, LAC, offenders and children and young 
people with SEND.  Whilst not all children and young people who experience these factors will go on to 
develop EHWB issues more can be done to mitigate the level of these risks and build the resilience of children 
and young people from an early age.   
 
Where need is identified the Provider shall deliver specialist support, based on vulnerability and risk (to 
include LAC, CLs and those children and young people with an EHCP) for those who require it.  The Provider 
should also seek to identify and therefore report on Service uptake, outcomes and impact for the following 
group of CYP (this list is not exhaustive):  
 

 Teenage parents. 

Page 73

https://northstaffswellbeing.co.uk/how-do-i-get-help/#selfhelp
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=61CECU6Mmy0
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=CT6_miwW_1A


   

  

34 
 

 Children in Need and those who are subject of a Child Protection Plan.  

 LAC and CLs. 

 Children with disabilities including those with special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND). 

 Young carers. 

 Asylum seekers.  

 Homeless. 

 Travelling families. 

 Offenders.  

 Those not in education, employment or training.  

 Those persistently absent from school, not in education because of exclusion or accessing alternative 
provision (e.g. pupil referral units). 

 Those at risk of child exploitation. 

 Workless households. 
 
7.1 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 
 
The Service will ensure that it is accurately represented on the Staffordshire SEND Local Offer and that this 
information is kept up to date.  Families, professionals, CYP will be able to understand the eligibility criteria 
and access routes of the Service.  For more information on the Staffordshire SEND Local Offer use the 
hyperlink below; 
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/localoffer.page?localofferchannel=0 
 
Where there is a request from the Council for input into an EHCP it must be responded to within the agreed 
and statutory timescales of six (6) weeks.  Clinical Personnel will prioritise attendance at multidisciplinary 
meetings and reviews for CYP with an EHCP.  Clinicians and/or appropriate Personnel will prepare reports 
and attend SEND tribunals, as per statutory legal process, for CYP on the current caseload.  For CYP who are 
not on the caseload this will be agreed with the Authorised Officer on a case by case basis. 

 
8.0 INSPECTIONS 

 
The Council and CCGs are subject to Ofsted and CQC inspections respectively. The Provider is expected to 
contribute to any processes relating to inspections, where deemed relevant.  During an inspection, an 
inspector can request to interview partner agencies and to talk to CYP who have experience of the Service.   
 
 

9.0 RISK STRATIFICATION 

The Authorised Officer shall work with the Provider to ensure that Business Continuity Plans and risk 
management measures are in place so that Service delivery always remains available and effective. 
 
When looking to manage CYP’s risk, the Provider will need to consider the different needs of CYP across 
Staffordshire; any CYP that is Vulnerable or at risk should have their needs clearly identified via the Initial 
Assessment process. Whilst a range of different delivery options (such as face-to-face contacts, telephone 
conversations, Digital Offer or a combination of the aforementioned) should be available to any CYP as part of 
an inclusive offer, it is important that a risk management plan is in place for a CYP who is assessed as having 
heightened risk.  Such plans should include Families and professionals from key partner and stakeholder 
organisations to ensure risk is adequately assessed and regularly reviewed.  The Provider will be expected to 
hold regular meetings to manage risk effectively for CYP, will have a mechanism for escalating any high-risk 
cases (and mitigating risk) and will record this effectively on the CYPs electronic case file.  Information shall 
be cascaded and communicated with the Authorised Officer where appropriate to ensure both Parties are 
conversant with any escalating risks and learning taken from work undertaken.  
 
9.1 Exit Planning 

Exit planning arrangements will form part of the quarterly Contract Review meetings.  Upon serving Notice to 
terminate the Agreement the Council will arrange within seven (7) days for Providers and/or their partners to 
attend an exit meeting. 

Pursuant to clause 37 of the Agreement and upon serving Notice to terminate the Contract the Council will 
require the Provider and/or their partners to agree the following: 

Page 74

https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/localoffer.page?localofferchannel=0


   

  

35 
 

 The scope of Services of the Agreement and detail any additional requirements on either Party. 
 Tasks, timescales and responsibilities to ensure a professional and smooth transition to any other 

third party. 

 Final payment due to the Provider. 
 
 

10.0   SOCIAL VALUE 

Social Value is the ‘catch-all’ term used to describe the difference an organisation, service or project can 
make to the community they are operating within.  There is a recognised need for high quality, flexible EHWB 
Services that promote choice to CYP and communities but also add value and sustainability to the market.  
The Provider will be required to demonstrate within their submission how they will embed and deliver Social 
Value. 

The Authorised Officer requires the Provider to utilise a framework or tool to provide a minimum reporting 
standard and measurement of Social Value across this Contract and will report on this via quarterly Contract 
Review meetings.  An example of a basic tool which could be used is the National TOMS Framework, 
however it is recognised that a Provider may already have a preferred, robust mechanism for identifying, 
tracking and calculating Social Value.  Further information on the TOMS Framework can be found via the 
hyperlink below: 
https://socialvalueportal.com/national-toms/ 
The Provider must focus any Social Value within the Agreement on: -  
  

 
Theme 

 

 
Outcomes 

Social Healthier, Safer and More 
Resilient Communities 

Reducing health inequalities 
Creating healthier communities 
More working with communities 

Jobs Promoting Local Skills More opportunities for 
disadvantaged people 
Improved skills for local people 
Improved employability of young 
people 

Innovation 
 

Additional initiatives Any initiatives that promote social 
innovation 

 

11.0 COMMERCIAL OFFER 
 
The commercial offer is something that the Authorised Officer wants the flexibility to utilise throughout the 
Contract Period, should the need arise.  Where commerciality could have a place, as an addition to the 
Service offer, is when education, social care, CCGs or the Council would want to spot purchase individual or 
group packages of EHWB support. 
 
It is expected that any requests relating to a commercial offer would be brought to the attention of the 
Authorised Officer (via email or telephone) by the Provider at the point of request.  Clearly defined resource 
allocation, finance and outcomes would be required to assure that there are separate resources being utilised 
to deliver services outside of this Agreement.  Quarterly Contract review meetings will provide a mechanism to 
discuss the growth and development of the commercial offer. 
 

12.0 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 
 

The below table outlines a series of high-level outcomes that can be found within the Pan-Staffordshire 

Emotional Health and Wellbeing Strategy; Starting Well, Living Well, Supporting Well.  It is recognised that 

this Service will be able to significantly contribute to the achievement of these but will not be able to do so in 

isolation.   

 

Page 75

https://socialvalueportal.com/national-toms/


   

  

36 
 

 
High Level Outcome 

 

 
How will we know if we have achieved this? 

Children and young people have 
improved EHWB and lead healthier 
lifestyles.  
 
Children and young people exercise 
their choice, control, and feel 
empowered to make healthier and/or 
safer choices in relation to their EHWB. 

More children and young people supported to achieve positive 
outcomes in relation to their emotional wellbeing. 
Increased levels and models of self-help and mutual/peer 
support. 
Better understanding of personal rights and options. 
 

Staffordshire’s children and young 
people are supported to develop the 
resilience and capacity to manage their 
emotional stresses effectively, to step 
down and move on from statutory and 
intervention services and to access 
more support in their community. 

An improvement in the capacity of children and young people 
to access self-help following period of intervention. 
Increased numbers of children and young people accessing 
early intervention support including: self-help information, 
advice and access to universal services. 
 

Families have an increased confidence 
and knowledge to be able to better 
manage their children and young 
people’s needs.  

Increased confidence and ability of the families to manage 
EHWB issues.  
Children and young people are being supported in safe, stable 
family environments where their needs are being met. 
 

Relevant stakeholders have improved 
knowledge and skills to better 
understand and support children and 
young people to positively manage the 
impact of poor mental health. 

Improved support achieved through collaborative working 
between primary care, health and social care services to meet 
the totality of individual and family needs. 
Improved skills and confidence to support children and young 
people experiencing mental health distress. 
Stakeholders engaged in supporting children, young people 
and their families are aware of the local pathways and services 
and are confident in referring individuals. 
 

The wider community has improved 
awareness and understanding of mental 
health issues. 
 
Staffordshire’s communities are 
supported to make the best use of their 
skills, time and other resources to 
increase self-esteem, confidence and 
resilience among vulnerable children 
and young people. 
 
Children and young people and their 
families that need support with their 
EHWB needs are well connected with 
their communities. 
 

Increased awareness/knowledge in Staffordshire’s 
communities of EHWB problems, risk and protective factors, 
self-help and coping strategies. 
Reduced stigma and discrimination regarding poor mental 
health. 
Improved access to a wide range of opportunities and locally 
responsive Services to support children and young people.  

Children and young people are 
supported to live safely and 
independently and optimise recovery. 
 
Where there is a need for additional 
support children and young people will 
be supported to access the right type of 
support to meet their needs at the right 
time and in the right place. 
 
 

An increase in the number of children and young people 
accessing appropriate support including information, advice 
and signposting. 
Clear, integrated service pathways supporting children and 
young people, their families and relevant stakeholders to better 
navigate access to services to best meet their needs. 
Reduction in the number of children and young people needing 
crisis interventions or admissions to acute health and social 
care services. 
Reduction in the number of children and young people entering 
secondary mental health care. 
A reduction in suicide rates and suicide attempts. 

Page 76



   

  

37 
 

Improved access to early intervention services, that enable 
Children and young people to continue to function in their daily 
lives and help prevent escalation of need. 
An improvement in children and young people’s transition 
experience from CAMHS services to adult mental health 
services. 
Children and young people are appropriately supported to 
manage their recovery and where relevant their long-term 
mental health conditions. 
Improved knowledge of professionals and communities of any 
local EHWB service provision.  

Children, young people and their 
families shall be actively involved in 
shaping the design, access and 
performance of the services, making a 
positive contribution to sustainable 
service transformation and improvement 
planning. 

Children and young people will feel satisfied with service 
delivery and the outcomes they have achieved. 
Where service improvement is required, children and young 
people will play a fundamental role in developing new ways of 
working. 
Involvement will lead to increased social and communication 
skills, increased confidence and self-esteem. 

This Service will be accountable for the following Service Outcomes: 
 

 CYP accessing the Service have improved EHWB, lead healthier lifestyles and have choice, 
control and feel empowered to make positive decisions around their EHWB and mental health. 

 CYP accessing the Service are supported to live safely and independently but can access the 
right element of the Service, at the right time, in the right place to meet their needs when required.  

 CYP accessing the Service are supported to build resilience and capacity to manage their 
emotional wellbeing effectively. 

 Families whose child/ren have accessed the Service have increased confidence and knowledge to 
be able to better support the CYP’s needs. 

 Through this Service the wider community has improved awareness and understanding of 
emotional and mental health, building capacity and resource to support CYP effectively.   

The Service Outcomes will be measured by the following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

Ref No KPI: Target: *KPI 
Methodology: 

Frequency of reporting to 
the Authorised Officer: 

Digital Offer 
(There is a target of 70% response rate for CYP or Families, in relation to the below KPIs). 

EHWB 
1 

% of CYP accessing the 
Digital Offer for IAG 
(excluding 1-to-1 
counselling) that report 
satisfaction with the 
Digital Offer. 
(The Provider to be able to 
report the findings against the 
Vulnerable groups detailed in 
section 7 of the Service 
Specification.) 

80%  Quarterly 
 
Additional reporting 
requirements: 

- Information to be 
provided on CYP 
feedback I.e. what 
was useful and what 
was not useful / 
could be improved 

EHWB 
2 

% of CYP receiving an 
Initial Consultation from 
referral within 10 Working 
Days 
(only required for online 
1-to-1 counselling) 

90%  Quarterly 
 

EHWB 
3 

% of CYP receiving Initial 
Assessment from Initial 
Consultation within 10 
Working Days 
(only required for online 
1-to-1 counselling) 

90%  Quarterly 

EHWB % of CYP receiving 1-to- n/a  Quarterly 

Page 77



   

  

38 
 

4 1 counselling from Initial 
Assessment within 20 
Working Days 
(only required for online 
1-to-1 counselling) 

EHWB 
5 

% of CYP accessing the 
Digital Offer that go onto 
receive online counselling 

n/a  Quarterly 

EHWB 
6 

% of CYP accessing the 
Digital Offer for 
counselling that report 
satisfaction. 
(The Provider to be able to 
report the findings against the 
Vulnerable groups detailed in 
section 7 of the Service 
Specification.) 

80%  Quarterly 
 
Additional reporting 
requirements: 

- Information to be 
provided on CYP 
feedback I.e. what 
was useful and what 
was not useful / 
could be improved 

EHWB 
7 

% of CYP that have 
accessed the counselling 
element of the Digital 
Offer and report 
achievement of their 
goals (as measured via a 
Goal Based Outcomes 
tool) at planned exit of 
the Service. 

80%  Quarterly 

Direct, Indirect and Structured Interventions 
(There is a target of 70% response rate for CYP or Families, in relation to the below KPIs).  

EHWB 
8 

% of CYP receiving an 
Initial Consultation from 
referral within 10 Working 
Days 
(only required for Direct 
and Structured 
Interventions) 

80%  Quarterly 

EHWB 
9 

% of CYP receiving an 
Initial Assessment from 
Initial Consultation within 
10 Working Days 
(only required for Direct 
and Structured 
Interventions) 

80%  Quarterly 

EHWB 
10 

% of CYP receiving 
intervention from Initial 
Assessment within 20 
Working Days 
(only required for Direct 
and Structured 
Interventions) 

80%  Quarterly 

EHWB 
11 

% of CYP that have 
accessed Direct 
Interventions and report 
achievement of their 
goals (as measured via a 
Goal Based Outcomes 
tool) at planned exit of 
the Service. 

80%  Quarterly 
 
 

EHWB 
12 

% of CYP that have 
accessed Structured 

80%  Quarterly 
 

Page 78



   

  

39 
 

Interventions and report 
achievement of their 
goals (as measured via a 
Goal Based Outcomes 
tool) at planned exit of 
the Service. 

 

EHWB 
13 

% of CYP that have 
accessed a Structured 
Intervention that report 
satisfaction with the 
support they have 
received at planned exit 
from the Service. 
(The Provider to be able to 
report the findings against the 
Vulnerable groups detailed in 
section 7 of the Service 
Specification.) 

80%  Quarterly 
 
Additional reporting 
requirements: 
Information to be provided 
on CYP feedback I.e. what 
was useful and what was 
not useful / could be 
improved 

EHWB 
14 

% of CYP that have 
accessed a Direct 
Intervention that report 
satisfaction with the 
support they have 
received at planned exit 
from the Service. 
(The Provider to be able to 
report the findings against the 
Vulnerable groups detailed in 
section 7 of the Service 
Specification.) 

80%  Quarterly 
 
Additional reporting 
requirements: 
Information to be provided 
on CYP feedback I.e. what 
was useful and what was 
not useful / could be 
improved 

EHWB 
15 

% of CYP who report 
improved EHWB as a 
result of Direct 
Interventions (to be 
captured during the 
Service). 

80%  Quarterly 

EHWB 
16 

% of CYP who report 
improved EHWB as a 
result of Structured 
Interventions (to be 
captured during the 
Service). 

80%  Quarterly 

EHWB 
17 

% of Families who were 
engaged in the support 
for their CYP that report 
increased confidence to 
be able to support their 
CYP’s needs at planned 
exit from the Service. 

80%  Quarterly 

EHWB 
18 

% of CYP who report that 
they are confident, 
following a Direct 
Intervention, that they 
have acquired the tools to 
sustain their own EHWB 
at planned exit from the 
Service. 

80%  Quarterly 

EHWB 
19 

% of CYP who report that 
they are confident, 
following a Structured 
Intervention, that they 
have acquired the tools to 

80%  Quarterly 

Page 79



   

  

40 
 

sustain their own EHWB 
at planned exit from the 
Service. 

General 

EHWB 
20 

% of complaints 
investigated and 
concluded within 20 
Working Days 

95%  Quarterly 
 
Additional reporting 
requirements: 
Information to be provided 
regarding: 
- any common themes of 
complaints in relation to the 
Digital Offer 
- any common themes of 
complaints in relation to the 
Direct, Indirect and 
Structured Interventions.   
- What actions the Provider 
has taken as a result of the 
complaints.  

Where targets for Key Performance Indicators are not met by the Provider, the Authorised Officer 
and Contract Manager will work together to understand the reasons for the underperformance.  
During the eighteen (18) months of the PAP (refer to 6.4.1 in the Service Specification) the 
Authorised Officer will take into consideration performance in relation to the phased approach to 
the development of the Service, where appropriate. 
If performance does not improve to the satisfaction of the Authorised Officer over two (2) 
subsequent quarterly Performance Reports, a Default Notice will be served by the Authorised 
Officer to the Provider. 

Management Information required (to be reported by the 
Provider as part of the Performance Report) 

Frequency of reporting to the 
Authorised Officer: 

 
Digital Offer: 

- Information regarding 

 CYPs most frequently reported presenting 
conditions i.e. as per 5.3.2 and the Provider’s 
response / actions / service developments in 
relation to these.  Information must be provided 
separately for each element of the Digital Offer. 

 Data regarding how CYP became aware of the 
Service; such as, but not limited to, school, 
Facebook, etc. 

 Regarding the online counselling service; details 
of the number and type of referrals Escalated to 
other partners i.e. Safeguarding, CAMHS etc. 

 A minimum of two (2) case studies to evidence 
the impact the Service has had on a CYP.  The 
detail and nature of the required case studies will 
be discussed with the Provider during quarterly 
Contract Review meetings and decisions made 
by the Authorised Officer, acting reasonably. 

 The use of social media by the Provider as per 
5.13.  
 

 
Direct, Indirect or Structured Interventions  
The Service Specification details the information that needs to be 
recorded, it is required that this information can be 
disaggregated.  For example, what are the most frequently 
presenting conditions for females, LAC, etc. 

 CYPs most frequently reported presenting 

 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly during the first 12 months of 
this Agreement; then every 6 months. 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly during the first 12 months of 
this Agreement; then every 6 months. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



   

  

41 
 

conditions i.e. as per 5.3.2. and the Provider’s 
response and actions in relation to these.  
Information must be provided separately for each 
element of the intervention. 

 Details regarding the number / % and type of 
referrals Escalated to other partners i.e. 
Safeguarding, CAMHS etc.  

 Details regarding the number / % of case 
closures by reason i.e. successful closure, 
unsuccessful etc. 

 Details regarding the number / % and type of 
cases De-escalated i.e. De-escalated and closed 
successfully; De-escalated, closed successfully 
and signposted; etc. 

 Number of referrals, source of referrals, number / 
% of appropriate / accepted referrals, number / % 
of inappropriate referrals (and why / from which 
source) and actions taken by the Provider. 

 A minimum of two (2) case studies to evidence 
the impact the Service has had on a CYP.  The 
detail and nature of the required case studies will 
be discussed with the Provider during quarterly 
Contract Review meetings and decisions made 
by the Authorised Officer, acting reasonably. 

 Number / % of referrals that go on to Initial 
Consultation, number/% of Initial Consultations 
that go on to Initial Assessment, number/% of 
Initial Assessments that go on to access Direct, 
Indirect or Structured Interventions. 

 The number /% of CYP accessing the different 
elements of the Direct, Indirect or Structured 
Interventions, following the Initial Assessment, as 
outlined in the referral Pathway (5.4 of the 
Service Specification. 

 Number of Direct or Structured Interventions 
(reported in the quarter of case closure). 

 Number / % of Direct or Structured Interventions 
broken down by: 
- Brief Intervention: two (2) or less separate 
interventions 
- three (3) to six (6) separate interventions 
- six plus (6+) separate interventions 

 The average number of interventions delivered 
per quarter, per individual child or young person 
(reported in the quarter of case closure). 

 Number of Structured or Direct Interventions per 
individual CYP at the point that the CYP is 
Escalated to CAMHS. 

 Number / % of re-referrals (5.4.3 of the Service 
Specification) within twelve (12) weeks of case 
closure and information regarding the common 
themes for re-referrals to the Service. 

 Number / % of scheduled appointments not 
attended by CYP or Families.  Information to be 
provided of the common themes regarding non-
attendance where known by the Provider.  
 

Mental Health Services Data  
Information regarding 

 The number / % of CYP accessing the Service 

Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly  
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly  
 
 
 
 
Quarterly  
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



   

  

42 
 

where there have been two or more separate 
interventions, these may be Indirect Interventions 
relating to CYP.  A CYP can only be counted 
once in each financial year (1

st
 April to 31

st
 

March).  

 The number / % of CYP who have shown reliable 
improvement following a therapeutic intervention. 

 

Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 

The requirements outlined in Section 12 of this Service Specification and denoted with an asterix 
(*) are to be discussed between the Authorised Officer and Contract Manager during the 
mobilisation period.  The final decision will be the responsibility of the Authorised Officer, acting 
reasonably. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A.1 PLACE BASED APPROACH 
 

Page 82



   

  

43 
 

A.2 SOUTH STAFFORDSHIRE NEEDS ANALYSIS FOR TRAILBLAZER 

Information to support South Staffordshire Trailblazer bid, May 2019 

This paper pulls together some of the key needs for the four South Staffordshire CCGs.  The CCGs are 

coterminous with six local authority areas: Cannock Chase, East Staffordshire, Lichfield, South Staffordshire, 

Stafford and Tamworth. 

As part of the Children’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) a number of geographical locations in 

Staffordshire were identified where children and families faced multiple issues such as unemployment or low 

incomes, low educational attainment, poor housing and poor health, care and wellbeing outcomes as 

illustrated in Figure 1.
1
 

The JSNA identified these areas as needing focus and an integrated partnership response that promotes 

prevention and early help to reduce the risk of negative outcomes before they escalate.  Many of the risk 

factors used to identify these areas are associated with poor mental health and it is likely these areas will 

therefore also experience higher levels of children with poor emotional wellbeing. 

Schools from each CCG area which primarily fall within areas of higher need are proposed as being 

approached for their readiness to participate.  The schools selected cover a range of primary and secondary 

schools; summary characteristics are shown in Table 1. 

Table 1: Summary characteristics of proposed schools by CCG 

 
Cannock 

Chase 

East 
Staffordshir

e 

South East 
Staffordshire 
and Seisdon 

Peninsula 

Stafford 
and 

Surrounds 

Number of schools 31 31 34 30 

 Of which primary 27 (87%) 19 (61%) 22 (65%) 22 (73%) 

 Of which secondary 3 (10%) 8 (26%) 7 (21%) 5 (17%) 

 Of which special 1 (3%) 3 (10%) 3 (9%) 3 (10%) 

 Of which Pupil Referral Unit 0 (0%) 1 (3%) 2 (6%) 0 (0%) 

Located in rural areas 2 (6%) 3 (10%) 0 (0%) 9 (30%) 

Schools rated as good or 
outstanding 

25 (81%) 29 (94%) 30 (88%) 22 (73%) 

Total number on school roll 10,000 12,600 11,300 7,600 

Boys 5,000 
(50%) 

6,400 (51%) 5,800 (52%) 3,900 (51%) 

Girls 5,000 
(50%) 

6,100 (49%) 5,500 (48%) 3,700 (49%) 

From a minority ethnic group 700 (7%) 4,300 (35%) 1,000 (9%) 1,000 (13%) 

Eligible for Pupil Premium 2,200 
(22%) 

2,500 (20%) 2,600 (23%) 1,800 (24%) 

Eligible for free school meals 1,400 
(14%) 

1,500 (12%) 1,700 (15%) 1,000 (14%) 

Special educational needs 1,300 
(13%) 

1,800 (15%) 1,800 (16%) 1,300 (16%) 

Looked after children 50 (<1%) 50 (<1%) 70 (1%) 30 (<1%) 

Note: Numbers and percentages may not add up due to rounding 

Source: School Census (January 2019) and State-funded school inspections and outcomes: management 
information as at March 2019 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/monthly-management-
information-ofsteds-school-inspections-outcomes 

                                            
1
 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-

Assessment-April-2017.pdf 

Page 83

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/monthly-management-information-ofsteds-school-inspections-outcomes
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/monthly-management-information-ofsteds-school-inspections-outcomes
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf


   

  

44 
 

Figure 1: Children’s need ward level index for Staffordshire, 2017 

 

Source: https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-
Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf 
  

Page 84

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf


   

  

45 
 

CCG based data 

Cannock Chase 

There are around 21,600 children aged five to 19 registered to GPs in the Cannock Chase CCG area covered 

by 48 schools (includes two special schools and one Pupil Referral Unit).  Based on national prevalence 

estimates around one in eight (12.8%) of children aged five to 19 are estimated to have a mental health 

disequating to around 2,800 children in Cannock Chase.
2
  In terms of factors which increase the risk of poor 

emotional wellbeing; 

 Around 10% of Cannock Chase CCG’s population live in deprived areas and higher than average 
proportions of households under financial stress; around 14% of children live in poverty which rises to 
22% after housing costs. 

 Around 29% of Cannock Chase CCG’s area is classified as being rural with 13% of its population 
living in these areas. 

 The proportion of children within this age group from minority ethnic groups within the area is around 
6%. 

 The proportion of school-aged children eligible for Pupil Premium within the area is 22%. 

 Around 4.7% of children and young people under 20 in Cannock Chase have a limiting long-term 
condition or disability and 14% of school-aged children were identified as having special educational 
needs (of which one in nine have a primary need identified as social, emotional and mental health). 

 The CCG area has higher levels of adults who have depression. 

 As at March 2019 there were around 160 looked after children in Cannock Chase with some wards 
having rates higher than the England average.  Pupil absence is higher than the national average in 
Cannock Chase. 

 As at March 2019 there were around 40 young people aged 16-17 not in education, training or 
employment (NEET). 

 Cannock Chase also has a higher proportion of children who are obese or have excess weight 

 Cannock Chase experiences higher levels of violent crime and incidents of anti-social behaviour.  The 
latest juvenile reoffending rate for the 2016/17 cohort in Cannock Chase was 48%; higher than the 
national rate (41%).  The CCG area also has pockets where levels of domestic abuse levels are 
higher than average.  
 

East Staffordshire 

There are around 25,000 children aged five to 19 registered to GPs in the East Staffordshire CCG area 

covered by 63 schools (includes three special schools and one Pupil Referral Unit).  Based on national 

prevalence estimates around one in eight (12.8%) of children aged five to 19 are estimated to have a mental 

health disorder equating to around 3,200 children in East Staffordshire. 

In terms of factors which increase the risk of poor emotional wellbeing; 

 Around 17% of East Staffordshire CCG’s population live in deprived areas and higher than average 
proportions of households under financial stress; around 15% of children live in poverty which rises to 
23% after housing costs. 

 Around 84% of East Staffordshire’s area is classified as being rural with 28% of its population living in 
these areas. 

 The proportion of children within this age group from minority ethnic groups within the area is around 
29%. 

 The proportion of school-aged children eligible for Pupil Premium within the area is 16%. 

 Around 3.7% of children and young people under 20 in East Staffordshire have a limiting long-term 
condition or disability and 12% of school-aged children were identified as having special educational 
needs (of which one in eight have a primary need identified as social, emotional and mental health). 

 As at March 2019 there were around 200 looked after children in East Staffordshire with some wards 
having rates higher than the England average.  

 As at March 2019 there were almost 30 young people aged 16-17 not in education, training or 
employment (NEET). 

                                            
2
 Mental Health of Children and Young People Survey 2017, NHS Digital https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-

information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017 

Page 85

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017


   

  

46 
 

 East Staffordshire experiences higher levels of violent crime as well as hotspots where overall levels 
of crime level, as well as anti-social behaviour and domestic abuse levels are higher than average.  
The latest juvenile reoffending rate for the 2016/17 cohort in East Staffordshire was 37% which is 
similar to the national rate (41%). 

 

South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula (Lichfield, South Staffordshire and Tamworth district) 

There are around 35,600 children aged five to 19 registered to GPs in the South East Staffordshire and 

Seisdon Peninsula CCG area covered by 102 schools (includes eight special schools and two Pupil Referral 

Units).  Based on national prevalence estimates around one in eight (12.8%) of children aged five to 19 are 

estimated to have a mental health disorder equating to around 4,600 children in South East Staffordshire and 

Seisdon Peninsula.  In terms of factors which increase the risk of poor emotional wellbeing; 

 Around 8% of South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula CCG’s population live in deprived 
areas (although this varies across the CCG with Tamworth having around 18% of its population living 
in deprived areas and higher than average proportions of households under financial stress;).  Around 
12% of children live in poverty which rises to 19% after housing costs. 

 Around 68% of South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula’s area is classified as being rural with 
17% of its population living in these areas. 

 The proportion of children within this age group from minority ethnic groups within the area is around 
10%. 

 The proportion of school-aged children eligible for Pupil Premium within the area is 18%. 

 Around 4.1% of children and young people under 20 in South East Staffordshire and Seisdon 
Peninsula have a limiting long-term condition or disability and 13% of school-aged children were 
identified as having special educational needs (of which one in eight have a primary need identified as 
social, emotional and mental health). 

 As at March 2019 there were around 275 looked after children in the three districts primarily covering 
South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula with some wards in Tamworth having rates higher 
than the England average.  The proportion of children looked after from South Staffordshire who 
commit crime is much higher than the average. 

 As at March 2019 there were almost 70 young people aged 16-17 not in education, training or 
employment (NEET). 

 Based on data from the 2011 Census around 90 children live in Lichfield whose parents are within the 
armed forces.  

 The CCG area also has pockets where levels of crime level (including violent crime), as well as anti-
social behaviour and domestic abuse levels are higher than average.  The latest juvenile reoffending 
rate for the 2016/17 cohort for the three districts in the CCG area was 43% which is similar to the 
national rate (41%).   

 Pupil absence is also higher than the national average in the Tamworth locality. 

 Tamworth also has higher than average teenage pregnancy rates.  
 

Stafford and Surrounds 

There are around 23,200 children aged five to 19 registered to GPs in the Stafford and Surrounds CCG area 

covered by 74 schools (includes three special schools and one Pupil Referral Unit).  Stafford has a higher 

than average suicide rate.  Based on national prevalence estimates around one in eight (12.8%) of children 

aged five to 19 are estimated to have a mental health disorder equating to around 3,000 children in Stafford.  

In terms of factors which increase the risk of poor emotional wellbeing; 

 Around 5% of Stafford and Surrounds CCG’s population live in deprived areas; around 10% of 
children live in poverty which rises to 17% after housing costs. 

 Around 93% of Stafford’s area is classified as being rural with 41% of its population living in these 
areas. 

 The proportion of children within this age group from minority ethnic groups within the area is around 
12%. 

 The proportion of school-aged children eligible for Pupil Premium within the area is 18%. 

 Around 4.1% of children and young people under 20 in Stafford have a limiting long-term condition or 
disability and 11% of school-aged children were identified as having special educational needs (of 
which one in eight have a primary need identified as social, emotional and mental health). 

Page 86



   

  

47 
 

 As at March 2019 there were around 135 looked after children in Stafford with some wards having 
rates higher than the England average.  The proportion of children looked after who commit crime is 
also much higher than the average. 

 As at March 2019 there were almost 70 young people aged 16-17 not in education, training or 
employment (NEET). 

 Based on data from the 2011 Census around 265 children living in Stafford whose parents are within 
the armed forces. 

 The latest juvenile reoffending rates for the 2016/17 cohort in Stafford was 50%; higher than the 
national rate (41%). 

 Stafford has pockets where levels of pupil absence, obesity and crime levels (including violent crime, 
anti-social behaviour and domestic abuse) are higher than average. 

 

Further information: 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/healthandwellbeing/yourhealthinstaffordshire.
aspx 

 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-
Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf 

 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-
JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf 

 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-
Packs.aspx 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/healthandwellbeing/yourhealthinstaffordshire.aspx#.XMqw7stYbIU
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/healthandwellbeing/yourhealthinstaffordshire.aspx#.XMqw7stYbIU
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-Packs.aspx
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-Packs.aspx


   

  

48 
 

A.3 NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE NEEDS ANALYSIS FOR TRAILBLAZER 

Information to support Trailblazer bid, May 2019 

This paper pulls together some of the key needs for North Staffordshire CCGs.  The CCG is coterminous with 

two local authority areas: Newcastle-under-Lyme and Staffordshire Moorlands. 

As part of the Children’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) a number of geographical locations in 

Staffordshire were identified where children and families faced multiple issues such as unemployment or low 

incomes, low educational attainment, poor housing and poor health, care and wellbeing outcomes as 

illustrated in Figure 1.
3
 

The JSNA identified these areas as needing focus and an integrated partnership response that promotes 

prevention and early help to reduce the risk of negative outcomes before they escalate.  Many of the risk 

factors used to identify these areas are associated with poor mental health and it is likely these areas will 

therefore also experience higher levels of children with poor emotional wellbeing. 

Schools from each CCG area which primarily fall within areas of higher need are proposed as being 

approached for their readiness to participate.  The schools selected exclude those from Phase 1 but cover a 

range of primary, secondary and special schools; summary characteristics are shown in Table 1. 

Table 2: Summary characteristics of proposed schools in North Staffordshire (Phase 2) 

 North 
Staffordshire 

Number of schools 32 

 Of which primary 20 (63%) 

 Of which secondary 7 (22%) 

 Of which special 5 (16%) 

Located in rural areas 7 (22%) 

Schools rated as good or 
outstanding 

26 (81%) 

Total number on school roll 10,900 

Boys 5,700 (52%) 

Girls 5,200 (48%) 

From a minority ethnic group 1,300 (12%) 

Eligible for Pupil Premium 2,300 (21%) 

Eligible for free school meals 1,300 (12%) 

Special educational needs 1,600 (15%) 

Looked after children 50 (< 1%) 

Note: Numbers and percentages may not add up due to rounding 

Source: School Census (January 2019) and State-funded school inspections and outcomes: management 
information as at March 2019 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/monthly-management-
information-ofsteds-school-inspections-outcomes 

 

  

                                            
3
 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-

Assessment-April-2017.pdf 

Page 88

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/monthly-management-information-ofsteds-school-inspections-outcomes
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/monthly-management-information-ofsteds-school-inspections-outcomes
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf


   

  

49 
 

 

Figure 2: Proposed schools and children’s need ward level index (Phase 2) 

 

Source: Staffordshire County Council and  
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-
Assessment-April-2017.pdf 
 

Health needs and inequalities in North Staffordshire CCG 

There are around 34,700 children aged five to 19 registered to GPs in the North Staffordshire CCG area 

covered by 113 schools (includes seven special schools and one Pupil Referral Unit).  Based on national 

prevalence estimates around one in eight (12.8%) of children aged five to 19 are estimated to have a mental 

health disorder equating to around 4,500 children in North Staffordshire.
4
  In terms of factors which increase 

the risk of poor emotional wellbeing; 

 Around 9% of North Staffordshire CCG’s population live in deprived areas; the proportion of 
households under financial stress is higher than the England average in some parts of Newcastle and 
Staffordshire Moorlands. 

 Around 13% of children live in poverty which rises to 21% after housing costs – for some wards the 
rate of children living in poverty after housing costs rises to one in three. 

 Around 83% of North Staffordshire CCG’s area is classified as being rural with 24% of its population 
living in these areas. 

 The proportion of children within this age group from minority ethnic groups within North Staffordshire 
CCG is around 8%. 

 The proportion of school-aged children eligible for Pupil Premium within the North Staffordshire CCG 
area is 18%. 

                                            
4
 Mental Health of Children and Young People Survey 2017, NHS Digital https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-

information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017 

Page 89

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017


   

  

50 
 

 Around 3.8% of children and young people under 20 in North Staffordshire have a limiting long-term 
condition or disability and 12% of school-aged children were identified as having special educational 
needs (of which one in eight have a primary need identified as social, emotional and mental health). 

 Based on data from the 2011 Census around 50 children live in Newcastle who have at least one 
parent within the armed forces. 

 The CCG area has higher levels of adults who have depression; Newcastle also has a higher rate for 
admissions to hospital due to self-harm. 

 As at March 2019 there were around 260 looked after children in North Staffordshire with some wards 
having rates much higher than the England average. 

 Pupil absence in North Staffordshire is around 4.7%, whilst this is lower than the England average 
some schools have higher rates. 

 As at March 2019 there were around 65 young people aged 16-17 not in education, training or 
employment (NEET) across the North Staffordshire area. 

 Newcastle has a higher proportion of children who are obese or have excess weight. 

 Newcastle has the eight highest teenage pregnancy rate in the Country. 

 The Newcastle locality also experiences higher levels of violent crime and incidents of anti-social 
behaviour; there are also pockets in Staffordshire Moorlands where rates for both or one of these 
crimes are higher than average. 

 The latest juvenile reoffending rate for the 2016/17 cohort in North Staffordshire was 36%; similar to 
the national rate (41%).  The CCG area also has pockets where levels of domestic abuse levels are 
higher than average.  The proportion of children looked after, particularly in Staffordshire Moorlands, 
who commit crime is much higher than the average. 

 

Further information: 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/healthandwellbeing/yourhealthinstaffordshire.
aspx 

 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-
Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf 

 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-
JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf 

 

 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-
Packs.aspx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/healthandwellbeing/yourhealthinstaffordshire.aspx#.XMqw7stYbIU
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/healthandwellbeing/yourhealthinstaffordshire.aspx#.XMqw7stYbIU
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health/JSNA/2017/Childrens-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-April-2017.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/Health-and-Wellbeing/Emotional-wellbeing-JSNA-July-2018-FINAL.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-Packs.aspx
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/publications/thestaffordshirestory/Locality-Data-Packs.aspx


   

  

51 
 

A.4 STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL RESIDENTIAL PLACEMENT 

COMMISSIONING ANALYSIS (April 2019) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



   

  

52 
 

 

 

Page 92



   

  

53 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 93



   

  

54 
 

A.5 COMMISSIONED SERVICES ACROSS STAFFORDSHIRE FOR ADULT 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH, SOCIAL INCLUSION AND RECOVERY CONTRACTS 

 
 Social Inclusion and Recovery Contracts - Stafford, Cannock and South Staffs: 

https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=r2pv10VqT_w&adu
ltchannel=0 

 Social Inclusion and Recovery Contracts – Burton, Tamworth and Lichfield: 
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=85-
dTQpRSVM&adultchannel=0 

 Social Inclusion and Recovery Contracts – Newcastle and Moorlands: 
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=s-
JoMkcHWFk&adultchannel=0 

 
There are three services that cover Staffordshire. Below are the eligibility criteria: 

A person shall only be entitled to access the Service and shall therefore constitute an Eligible Adult for the 

purposes of this Contract, if they comply with the following criteria:  

(1) they are over sixteen (16) years of age, and;  

(2) they have a primary need of substantial, and functional, mental health, and;  

(3) they are permanently or ordinarily resident in the Contract Area; or  

(4) they are registered with a general practitioner within the Contract Area.  

The Provider shall not unreasonably refuse access to the Services to any individual who is either permanently 

or ordinarily resident in close proximity to the boundary of the Contract Area or who is registered with a 

general practitioner whose base is in close proximity to the boundary of the Contract Area in circumstances 

where it is more practicable for the individual to access the Services in the Contract Area than elsewhere in 

the Council’s administrative area.  

Eligible adults who are referred to the service and have assessed eligible social care needs shall be prioritised 

in the provision of the service. Any adults with SEND will be supported within the service. 

And below is what they are expected to deliver in terms of methods of support: 

It is envisaged that Service Users will have a choice of a range of methods of support to enable their 

Recovery as an individual. The principle being that the care and support will fit the person and not the person 

having to fit the care and support provided. The provider will therefore deliver as a minimum the following 

range of opportunities:  

Direct One to One support and interventions (1) Eligible Adults will have a named Mental Health Support 

worker (2) Mental Health Support workers will provide emotional and motivational support (3) Mental Health 

Support workers will carry a caseload of Eligible Adults. This caseload is intended to be dynamic with Eligible 

Adults exiting this element of the provision as needs are met to create capacity for new Eligible Adults. (4) 

Mental Health Support workers will act as community bridge builders facilitating eligible adults to access the 

following but not limited to universal opportunities, finance and benefits advice, support to maintain or gain 

settled accommodation; healthy lifestyle interventions as defined in their Outcome Action Plan. (5) Mental 

Health Support workers, will work peripatetically, including in community venues, the service users own home, 

and health and social care settings.    

Peer Support (1) A range of types and methods of Peer support on an individual and group basis- (a) 

‘informal’ (naturally occurring) support; (b) peers participating in consumer, or peer-run, programmes; and 

direct one to one support and (c) employing people with lived experience within services. (2) All forms of peer 

support and peer roles should follow and maintain several core principles including mutuality, reciprocity, a 

‘non-directive’ approach, being recovery-focused, strengths-based, inclusive, progressive and safe. (3) The 

Page 94

https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=r2pv10VqT_w&adultchannel=0
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=r2pv10VqT_w&adultchannel=0
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=85-dTQpRSVM&adultchannel=0
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=85-dTQpRSVM&adultchannel=0
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=s-JoMkcHWFk&adultchannel=0
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=s-JoMkcHWFk&adultchannel=0


   

  

55 
 

provider will develop a range of resources led by Service Users to aid personal recovery and to promote 

mental wellbeing in the community.  

Safe Spaces Sessions (1) provide access to safe space opportunities designed to promote recovery and 

facilitate access to universal resources; (2) This is time when Service Users can just ‘turn up’ and ‘drop in’ and 

receive support for either their emotional distress or to care navigate them or facilitate signposting to the right 

support that they need. (3) Receive emotional and practical advice and information  

Structured Courses and Activities.  (1) All course and activities will be co-produced between professionals and 

Service Users; (2) Courses can be condition, activity, or topic specific but will be time limited with agreed 

outcomes, and a bridge building component to universal provision, enabling Service Users to access 

community resources and assets; (3) Help people develop their skills and understanding; (4) Help people 

identify personal goals and ambitions; (5) Create a fun, positive and safe environment for learning and 

activities and exploring recovery (6) Give people the confidence and support to access opportunities and 

resources available to them.  

In addition, there is also the Staffordshire Mental Health Helpline 

 

The Helpline can help you if you are: 

 Aged over 18 and living in Staffordshire 

 Feeling pressured 

 In debt or worried about your finances 

 Not coping 

 Having a relationship or family breakdown 

 Concerned about your physical or mental health 

 Unemployed 

 Isolated or lonely 

 Sad because someone has died 

 Concerned about a friend, colleague or family member 

 Looking after somebody and need some support 

 
The Helpline will: 

 LISTEN to your worried and concerns 

 SUPPORT you when you need it most 

 INFORM you about services that may be able to help 

 HELP you to plan your next steps 
 

Adults can call FREE from landlines and mobile networks on 0808 800 2234 Text: 07860 022821 (FREE) 

Email: Staffordshire.helpline@brighter-futures.org.uk 

https://www.brighter-futures.org.uk/staffordshire-mental-health-helpline/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95

https://www.brighter-futures.org.uk/staffordshire-mental-health-helpline/


   

  

56 
 

A.6 PREMISE INFORMATION 

Co-location or shared premises could be considered where appropriate to usage.  Premises do not need to be 

static or fixed throughout the life of the Contract.  There are a host of potential opportunities for premise 

sharing or co-location across Staffordshire.  The suitability and relevance of these will depend on the service 

model ultimately. Some options for consideration or exploration could include the following: 

There are 11 Children’s Centres in total are situated in every district across Staffordshire. Whilst costings 
may be similar throughout, availability may vary from Centre to Centre.  Sarah Edgerton the Early Years 
Coordination Service Manager is the preferred initial contact on 07901 350546 / 
sarah.edgerton@staffordshire.gov.uk 

Venues include:  

 Cannock Children’s Centre  

 East Staffordshire Children’s Centre in Burton-on-Trent  

 Hill Street Children’s Centre in Stapenhill, Burton-on-Trent 

 Charnwood Children’s Centre in Lichfield 

 Landywood Children’s Centre in Great Wyrley 

 Silkmore Children’s Centre in Stafford 

 Maryhill Children’s Centre, Kidsgrove 

 Staffordshire Moorlands Children’s Centre in Biddulph 

 Glascote Children’s Centre in Tamworth  

 Leyfield’s Children’s Centre in Tamworth 

 Newcastle-under-Lyme Children’s Centre  

 https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Children-and-early-years/ccentres/Childrens-centres.aspx 

The Families’ Health and Wellbeing Service (0-19) has two Hubs that provide families and CYP with advice 

and support from professionals within the 0-19 services.  The teams based within the Hubs are the point of 

access for professionals and healthcare services. 

 West Hub (covering Moorlands, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Stafford surrounds and Seisdon) 
FHWS.west@mpft.nhs.uk or FHWS.west@nhs.net    
0300 303 3923 

 East Hub (covering East Staffordshire, Tamworth, Lichfield and Cannock) 
FHWS.east@mpft.nhs.uk or FHWS.east@nhs.net   
0300 303 3924 

 https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=9-dAgSBtWGg 
 
SCVYS (Staffordshire Council of Voluntary Youth Services) are willing to be an initial point of contact for 
knowledge around potential premise sharing or co-location opportunities within the voluntary sector.  
Additionally, on the SCVYS website there is a host of information on youth activities that take place across the 
County. 
 
Contact details are as follows:  
42a Eastgate Street 
Stafford 
ST16 2LY 
Phone: 01785 240378 
Email: office@staffscvys.org.uk 
http://staffscvys.org.uk/find-activities/ 

CAMHS locations can be limited for space however refer to section 6.9.5 (page 27) for further contact details. 

Schools and Education Settings across Staffordshire may also present opportunities for accommodation. 

Amity Hub is an SCC commissioned hub based in Newcastle Under Lyme that supports UASC. 
http://amityhub.co.uk/ 

Page 96

mailto:sarah.edgerton@staffordshire.gov.uk
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Children-and-early-years/ccentres/Childrens-centres.aspx
mailto:FHWS.west@mpft.nhs.uk
mailto:FHWS.west@nhs.net
mailto:FHWS.east@mpft.nhs.uk
mailto:FHWS.east@nhs.net
https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/service.page?id=9-dAgSBtWGg
mailto:office@staffscvys.org.uk
http://staffscvys.org.uk/find-activities/
http://amityhub.co.uk/


Consultation Information 

Page 1 of 4 
 

General Consultation Arrangements – CYP Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing – Strategy review and Development 
(informing Future Commissioning Intentions) 

Audience Form of Consultation Date 

Strategic Governance Meetings 

Sustainability and 
Transformation Planning 
(STP) 

STP Mental Health Workstream Meetings – All Age Mental 
Health and Children’s Mental Health 

 
22nd January 2018 

Pan Staffordshire CAMHS 
Joint Commissioning Board 

Planning and consultation arrangements shared 
Draft Strategy to Commissioning Board  
Second Draft Strategy (with comments by 9th August 2018) 
Final Draft Strategy sign off 

9th May 2018,  
17th July 2018 
7th August 2018 
19th September 2018 

SCC Families Partnership 
Executive Group 

Presentation – Strategy and commissioning priorities 1st August 2018 

Future In Mind Meetings Presentations on the Strategy and updates at each meeting 
on progress of implementation of joint commissioning 
intentions 
 
FIM South 
 
FIM North 
 

 
 
 
 
Monthly meetings 
 
6 weekly meetings 

Partnership Meetings 

Individual Consultation 
meetings with current 
providers 

Future commissioning intentions following failed tender in 
2018, discussion on options to extend the current 
contractual arrangements and the proposed new service 
model. 

December 2018 

CYP Participation and 
Engagement Meetings 

South Staffordshire – CYP Participation Forum - Quarterly 
Meetings (supported by MPFT and YESS) 

10th January 2018 (Jill Mogg/Roger 
Graham) 
11th April 2018 (Jill Mogg/Roger 
Graham) 
24th October 2018 (Sarah Newton) 

CYP Voice Steering Group Updates at regular meetings 18th January 2018 

P
age 97



Consultation Information 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Wider Stakeholder Consultation 

Consultation Events Stakeholder/Governance Workshop 27th March 2018 

Stakeholder Event (Strategy) Staffordshire - 5th June 2018 
Stoke on Trent – 18th June 2018 

Market Engagement Event (x2) 
Staffordshire 

 
9th May 2018  
 
 
 

Strategy Development Workflows 

Task and Finish Group – 
Staffordshire Looked After 
Children 

Options Appraisal – LAC mental health and emotional 
wellbeing provision (including service review/deep dive of 
Sustain Plus provision) 
 
Options Appraisal Report and recommendations 
 
Task and Finish Group was representative of partners 
across health, social care and education. 

21st May 2018,  
14th June 2018,  
27th June 2018,  
18th July 2018,  
14th August 2018,  
11th September 2018,  
17th September 2018,  
25th October 2018 

JSNA – Emotional Health and 
Wellbeing Research 

Needs Analysis Report produced to supplement the JSNA 
by Divya Patel (used to inform he Strategy and in 
determining future commissioning intentions) 

July 2018 

T2 and Sustain Provider 
Meetings (Current Provision) 

Meetings held will YESS, Mind, Changes, Kaleidoscope 
and Sustain Plus to outline the situation around the tender 
process, gather thoughts on proposed direction of travel 
and scope contract extensions, inform them of the 
engagement event in Jan 19.  

December 2018 

Provider Engagement Event CGG and SCC open engagement event to link with the 
market to introduce the Strategy, outline the future vision 
for early intervention/prevention.  45 + Providers in 
attendance. 

January 2019 

CYP Engagement Discussion with 165+ CYP in a range of settings: 
 

 
 

P
age 98



Consultation Information 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 Children in Care Council (Cheadle) 

 Children in care Council (Cannock) 

 Endon High School  

 Stafford Grammar School  

 Lichfield Fun Club  

 Burton Explorers 

 Cherry Trees School (SEND) 

 Youth Council 

 SCYVS 

January 2019 
February 2019 
February 2019 
March 2019 
March 2019 
March 2019 
March 2019 
April 2019 
March and April 2019 
Meetings from January to April in 
order to facilitate CYP to write an 
ITT question for the procurement 
process. 

Regular Meeting Structures (where opportunities for engagement and consultation have been taken to feedback as part of the 
core business requirements) 

Meetings with Prospective 
Bidders following set aside of 
Tender 

MPFT 
The Children’s Society 
Kooth 
NSCHCT 

December 2018 
December 2018 
December 2018 
December 2018 

Corporate Parenting Panel Regular attendance/updates by Liz Mellor 23rd January 2018 
20th February 2018 
17th April 2018 
17th May 2018 
18th June 2018 
17th July 2018 
20th August 2018 
18th September 2018 
16th October 2018 
23rd November 2018 

Service User Engagement Meeting facilitated by SCYVS between partners from FPEG 
and CYP – topic, CYP needs around emotional wellbeing 

15th February 2018 

The Big Consultation event (hosted by MPFT) 17th April 2018 

P
age 99



Consultation Information 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Youth Debate – annual event. November 2017 focused 
specifically on mental health and emotional wellbeing. The 
learning from this from the CYP has influenced the 
Strategy. 

November 2017 
 
November 2018 

Children’s Voice Project 
 
Children In Care Council 

Numerous attendances 

  

 

 

 

P
age 100



Local Members’ Interest 

N/A 

 
 

Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee – 9 October 2019 
 

District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity  
 

Recommendation 
 
1. That the report be received, and consideration given to any matters arising, as 

required. 
 
Report of the Scrutiny and Support Manager   
 
Background 
 
2. The Health and Social Care Act 2001 confers on local authorities with social services 

functions powers to undertake scrutiny of health matters. The County Council currently 
have responsibility for social services functions but, to manage health scrutiny more 
effectively, they have agreed with the eight District/Borough Councils in the County to 
operate joint working arrangements.   

 
3. Each District/Borough Council has a committee dealing with health scrutiny matters 

that have a specifically local theme. The Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee will 
continue to deal with matters that impact on the whole or large parts of the County. 

 
4. The following is a summary of the health scrutiny activity which has been undertaken 

at the District/Borough Council level since the beginning of their municipal year.  
 

Cannock Chase District Council 
 
5. A verbal report will be given at the meeting. 

 
East Staffordshire Borough Council 
 
6.  No meeting has been held since the last update. 

 
Lichfield District Council 

 
7. No meeting has been held since the last update. 

 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council 
 
8. The Borough Health, Wellbeing and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee met on 9 September at 

which time they considered: 
 

 Committee members received the report from the Chairman of Staffordshire Police, Fire 
and Crime Panel and were pleased to learn that the SPACE scheme had seen a total of 
30,000 young people attend across the County together with a 41% reduction in Anti-
Social Behaviour. 

 Page 101

Agenda Item 5



 Monkey dust - members were disappointed in the response of the Minister for Crime, 
Safeguarding and Vulnerability to our joint letter. 

 

 Members continue to do all they can to support dementia friendly activities in our Town 
Centre and work is progressing on both a Dementia services data base and towards 
Newcastle becoming an accredited Dementia Friendly Community 

 

 
South Staffordshire District Council 
 
9. The Select Committee met on 30 July 2019 considered: 

 

 Crime and ASB update:-South Staffordshire local policing team commander SGT Kelly 
Wareing and South Staffordshire Council Community Safety Officer Helen Marshall 
presented an update to  Member on Crime and ASB within the District and the actions 
being taken to reduce crime within South Staffordshire. 

 
 NHS Long Term Plan and Strategic Commissioning update: Sally Young, Director of 

Corporate Services, Governance and Communication, Staffordshire CCG attended the 
committee to gain Members views and feedback on the potential of Staffordshire moving 
from six CCG’s down to one strategic commissioning organisation. The presentation 
focused on governance structures the potential benefits of coming together and ensuring 
decision making for local people was maintained. 

 
The Committees next meeting is scheduled to take place on Tuesday 8 October 2019. 

 
Stafford Borough Council 
 
10. A Special meeting of Stafford Borough Council’s Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

was held on Tuesday 16 July 2019, the purpose of which was to receive a presentation from 
the Chief Executive of Stafford and Rural Homes in relation to the proposed merger between 
Stafford and Rural Homes and Housing Plus, following which the Committee agreed send a 
letter a letter of support to Stafford and Rural Homes for their proposed merger plans. 

 
The last scheduled meeting of Stafford Borough Council’s Community Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee was then held on Wednesday 31 July 2019 during which the following items were 
considered:- 
 

 A Members’ Item concerning a request for the Cabinet Member for Environment to 
consider a green project involving tree and hedge planting to reduce carbon emissions, 
wildflower patches to increase insects and pollinators, and planting of orchards and 
vegetables to encourage a more sustainable way of living 

 Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee – a report back on the previous meetings of 
the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee held on 19 March and 10 June 2019. 

 Empty Homes Strategy and Release of Funding - a Cabinet report that had been 
“Called-in” to the Committee for further consideration concerning a request to consult on 
the draft strategy and agreement for the funding that was set aside to tackle empty 
homes to be released in a phased approach over four financial years 

 Performance Reporting 2018-21 - a detailed analysis of the performance monitoring of 
those services within the remit of the Scrutiny Committee for the quarter 4 period ending 
31 March 2018 

Page 102



 Business Planning Report – a report looking back over the Committee’s activities over 
the 2018/2019 Municipal year  

 Work Programme – a report outlining the Committee’s Work Programme for meetings 
up to March 2020. 
 
The Committee also met on the12 September 2019, during which the following items were 
considered:- 
 

 A Councillor Session Item containing a question to the Cabinet Member for 
Environment concerning the closure of public toilets in the Borough 

 Two Members’ Items concerning Foodbanks as part of a post-Brexit Food Strategy and 
DBS clearance for those undertaking voluntary work 

 Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee – a report back on the previous meeting of 
the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee held on 15 July 2019. 

 Final Accounts 2018/2019 – a report on the Final Accounts position for the Portfolios 
within the Scrutiny Committee’s remit for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 

 Performance Reporting 2018-21 - a detailed analysis of the performance and financial 
monitoring of those services within the remit of the Scrutiny Committee for the quarter 1 
period ending 30 June 2019 

 Work Programme – a report outlining the Committee’s Work Programme for meetings 
up to March 2020. 

 
The next scheduled meeting of the Committee is due to be held on 14 November 2019. 
 

 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
 
11. On 17 July 2019 the Council’s Health O&S Panel met, as an urgent item of business relating to 

the recent NHS England Rating of inadequate for the North Staffordshire CCG, had been 
raised by a member of the Panel.  Members debated this matter in detail and were very 
concerned about this recent rating of the CCG. To conclude, the Panel and all other members 
present were supportive of a vote of no confidence in the Leadership Team of the North 
Staffordshire CCG. Councillor Lawson also offered to raise this matter at the County Council. 
 
The following actions were agreed:- 
1)          For a letter to be sent to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care to urge the 

Department to place the CCG into special measures; 
2)          For Marcus Warnes to be invited to attend a meeting of the Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel, to provide a copy of an action plan and explain how the organisation 
planned to improve the NHS England rating; 

3)         For a full copy of the NHS England report to be requested.   
 
A member of the Panel also provided the Panel with an update on the pilot scheme to move 
diabetic eye screening into dedicated NHS provision rather than patient’s own opticians. As the 
trial was approaching completion, she had contacted Mr. King who provided positive data 
showing that the aim had been achieved. 
 
The next meeting of the Panel is due to take place on 2 September which is a special meeting, 
at which Marcus Warnes will be in attendance, in relation to the recent assessment of the 
CCG. Following this, the scheduled meeting is the 11 September at which a representative 
from Together We’re Better Health and Care in Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent will be present. 
 Page 103



Future items on the Work Programme include:- 

 Public Health Initiatives (Everyone Health) – Joanna Robinson  

 Public Health Initiatives Drugs/alcohol – Tony Bullock 

 Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (Annual Update)– Neil Carr, Chief 
Executive 

 Public Health Initiatives – Mental Health Trailblazer – Nicola Bromage 

 Royal Stoke University Hospital, University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust 
(Annual  Update) – Tracey Bullock – CEO 

 
Tamworth Borough Council 

  
12. The Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee met on the 23 July 2019 to consider the 

following items: 
a) The Chair reported that following the Committee’s recommendations to Cabinet, it had 

been agreed that the Motor Neurone Disease Charter would be adopted by the Council. 
b) County Councillor T Clements updated the Committee on various matters considered by 

Staffordshire County Council, including the discussion on the future of the George Bryan 
Centre, and the engagement events which were being planned. 

c) The Committee discussed in detail the upcoming Work Plan and referred to the 
Staffordshire Observatory Data Pack to assist.  The following new matters were 
identified for inclusion on the Work Plan: 

 GCSE Attainment in Tamworth 

 Priority Service Registers 

 Mental health issues in Tamworth 

 Representatives to be invited from Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, and 
possibly other NHS organisations 

 Barriers to accessing GP Services in relation to residents with additional needs / 
centralisation of GP services 

 

 
Appendices/Background papers (i) No response from Cannock Chase (ii) email from 
Stafford Borough Council 16/08/19 and 26/09/19; (iii) email from Newcastle Under Lyme 
Borough Council 19/08/19 and 26/09/19 (iv) email from Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council 23/08/19 (v) email from Tamworth Borough Council 01/08/19. (vi)  email from 
South Staffordshire 23/08/19 (vii) email from Lichfield District Council 19/08/19; (viii) email 
from East Staffs Borough Council 15/08/19. 
 
 
Contact Officers 
 
Nick Pountney, Scrutiny and Support Manager 
01785 276153 
nicholas.pountney@staffordshire.gov.uk  
 
   

Page 104

mailto:nicholas.pountney@staffordshire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting held on 16 September 2019
	4 A Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Approach to Children and Young People's Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health 2018-2023 - Update
	Appendix A - Starting Well, Living Well, Supporting Well: A Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Approach to Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 2018-2023 Strategy
	Appendix B - Trailblazer Information; EHMP’s curriculum of learning, types of difficulties children and young people can get support with, intervention medium, four-week referral to treatment (North Staffs and Stoke-on-Trent only)
	Appendix C - Trailblazer confirmed schools in the North Staffordshire, Staffordshire Moorlands and East Staffordshire
	Appendix D - Service specification for the provision of Improving the Emotional Health and Wellbeing of Children and Young People in Staffordshire
	Appendix E - Consultation Information

	5 District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity

